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Report of independent auditors

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its
capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund
and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust
Funds (Cayman) (comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of April 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related combined statements of comprehensive
income (loss), of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and of cash flows for
the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "combined financial
statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying combined financial statements present fairly, in all materal respects, the
financial position of the Fund as of April 30, 2025 and 2024, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audifors’
responsibilities for the audit of the combined financial statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of the Fund and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the combined financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the combined financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end ofthe
reporting period, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has
no realistic altemative but to do so.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 18 Forum Lane, Camana Bay, P.0O. Box 258, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, KY1- 1104,
T: +1 (345) 949 7000, F: +1(345) 949 7352, www.pwe.com/Ky
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Report of independent auditors (continued)

Teo CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its
capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund
and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the combined financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe combined financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the combined financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

s Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the combined financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
combined financial statements.

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Patramn Dwvesstedlicome T-ust Fuids iCay nan;
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Report of independent auditors (continued)

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its
capacity as trustee of Putham Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund
and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putham Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman)

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the Manager's Report, but does not include the combined financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the combined financial statements does not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the combined financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
combined financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

\/7
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July 23, 2025

Putian Dve-sted|icome T-ust Fuids \Cayna



(1) EfRNEE

NREFLh e T4 NR—=T7A R eI hTAN e T7 R (FA<V)
HAEMBORK R R E

Ck RIVER)
A ER
20254F 4 F 30 A HifE 20244F 4 F130 B HI(E
BE R >k Fv TH kv TH
REEE
s A U CATMMET
WE XN D EflE e 3,4,8,11 233, 039, 733 34, 238, 198 265, 743, 138 39, 042, 982
RHEHF DO EAMREARTEH 8 5,772, 737 848, 131 17, 774, 399 2,611,415
BEESMD D ORINE 8,9 71, 750 10, 542 — -
SEWBERINTAR B RIS 4,8 - - 104, 384 15, 336
PRE R TR SN D
AT TEHN AR DRI B RIELE: 4,8 131, 703 19, 350 - —
RULFLEF L OZF Ot R4 2,075, 368 304, 913 1,798, 646 264, 257
HAeR L OBREZMY 3,8 10, 820, 912 1, 589, 808 25, 479, 123 3,743, 393
7u—h—E4 4 3, 100, 292 455, 495 3,903, 548 573, 509
EES 255, 012, 495 37, 466, 436 314, 803, 238 46, 250, 892
=L
REaE
{H25 %2 0W U CAIEME T
HE SN D eRa s 3,4,8,11 10, 135, 841 1, 489, 158 26, 032, 401 3, 824, 680
IR D OFE A MRESRME A 8,10 41, 057, 000 6,032, 094 73, 892, 650 10, 856, 308
RHERFH OZASFEARER L 6 159, 106 23, 376 189, 719 27,874
FEMHHNAR D ARAL LB FEAL G 4,8 28, 290 4, 156 — —
FOE R TSR SN D
AT s THHNNR D ARALZEBIFEHL A 4,8 — — 253,213 37,202
AL BN 8,9 233, 068 34, 242 639, 703 93,985
RAARAE I K OV BRI T REl 8,9 78, 242 11,495 96, 039 14,110
BEDT VT 4 THKINARD
PR, WRREAL4E 8 2,290, 684 336, 547 2, 380, 968 349, 812
7 a—h—~DKE 4 13,834 2,032 13,504 1,984
Z O DAL 8,9 558, 861 82,108 382, 793 56, 240
BEEH (ERHEZEIMFHD
REBIZRET HMEEZR) 54, 554, 926 8,015, 210 103, 880, 990 15, 262, 195
AEMETAESNLERARE
SZRIMIEOREEICRET 2HMEE 1,8 200, 457, 569 29, 451, 226 210, 922, 248 30, 988, 697
FARVEINRF L TAN—Y
TJ274 K42 AL kSR F
NDERAREZHRIIHDRESEIC
IRET AMEE 200, 527, 865 29, 461, 554 210, 985, 427 30, 997, 979

*HERES (a) (1) 2oz,
F20244F 4 H30 B THIRHIIE, 7 7 v NITHWIEFE % Bl Fe M-l CRiMi L7, 20254-4 H30H O
N7 ot 22O TIE, BRI FBRBOZ L,

M OERRIE, AMBEHLE AT TOLDTH S,



(2) BEmstEE

WNREFL -TUN=TT AR AL FTAL T X (A7)

RS EAERIE (R BHARE

Ck RAFor)
20254 4 H 30 A& T4ERE 20244F 4 H 30 A& T4ERE

ERIRES (B%) R >k Kv TH >k Fv M
{HIE AW U CAEMECHEINS
SREVEER L OESRAE» S OFLE 3,8 14, 125, 961 2,075, 386 11, 056, 509 1,624, 422
ARG ER L OAKICTRD
B (K BIO
REGFZE, (BEK) OMALE 45, 891 6, 742 16, 778 2, 465
s 2l L CAEMETHESND
SEVEER L OeEAKITERD
FeARIZE (R BEOD
REGFZE, (BER) OMAE 7,972, 679 1,171, 346 524, 257 77,024
BRI (E%) &t 22, 144, 531 3,253, 474 11, 597, 544 1,703,911
ERER
A PRI 9 2,935, 493 431, 283 3,274,971 481, 159
LR 9 72, 260 10,616 96, 896 14,236
PR ESAA THR 9 61, 446 9,028 50, 519 7,422
S FEE BTN 9 376, 943 55, 380 377, 344 55, 439
AR 9 64,113 9,419 68, 356 10, 043
AT 9 99, 678 14, 645 96, 865 14, 231
Do A 9 110, 353 16,213 88, 033 12,934
RPN D DFAR L 9 (372, 472) (54, 724) (319, 255) (46, 905)
ERERER 3,347, 814 491, 861 3,733, 729 548, 559
ERFIE (B%) 18, 796, 717 2,761,614 7,863, 815 1, 155, 352
BEER
B R Al REZ AR O
PRAE KT D Bl é 7 (8, 059, 932) (1, 184, 165) (9, 305, 157) (1,367, 114)
NEEEREONE. (BX) 10, 736, 785 1,577, 448 (1, 441, 342) (211, 762)
BERICLL2ERABEZHIAHFORESE
IZIRET AMEEDEM . GEL) 10, 736, 785 1,577, 448 (1, 441, 342) (211, 762)

T OERRIE, AMBEHE A ZOLDTH D,



NEFL TUNR=2 Ty AR e A HL e FTAR Ty X (A7)

HR I RES 4k AlE 25 ORI 8 3 2 il il & e A B 5+
Ck FvER)
20254F 4 A 30 A& TAFHE 20244F 4 A 30 Bk TAERE
R KR TH K R TH
HEICB T ERAIRGEZRIAHD
REEICRET HMEE 210, 922, 248 30, 988, 697 249, 828, 271 36, 704, 770
TR L2 B R AR A Al I DR H
WIRB T B REEDR, (8) 10, 736, 785 1,577, 448 (1, 441, 342) (211, 762)
BRARER I H 5]
BATHEZ LA S & O FHUEH
79 AM 6 1,191, 116 174, 999 910, 535 133, 776
Z3RAESE O B A4
7T A] 6 (15, 694, 339) (2,305, 812) (27, 596, 796) (4,054, 521)
7 7 AM 6 (6, 698, 241) (984, 106) (10, 778, 420) (1, 583, 565)
R AT RESZ A AL IS | 2N B AE Uz
Wi PEORM, (D) (21, 201, 464) (3,114, 919) (37, 464, 681) (5,504, 311)
BRIZE T HERAIGEZRIAHFD
REBICRET DMEE 1,8 200, 457, 569 29, 451, 226 210, 922, 248 30, 988, 697

BT OERRIE, AMBEHE A TOLDTH D,



SR B FAR—L T 7 A R A VBB bTA R - T 7 VR (A v)
MR v a7 RS

Ck FAFoR)
20254F 4 H 30 H §& T AR 20244F 4 F 30 H #& TAEEE
e >k KoL M >k KoL M

BREHICLS XYy yia- JA—
A & D B R AT S RER O H
WZIRE T A HEREORN, (8 10, 736, 785 1,577, 448 (1, 441, 342) (211, 762)
I e oERFILE S (K &
EAEE AL (SHHLE)
BEeHMEEIC—H ST DD OFHE
FEAE A8 U CAEARME CHIE SN D

SRNEPER X OB AE D S OFILE 3 (15, 513, 096) (2,279, 184) (11, 410, 097) (1, 676, 371)
e )
RAEFIZET D ol 4 7 8, 059, 932 1, 184, 165 9, 305, 157 1,367, 114
7L X T AOEHMAR 1,387,135 203, 798 353, 588 51,949
BlA B L OHASMIAR D
ZRRFE S (1R) (45, 891) (6, 742) (16, 778) (2, 465)
4,624, 865 679, 485 (3,209, 472) (471, 536)
RFEHF D OFRBEAMREERTERIO
GRS PE 8 12,001, 662 1,763, 284 100, 777, 319 14, 806, 204
RHEHFDLOFREAMREEEA D
fxgm, Q) 8,10 (32, 835, 650) (4,824, 214) (210, 614, 809) (30, 943, 528)
SN AR D RINEBFEILA D
GRS P 4,8 104, 384 15, 336 (104, 384) (15, 336)
FOUE R CIER SN A AT » TR
%5 RINESBFEIA O B b 4,8 (131, 703) (19, 350) 270, 463 39, 736
7 a—h—JEEOR BN 4 803, 256 118,014 (3,903, 548) (573, 509)
FHA S ORIEOH M) B 8,9 (71, 750) (10, 542) — —
RILVREE B L OB BB ARATHEN D
Mg, Osid) 8,9 (17, 797) (2,615) (78, 275) (11, 500)
FEMZKINAR D RILETFERLE D
g, Qi) 4,8 28, 290 4, 156 (62, 437) (9, 173)
FOE R CIEE SN D AT v 78
AR D RALAEBHREHL G O, (8ir)) 4,8 (253, 213) (37, 202) 253, 213 37,202
70— —~DRIAORIEN, (B) 4 330 48 13,504 1,984
AL BRREN ORI, (i) 8,9 (406, 635) (59, 743) 408, 883 60, 073
Bl L 2B EDT U RNT 47
BUTAR B HRER ORI, (B 8 (90, 284) (13, 265) (637, 564) (93, 671)
ZOORALE FH OKHE I, () 8,9 176, 068 25, 868 32, 243 4,737
HisZ2Wl L CAEMETHESND
SEVEEORL B W 3,4,8,11 32, 703, 405 4, 804, 784 270, 414, 401 39, 729, 284
HIE U CAEMECHESINS
SmAE oM, QR 3,4,8,11 (15, 896, 560) (2, 335, 523) (103, 968, 920) (15, 275, 114)
EREHSIZKYVELE (IERALE
Xywyia-JO— 738, 668 108, 525 49, 590, 617 7,285, 853
FILE S HUkH 13, 849, 239 2, 034, 730 14, 352, 853 2,108, 721
BREBICEVELCKE (ZERALR)
BHEMiE 14, 587, 907 2, 143, 255 63, 943, 470 9,394, 575

BEEHIc&bdFryia- 70—
BRI REZ SRR ORA H T

Lo T4 7 (8,059, 932) (1, 184, 165) (9, 305, 157) (1,367, 114)
B R A REZ RS> D O FIAE 6 1,191,116 174, 999 910, 535 133, 776
BR B SR OER L 6 (22, 423, 193) (3,294, 416) (38, 299, 418) (5, 626, 950)
BEERICKVELCT (IZERLE)

HEHMEE (29, 292, 009) (4, 303, 582) (46, 694, 040) (6, 860, 288)
BE£H L UVRESEMpoMiEm, GEd) (14, 704, 102) (2, 160, 327) 17, 249, 430 2,534, 286
HE 2B 2 BldR X OHLES MY 3,8 25, 479, 123 3, 743, 393 8,212,915 1, 206, 641
ek L OB MR D

R (%) B 45, 891 6, 742 16, 778 2,465
HRIZBET2RES L VREEEY 3,8 10, 820, 912 1, 589, 808 25, 479, 123 3,743, 393

I OERRIE, AMBEHLE AT TOLDTH S,



NREFh T4 R_R—=2Ty7A RS2 H L hTAN Ty X (A=)
20254 4 H 30 A BLAE OmEfkE I B EH T b 5 1R

W1 kAR
PLF OB EREICKT T 2 ERICBWNT, (A7 =k« AU — b LW EEPEHDLLEITIE
AF =R+ AR —=hK N7 « TR hTAR - BUNR=—%FERL, [OTCJ &) i#En
HOGEICITIFET S EEW®WT S, 77 ROMEE] Lo ik, 20254 4 H30 B BiE
200, 457, 569K R/ (20244F 4 F 30 HERAE : 210, 922, 248k F/L) DOHMEPEICHES L, BIOTEH D2
RO, TR 12202445 A 1 H2 5202544 A30H £ COHM % &4,

NREhFL e TFAUR=V T4 Ko fHh hTA (FA~Y) vAX—T7F (UF =
AR—T7 R NI, ) F. CIBCHIET L R T TR hTFRAL s Boi=— (&
A~) VT RETITL IV« T RA =X 407 (DUF TEHESt) W), ) (RS
PR A R T A T RSP — e hoR=— s oL )Ly —) O THiRE S 7220054 8 H
I8 fT~ A& —(FREFEE I L V20054 8 H 18 H ff~ A ¥ —FFEAEE S —#iil 72 © NT20244210H 2
AfMMEREREEMEICHEIL L=, b T L - F T2 aT «+vAF— =X+ hTFAF (LT =%
H—+ FTAR] EWVH, ) DVI—X+ "TRANTHD, FASVENNTL T4 =T 574
ReAgrBhe FTAN T 74 —=F—T7 R Lo, ) &, NbhFh-FT7va7 -7
A4—H ==X s FZA QT [T4—=F—- FFAF] W), ) DY —X+ NTARFT
HY, A—TNVAZTTRA - VIT v RETTU TV T RRALP =X« 7D ThiRE S -
20054F 7 A13H AT 7 ¢ — & —(EREAEE (LGTH) 3 L V20054 8 AH18H 7 ¢+ — ¥ —(FrtalEMiE (2
R 7B ONT20244E10H 4 BAMEREGREEMEICER L TV, v XX =BV T4 —F—+ F T X
ME, A~ #EOIa—F 27 770 NE @G ICESERHEINTND,

NAB— Ty U RBIOT 4 —F— - T 7 U NX, T4 —F— - 77 FOMEEN, FFEMIC
TRTCYRAS—« 77V ROZRARFIEEIND, vAX— /T —%— 77 NEiE (LT,
WHLT (770X Lo, ) (BT, ZREEINC 77 K] W), ) ELTEHAEINT
W, ZNHD7 7 AT AEBMEERITI. v AF— T BRI T4 —F— T 7K
THER STV 5,

FNEFND T 7 ROMEEMBEEZIET A7-0I12, TRENOEREIIFENICEES . RESh
TWb, 74— —+ 77 FKif, ~A¥— 77 RERICEAY A7 52F7 5,

77 ADEE L, WETADREEX D ETHETH D L EHSINE Z HHPANICTIBWT,
B L L OSRIEE OIS ZIBRT 2 2 L TH D, BEStHE, Fioh - R (3EFTEThL L)
DI A9 5 BEWK EIIDEREE (A A —L F) OMREEDOREIRAL S 7B IR
HEB LI UOBUEICKET 22T, 77 o AOROERZ BfE T,

E2 {ER O I
AEEM B ERIL, ERSFHEERHS UUF TTASB &), ) ICEVAKSNEETIFRS



DEHEYEICHEIL L CTIERR SN TV D, B RRHTEHT. FICHEEDRWIRY | FRENDL TR TO
HRIZOWTT7 7 Rk TC—HLGEAINTWS,

UHIB L ORI O 7 7 o OB EEHIT, ~ A X — 77 RBIOR T 4 —F— 77 Fid,
ZOEMAREND, —DOREFEHRERL T D EREHENEE L, EBi L CERRrINz, LR, &
WHERIL, BRI SN D, TV —TNOKER LOEG] 2, BRB IS 25T, )
X, TRTRA STV D,

EHAMT, BB OCABOBEREICHEL 525 HEED S D RFRICET 2 REY B X OMRE
ZATD. WA IE, MEEACEEI S A, B EORBRE LUK T AR &M S b ko $
ZOTHEET, TOMOERIIHE S LOTH D, EEORBRIZ, ZHOHORMY LB R
HY ., ZTOEFBITERRLDO LR REELRD D,

3 EERRFTH O
TRelE. AMBEROERICH Tz > T SN ERRRF S JORETHOERN TH 5,

AMEERIL, B4 28 U TAIEME THIE S 2 @& ES L OREOFHEIC L > TEIESH
7o. BUSRMMERICE SO TER SN TS, [ FRSRFHAEMEICHER L 7o MBS EHOERIT. M5
FHEBLOMMET 2HER THRE SN GRICEEEL XD AR BLOMREETT O 2 & Z2REREIC
BRT D, EEROMRIT, THOHDRMY LRRDLZENDD,

VAN — e Ty U RiE, EEESERTAYAX— - 77 ROFEEETTIVE I OERNE EDH
MEDFx vy o - 7a—REOWFIZE ST, REAMAERE ST 5, @EEEDOR— 7 +
Ui, AEMESN—ZATEASHL, A7 r—< 2R Ens, ~2A%—- 772 i, Eion
EAMEERICEREZ S T, ZOEREEN L CTEEDONRT 4+ —~< L AZ 7 Ml LEBREEZITI, v A
H— 77 v Rid, Rt a2 OMmOaiERIE 28 U CTAEMETHET 5 b0 L L THRIHARED
MEEZTAHRRB AL > TE TR, vRA¥— 772 FOBEIHEFOZH EOF vy v 2 - 71
—IFIEABLOHEDOHLTH LN, ZNbOAMRESEX, O EOX Yy a - 7u—%EIT 572
DIRAINDEHLOTIERY, B EOX Yy v« 7u0—0REIUL, ~AX— - T 7 ROEET
TNADHNEZERT HT-OICOHRMETHHDOTHD, TOME, T XTOEEAMIERT, HiE%
U CAEAMETHE &b, AEMMEN~ A FATHDT VAT 0 7KL, k%8 U TAEM
ETHTESN AL LTEREND, TD7D, IFRSHEIZINEST, vAX— - 77 R
TRCOBEEFMESHAR— N7+ VA%, k28 U CAEMMECHE S D E/EE X - 1348/ EA
e LTHET 5,

(il ) FF% 58RO IUEH L

BEAMREROREAL L ORANL, v~ A ¥ — « 77 PR REAMEESR OB £ 721358 5K 2§
LA, $2bbHs RISEE# SN D, REAMERL, BENPOLOF v v o« 7 n—2X%iHT



DHEFIDSHIR LI B L O~ A X — « 7 7 RREEICT R COFTET D U A7 8 L ORI % %
LR TR Z B S D, FEE L_— A CTHRE Sh-AMaERix, @EREH L %orska
WCRESND Z RS Y, ZERLEITEMESROREICIESNTRAET 5, BE A MIES: DA EAN
EOEEE TG T OEFRBITIC L > T, HEEZHDL Z LN H D,

WIEFRED OB A MAEZR OMEAT L OEANL, MBOREEFTRER ICBW TN I TV DN E TR
B ETITEAIT STV R WA MREREE AR LS L OEMMRESREHIRNEZ ENENER L TWD, 7
0 —h— kT HEEOEREIT, b LbiIuX, FIROEOIRE Sd, ZiLb OSFIIAIEMET
YIRS v, ZORMERFMCTHE S D, FMEBICBWNTEHY 27 23 4PRERLEICE L <
HRLTWDAGA, v AX— - 77V RiE, 7a—0—Zxd DEMEHEICIR BRG] 44 2 2O
TFAERBRICE LA CTHIE L2 iuEz b, S RICBWTERY 27 03 4958 LRI
FELLHBRLTOWRWEESIZE, vA¥— - 77 NiE, BRI1%ex 20 A0 FREHRBRIZEFL
WRFETHIE LRT IR b, 7r——0F LWMBHREE, 7o —0 —OfE £ 72 13ME -
DEMmOATRENE, B XU WO RBITIZTXT, BRIIGENLEL RD RN H D 2 L 2mT
FBELE B2 &N, FHBHEL TV D L AR INIBREE TEMY 27 PR LESA, ZBRLEIE,
BIBIY ATt LT S IR AR I R SWCEHE SN D, [FHY 27 OF LWERIE, &
BESAHIZ Ko CTHIA 230 H R L7230 L0 & LTERINTWD, HIH £290 B R L7z
2K EOZHNE, EHBHL WL LAkIhD,

(iii) E

Ak A U TAEME THE Sh 5 ER L OEMARE, SOICAEMETRMEI D, I
SIE ML, 28 U CTAEME CHE SN 2 &REER L O A6 2 ZIMAE - (K
PBLOREHMGR . (HE) oMiZLs e LTl (KR stREFCE EEhs, SRk, 7
T OBz E U TAEMETHE Sh 2 e E X, AEMETHEShD, 2@ TALE
E TRIE S 2 &REE £ 23 AR OSBORIEMIEDOLE G4 U HHEGEE, J4 L7
ik 2 affflae (BKR) SHREFICRRIND,

TG RN E S AT ATRE A & IE, FEBSIFNCE T HEEORME, 73R EOTHICEIT 5
NARMETRHMA S 4L, 1 FRSEHE 75 TAEMENEL XOBzR] ITFITTFRSETS] &0o,)
WICHSE LUV 1 OFMREFRICHEIND, JEHIGI SN D —MOAMEESRD X 512, BENHE S
NTWARWESIE, BEIOEWHER LOEMHED VR, >F 0 MPE] TS, @it ~Ur 2
DOAMFERICTEEN D, BHSEOEFERITH 520244 4 H30& THIRICBW T, 77 v NIZE
il d K OVEMHE TATEAME 2 & L Tuz,

FrE DEFRESR (W% TORAWIM60 A INOEITRE 2 5T, ) OmGMHLIE. BHICAF
HORZRWZ &2 D %, £ OB AMRESRIT, BEERHIZ K o TRRE S AUTIAL U 7 A& S —
EREFEFRRALIC L > TBIRE 2T 0 — 7 — MR 2RI S W TR S N 5, 5%
—EREIIT 4 — T —id, EER R OB HRARESR 2 e 5 D BAL T, i T RE 22 Al
AEHRDOT SIS B L OMEHED L —F =2 L > T—RIZTHRD BTV D AlRESR O M Ok % 72 BIER
PEICHES S HEZ AT, FHIEZIRET 2 (AMREROMAE, M\ | s X OO EK Z



EETAH, ) . TNHOIEEIT, — BRI LUV 2 IS EIN A, BEOHEIT. B—0fFR Y — X
DI DM ISV RIS D Z 803 h 5, AEETCOAMIESIT. b LbiuE, BfTo 4%
L— N CH RAicE SN 5,

MR EY — A ETET 4 — T — DA MRS Z T 5 2 & BSHRAR WS, EI3F SR
FAMAES: DA TEAGE 2 EREIC R L TWO R WEMIEE IR S 72 & B 2 23561213, YA iliaEscix
BN KR T D 8 KOFRUHE - T, BRI X 0 AEAME TR S5, il R CiiEh
PEOIRWEGESRF L OT U AT ¢ 7 a2 G R ER MRS RIS, BERStNEKR T 2 HiEICiE-
TAIEANME CRHME S5, 205 5HlcB W T, &R E I EROE DL, thofEk & D28
BIfR, EI5I=R, KEMBEIES, KEAT v 7BIOI LYy b o A= K, fBHUk#E, a7
T A s T AR—V X —, [BILE, FEHEIZ 5N OO TS X OERGERIPR 7 K OEN & I
BULIEELRERLLE L TEZLD, ERIIMEBOFEFOFERER X720 LTS, YA Marscix
TR A Ty NOBRIEAITISCTLL 2 F 1T~ 3 I SN 5,

—IRBTIE, FREOAMRES GHMERERR L) ORE DL NYSE (==—3 — 235G
%Tﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%bewé VYA — Ty v R, SMERER T TR SN ERE RS
DAtk %z, WE. NY S E&3EHORIEERT% ARFBEOZE L — F TR RVHET 5, 20
FEAR. K RUCHT 520 6 OB EOIMEDZEE N, 77 FROMEEMEE (NAV) ITHEL KT
AT ﬁ#%éo_@kw FESEITZOMRIEANIL, AEMMEIZIED lSRE D Fhe & 285
ALTW5, @, LoUL 1 OFERICHEEND 20 b OAMEES T, 2 IEAME TRl S - s T
NEMfEE =T L% —D L~ 2 1TBITEN 5,

20254F 4 H30H 35 L 020244F 4 A30 A #& THEREIZ BT, BHAMIC L > TAEMEFM S5 4
FEZEFE 721X T UV NT ¢ T3 o7,

(b) <Bfpsbn OFER

BREER L OERMAMIE, RS AR T D 2 L IIERSRE A DY | #O%ﬁf%%?é%
MRS D56, TR EOTEHRS L OREORGE 2 FRIRHNIT 5 BRAH 256, kS THENR
REEAEEICBOTHBE TRE SN D,

(c) #HiEZE U TAEME CRIE SN HeEES L OeAaE» b ol

FLEIE, FERRIEEEZ VT, BIREL S EE TRl S D, SBFILEE., Blad L OB S My )
HOFBEEETe, HIEAE U CAFME CHIE S 2 SEED D OFLEIL, EHEE» S OFE %
Gte, BWEEEELFIZOMOBE T 7o RDLZME LI, HERED BICEH E&h, B8
BAMGEZR DTN E L TOREITHEF SN D, TVIT L/ T AT MIT T, &E&EF
Bl BB ESEEA GRS TWVWD, vRAZ— - T7 RiE, 203 =7 « v— i AIGEICE]
L C—EDFHEEBET D, 105 FHEEHE, HiHHE & LB Sh, affflis (K FHEF
WEAG Esh s,



(d) Friddydt

VAL — 77 ROERFGR (JBK) DOZEEITHT D00, EHESHOKRIZHE - T,
T4 —H = Ty ROZREIHE SN D, DEEnEE, b LbhiE, AfTbhd, 74 —%— -
77 v ROZEE~OSEIT, BEFRE K FREFCBWT, MBEEMNL L TRMsLD, v
EX A B OEIE. b LHIUX, SEEFE D BIZE B, 27 &b BRI DD,

(e) Bl LUH MY

BT, SEE2EOERITYEIREN 52 5, HeFMWIL, BEMOSHTHES (e r eI O
EMEDOmWREAMIER TH Y | (EDREREB Y 2712868 TBY, EFITTOMOR
LY bEHNREETFRELE S B TRASN TV D, YEMEBIT. b Lo, RESHEITET
HARIE L LT, MECREEFREEICE Eah T o,

20254F 4 H30H 20244F 4 A 30H
Bl L OBLeShY * Rov P %
SMEHLe 270 —
¥ RAVBL4 149, 451 137, 169
B F Y 10, 671, 191 25, 341, 954
Bk X OEBLEEMm A #H 10, 820, 912 25,479, 123

(f) BERZEN

VAL — T 7RI, TOREREBU T, HEEAMREREOSIELEZ T D, ZORELA
fMRES: OWEARF O AN EMMEIL, D72 < & HRREFLEZ F0IRBMKICE LWSHE THILERD S,
WEHRBAE., —EOEREZMOHMIL, B523, 458, 980K KL (20244F : 35,199, 180K F/L) T,
v AH— e T 7 RBXOHBE TS OO OS5 A E LT, WO T OSSR
INb, BHST, b OEERAMIEROMIEL, FiZ, D7 & b RFE % & TiRse ik
WCELWBHEHICREIND Z EICHTEEA > TV D, BEIHFHFOEEABITE I ITEFHR S D
BA. RE LTV LHRIE, ENTFREONRERDZENRDH D,

(g) A MY v 7REH

VY AB— T 7 RIE, 7T AMFICE R DEIEOEBR X O AREZHET MM EH T D AIE
DOFNMEERBT DAY v TAERICRET D 0D D, ERORENRET DK, 3T
FIEZZMHE L, TAOREZRNG LT DKL, TRCOTRAEZZET D, vAX—+ 77 NE, &
FOIHzxIG LT D500, TIEA LD eAROHIRAMEED & o 7o H . Uikl kO 41 E 5
EERICIDRET ZENTERNWI NS DH, AT, TAROHREXG LT 53R, THE%Z EFS
HIBRATME RS & - T2 5 B IITFER AT L. TAR A TE 2 HIRATMEER CTh - 725G ITITRES
ARG 35, MAER O A EMEIL, SRS IEF BRI ST 5,

(h) /M E#HE
(i) HpEEElLO0FEREE
VAR — T RBIONT 4 —F— - 77 RORRIZ, TOEREEZIRIEEDHIAS DZHE

=



BLOMBRERLMTOND2EBETH LK ML TITOILTWS, B, BITh2WE], F4
BIORUOBFN 250 2 I b BEICRTEEIL, KRV THLEBELATND, KRViE, 77>
AW, T7 o ADNT =< AERPEL, TOMREMETL2EETH D, £/o. YRREIT. £
DOEE I L LT, 7 7 V ADPFEFIRREICH L 2 L 2 BE L T 5, AMBERIT, K
RV TERSN TN D,

(i) Bslds X0

SMEREES X, BB BICRB T 2 EB AL — MW, MiEEE clE I D, FAMREROE
BEMEL, FEEROZBREL— MEHWTHIRE SN D, IS, BHB LOWURBIELIL, BEREE X
FAEROFERLFE L — NTHEIND, v AZ— - 77 NiE, BEAMIERITHRD #EL— F DX
DA U D EBETIIREBHERE O 2 AMRESRO SIS E #2548 L 288 & XL 72w,
BRI DA U 5 AR b ONCBLAR L OBIESMIC B 2 A AT, AEEEER L O
BEICHR D FEBUMFILE . (R B XOREBFNIE . (K OMAZS) L L CafEfg (L) #HE
TR EIND, HIEEE U CAEMECHE SN D RRESRD X 5 78, JelERRNE L OIEEIEES
A PER L OVREO BB, SRS () HEEOIEFEEES L OAMITIR D EBIMAE
/ (HBR) B OREIHIL . (GEK) OMEHCEW T, ALEMEMELSOFHEN TREkE NS,
SEAMEE~ORE T, EANOEEITITR SRV, BEMIARZEME, AR BAar R R L O
EEEICET S —ED Y A7 &L,

(i) TBAZK
FYAL— - Ty NE BEESNICEMT, BEREALIVEZEORSRAIC, AiiFEELEATDST
B A (to be announced) I ZHEfET HZ ENdH D, Hflids L OFEBEMAITHE SN TWDHR, &
BROFMRESRIIFFE S ATV, L LR D, ZESFIITAMAENHE L TREL RV &2
MEShTWD, vAZ— 77 FiE, IREHET, BAMKICRLE O @AEOBLE E 72 1T R
ERABIOHMERI T 2007213, v~ A ¥ — « 7 7 2 RIZZ OMOERE G MGES D Y58 O AR %
FTDIEND D, UEAMGERITR DI IX, R A ETHRAELRY,

FERRIC, ~AZ— - 77U R A= b 73U - RVOVarvz~y DT 5720, FALTH
DALY L RINCEES S B— =Ny ViEFRERAT 5720, £IFET—F— U Ny VRO a3 —
heRTvarzliblzolil, TBARYENEARETHZENdDH, TBAGEY ZKOFREEIL,
B EORFHETZE LR, T BAGEY ZHINRE SN D £ COMBIAP, [[% 0% feA e
FK, BHB S LIZENURNCZIEER T B AE WAL OWTRNEZERE O T & LT
RAETHNEFIT. T BASYEYOL BATGEICARYS 4 2 &4E0D 7 O OB PE % 45 B S+ 5,
TBABVZHPHETBABVWRYORGZE U TR TTDE, ~AX— - 772 NIFIRLE 2 7%#%
T2, YAL— T 7 FRRRINCESS FIFEFROZE L E21TH &, v AFZ— - 77 RT3
i BIZRE SN2 AT IZ FE S\ T MRS e HIR S 2 78T 5,

RIS E LTHFESNTWD T B AL, TNAEEDAMEESR L RSN ZERH D RHF

H &0 BNCA MRS AR S Z B+ 2 2 LIS K28 K Y 27 B LG FET I L 5EBAEITY
27 HZRNELTWD, BEHAFL Y 22713, ~AF— 77 REWRGHAFT L O T~ 22—



i D Z LICK VR END,

RRFEOT B AL, EFe TE] ICRE#i S D FheE It -> T, NEMETHMis 5, 2%
RN H # BB S HL, ATEMEZENL, v~ A Z— 7 7 FIZ&k o TREBHELF L L TR RS D,
BEISALE, WSS U T, BEEAMRESROZ T L Z2AT 9 0 E 7T T B AR ZRFITEZ - T
VU e VIR ONRN I g W/RT 1L

F4 TIANT 4 T7EK

TUVNRT A TERNE, ~AF—+ T7 0 FORERIEOBER LD LRHY, EiT, 77D
NI =< Ah@d, VAT EZMZ DO OHHMAEE LORER~y URE L LT, £EZ oM
OEEHBTHHIND, vAF— 77 NiE, I FRSEIFIIERHMINTWDH~y VRFHEM
D~y TPELTTINRT A TERELTWRNWZD, YT VAT o T, #3523 TA
EMECTHESND bDOICHEEND, ~AX—« 77 RPMEEERIIRITT DL DOTESETY
NT 4 TRRT, REL, W, A7 ar —EOBRERGIBLIORY vy 7N EGENDB, 2
FUZRRIE 417200,

VAB— Ty U RE, AT a VBN ERET LN D, KRN OFE TSN IEREIN T
bOGE. FH LITAB L — MR TRICK T 281& 2 LIchE, EI3BNEG TR EE A
JBITIZ - 72356812 1E, SRR OFHMEFEEBNC L WK ZHD Z LB H D, FEa—L - AT
G UNFETIND & MHZE LT VI T AT BHAIFREOMNE L LTEEahd, edE7 y b -
T a v NEITEIND L, BHIZBELET LI T AT, BEAMAEFBISEMORE L U CEH EX
o, GRFELBGIFICERS SN D47 Y a d, EEOFGRAIRE CIMli S D0, £2ix, 2HN
WEINRP-TEHEITIT, HEA TV a VORKEMER L OREA 7Y a o OB A& 7EMEE TR
b, OTCHBIAT Y ait, T4 —T7—ICX-o TIRESNAME CIHMis N b, AV v 7%
LA T a At W ERITZET L I T L0, LR SN e EIE I vy e T
FV b AT TN T HHERN AT D2 b LT 5452 L THh D EERE ., Al
WZER AT v a vy EFEHL TS, HETLIT A AU YT a3 UEICIE, REBOIEEEED
TUITANRFTENTWD, L IT LORFEEIET, 7 a VRO R ~ OFHMIFEICEELY 5 2
bo BHIF ¥ v 7RISR 7 a7 ORA, b LbE, “EFHTOBTOXLNTHDL T LI T A
LRI, BRIF Y v T OGEIIINEOSRE EE S8R A S TERD Z ENRTE, ST
BHIOLGEIIFTE ORI % TlEl 5858 %22 T D Z E N TE 5,

VAL — T 7 NE, BB AR TS 2 LD D, SERKOTLETTIE N IEREN TH DY
Ay AFL L IFABRL— A TRICKT 281% %2 LIEREA. 30 BE T I NMEBARBITIC
B> 72 E 1T, EEEMEMLOFMIEELEENIC LV BERAKD Z 0 b D, ik, BBl B sh
TEY., T XTORGIFT ESEYORSIHT S ThH LB FTOBEKE (7 V7V 7T R) B
BEERBITNORIAEL TWDHTH, 77  RIZRT HBEIHEFHER Y A7 I3RIERICI A 5 Tn
%o VAT, MBURREEHAEZICBW TR EIN TV D5 E ERIZ Z LR, ZKIBPKT Lok
AT, Y AL — « 772 RiE, BHORERER &5 TR OO 28I % LW EBIHES 3 E9 5, &
WKL, TG SN TS RGIFT CRAL L72 B 2 ORFBAE CIMisn b, v~ AZ— 7

— 100 —



7Y FRBLOT m—h—i3, BRI OFHHED A 2« OEBFH L FELWBe2 LT 5 2 LIZaEL
TWD, YEXEB IO, — IS TEBGRELE:] LS hd,

TAH— T 7V RiE HRICBWTED bl CIEELZEET 5 "B HEEMOZNTH 5%k
BN ETET DI END D, TERNOK RVFHIEIL, iR E) — R Lo TiRita b %k
ELAFL— MEHWTRESND, BHNOANEMEE, BEL— NOEBIE U TEET L5, 21
IE. HAEERO S, AEMMEOEENIREBEEE LCEFEand, v A ¥ — 772 Rid, 28
Ak I O FEANAE & SR T RFOFANER & O ZFTH Y 3 2 SRR & 00 TR £ 72 13EE 0=k
FRHZEF BT 2, 77 v X%, EEOFHMBESAFNCES) Li56 . ZYOBBIH T 032K BE % &
TTDIENTERLI Rl E, FlE~AX — -« 77 RBRCHEBI &2k 5 Z &R TE 2L
ot HIZ, VAZIZELENDZEnH D, VAZIE, MEREHEEICEBWTERINLTWS
SHE LERIDZ BB D,

Y AL — 77 R, ZHEMTHEELARICESS Xy vy a - TR —E2RHBRTHETHH0T
CBIO/ 3T iEREBE TR INDIBFATY v 78BN EMET 22 R HDH, OTCHIW
PILE R TR SN DAY v 713, BT LI 7 L%k THEAEZITEHITH Z N TE
%, OTCEBFRAT v TRKENZDONWT, vAF— « 77 FBRZELEHIESIL, vAF— - T 7
ROEBICAE L LTEt EEhd, ~A ¥ — - 77 v RS TZRAEIX, ~AF— - T 7 RO
MREICEEL LTt RS D, OT CBIUHIERKE CHER SN 28R AT v 72K, ML
AR E T — B A E T IMMEMT T HEE D OGSV TH 2 ERW SN D, B8N, OT C4F|
AT TERNARDREB LT L LR e d, HIEREBECIER IN DGR AY v 7D H 2D
EEY XX, PRIEFRMEREZE U CRE SN, —ICBCREER R EICB T A EERHLE & LT, K
FHBRNF LEN D, FiHLT VI T AEFLIIOOZHEE 2T, BRIOTH A £ 72138
THRHZHEBAR E LT EEN D, —EDOTCHE IO RIEFMKME THER SN 5852 T v 75K
I, IHEHDIEMNEEND 08B D, ZNHDAY v TEENIBIES 5 T, DO SKRIAEIC
EONWTHAET D, 77 o Xk, @ROARRIRES), £k, OT CE&HARY v FEKDLGEIZTITR
FIFHFEFT O, HIEREBE CHER SN 2GR A Y » 7K OGAE TP IE FERE & L IR RS
DLEBEO . MBI ES S EUOBERBITICEY . ERY A7 7308 Y 2271086 5h3 =
EMBDD, T AR, BBIFHTFR Y A TR IIER Y 27 DD R RKBRY 27 1%, BRo
NIEAMEICAE S T2, M5ZU A Z71E, OTCA&MAY v 7ML CvAZ— - 77 RARRGIH
FThH L OB T AX —MBERKERHET D Z LIk > T, P RFEREE CHEREINIER AT v
TEKNCB U CEBRE A E B 2 T 5 2 LI Lo T 5 2 L3 TE 5, HRIEFKERE CER
SNDHERAT v 7EEE, EEEBEOSENMEB BT 25 a I XEEKE (2 V7 s
N A) PR FRERE R IO OMOEREZRIET 2720, ZHUTRLIMGHHFS U A 7 135K
FRICHIZ DI TW5bD, RV X7, MBUREEHEEICBONTRBIN TV e8E FRILZ ENdH
Do WMEMRBUE, ~vA¥— 77 Nk, A7 PRGREEETER SN AT v 72T
2 FIEHLE B 2 i 72 72 6D 122, 000, 758K R/L (20244F 4 A30H : 2,822,476k R/L) Y D&% 4y
BEDBEA~THIT TV D,

YRS = Ty NiE, RTHETCAMAEIC LS & dimE BN A E IR 22 S & AR 5 2

— 101 —



M THDLHOTCHBIO/ EIFPRIEREECTERIND h—F L - U X —1 « 2T v T % ik
TLZENDD, vAE— - T 7 R, BEIOMG Lo TWDHElEES. R EITEOfMmo4e
AEEED h—H L« U H—2 N MREAES % LD E13 TR 550 %, BTS2 6 K0
BT H0, FEBEMHTEFICKLNET), OTCEBIO/ F3hRiEHEBETER SIS b
— e U E = ATy KN, PNE U TSR E Y — B R T ITEA T HEE DS ORG-S
WTHA BRSNS, BEjE, OTC h—%/ - UZ—r « AU v TR D REHHEZE LT
FrhEns, FREFEEECERSNS b= VZ—r « AT 7O H L OEE &L, PRIER
BB U CRiF S, — T BOIRBEGT R T B 2 A EhariLe: & LT, REBERENE EXh
Do XINNOZEEIITIANT, EHRBEHEE LRI EENRD, —EDOTCB I/ i3 kig
BB CIHERSND b—F )b« VX —2 « AU T8ENT, FTH B OEMNE TN R85, 2
NHDAY » TN 25 XL, BRIOFBEIZESWTRET D, 77 XiE, &FOFRF]
IR B DHVMIHRGR & 72> TV DHRER E T2 TR Ol O T, T2 BRI 2 ka2 e
WVATREME, FE 7 IXRRMF I BMEGS RNBITICH D vIRetElic L0 . EHY A7 £3diH Y 271286
ENDZENDHD, 77 AN, BEKETH IV A7 PO L RKRERY 2713, BEONEMiEH
W2, YV RAZE, OTC =& UH =2« AT v TEHCPEHL T AX— « 77 RIRE
BIFHFES L OB T~ A X — R AR T2 LICk > T, E-PRGEHEE THRIND b—#
e D H—2 e ATy TN L TR EE 0 2 T 5 Z LIk TEBT 52 LN TS,
POLERMBE TR SRS b—& L« U X —r « 2T v 78T, EREBE O BNMEBRBITICH
ST EIITIEREEE (7 ) 7 U > 70 ) BRRARZRE S L O OMOEIRERIET D720,
IR DEBIET U A7 I3KERICIZ 5 Cnd, HEY 2713, MBOREFEZICBWTR
WMENTWHEHE LR ZEnd 5.

YAL— - T7 NI OTCBI/ EIFFIEEMETHER SN 7 LYy h - T 7L b
BRIZREAET DD DD, OTCBIOPIIEREETIER SN LYy b« 7740 MK
BWC, Yr77va ryOBEWFEL, NI, ZREEOCSREB L2137 X TOZDOMODFRIED
EHIZONT, 7Yy b T 740 MEEPEAE LBRICEROR AN EZZHET D220 5
RV, BBIHEFESFTHL T 0T 7> a 05 FICKH LT, BHNRHWEIT), 7LV k-
T 740 MERIT, ZOCEAEOLDOTH L0, E, WO RETT, VAN Z7F¥x V7B E
MEBE DM EREE a2 W55, OTCZ LYy kT 740 MIZHONWT, vRAZ— -+ T 7
VRBRZHELICHAEIL, v A ¥ — - 77 ROIEEICAE L LR EEnb, vAZ— - 77 K
WK TR EIE, v~ A X —« 77 RORBICEEL LTEFEan%, hRiERmEEcER SR
H7VYy N T TN ATy TEENX, ALY LI T ARG YEFMOINERE, o
TV arOBEVWERXOTEY Tk U CREROHER 2424t U, ZBEhEELE O AW X 0 g
HEZ B U CREESND, YAX— 77 RICEKD0TCRIVHPRFEREBBECTHERINL 7 LY
v N o T 7 b NN T D ETHAAE T EIR R SREOZHEE L O W, BOOEH A 72
IR TRICEBELG E LGt EEN D, OTCR IO RIERMETHER SN LYy - T 7%
v NERGIE, ST L TS RR E Y — B R E T E DD ORGSOV T H 2 RV E D,
OTCZ LYy kT 74/ NEKOFHRBEDOLE T, REFRBE L LCEFEIND, FRIIEH R
THRINDZ LYy b« T 740 MEKOR 2 OB 1%, — KBNS MBORIEFH R EIZ BT 5 £ H)
ARG & U, REBHERNG Laid, ERFRRAR, SRERE O & A FEMEO 2460 b i

— 102 —



B DB Z PER U 7o efins, FBBREE LTt Eand, 77 o X bla, EHEHRRBAERO
URAZ L LT, SREEE I BERAMESD L < ITBROMBEB N AFNCEE L-HE, v A
H— e 77V KRB, ZORT Y a ik, TORICSRIEE ZEA LTI25E Offikk & [F Uit © F( 2
TERWAREMERH D L WO iU A7 IS TnDd, —EDORIIZBNT, ~A¥— 77 R
i, ZOHREKY 27 BT D701, ZNHDY A7 2% T 50T CELOHRIEREE CEH
ENDIZ VLV y b T 740V N ERET DN D, HEY 271%, MECREEFHREICB N T
RSN TWD ez LR ZENd D, 77 AN, Fu7ryaro) FEid7ns s va
YOBNWFOWTNE LT, BEBHETFH Y 27 b bR KERY 27 1%, BN IEMEICAEY
T 5, YU AZZ, OTCZ VLV vy b« T 740 MICHAL T~ AZ —« 77 RBABRBIHEFES
LD T~ AX — BN ERHRET D LICL > T, P RIEREEBECER SN Z LYy b o T
7 4V RN L CEEREL G A A A BT H Z LI X o T 5 2 LN TE 5D, FRIEHEIER
THERINDZ LYy b - 7740 FREIT, [EREBE O B OMES NBITICHE - 72358 I 3TE A
B (7 U7V gR) BPRIHATRERE SR L O OMOEREZIRIET D72, ZAUTRDESIHH
FHIRAZFEIHITEBINTND, YAF— - Ty BRI a7 7 ar0R)FTHLIGE, B
FERNZ~ AL — « 7 7 2 KPR D2 T UL e B WK O T, BETARIZE LV, @5
KBUE, ~AZ— 77 NI, A—7 R iggRgEAcERENL 7 LYy b - T 740 MK
AR DRI A A 24 729772121, 099, 534K KL (202444 H30H : 1,081, 072k K/v) FHY D BL4:
Z oy BE N EATRIT T D,

ATy TEENCET DR IE, BRIORMEITIES W TRAET 5, WESNEAT v 72T S
KT L ORILEIT, WMBCURIEEHRFICIW T, k48 U TAEAE CRIE Sh 5 SR E £ 7o
FEMAEOHBICERREND, 7 VAT 0 TRINAR S T JORER BRI, Bz E L TA
IEAfE THIE S 15 @@ R L OV RAE I26R 2 ZEMAIGE - (K B L ORISR (GRK)
DA EHEND,

—EDOBRPELZ A 7 ORBEITCARIT, MBORIEFH R EIZFEMR S D 8 & O ik o 2% 0 B A ik
T HMR, InbiX, BEET MRSy v 2 T — OB FE IIRE N OBATAIE M E X9 L B FR
RET, ST BV A FTHME Y AT DT 7 ADZT AR—Vr —EFKR LR
W, FURT 0 TR, TS AR £ 71X ORRORMICEE T A AL — FoEENC X - T,
AR (BRE) TR (A 12/ d, AREIEARZR, FoT U AT « 74fpEih o328
OMFEETIIMETARIT., T72bb, T VAT 4 7TEMEER L OARBOATEMERLETH D | KT,
FILLEHTHZEnD D,

HE5  Bid
VAL — T 7 RiE, TA S EBUSNOEE FICARLM L 5 FERICL o TRITS AT
HERICHRET S, TRODOHENEDELIE, FY XL FA UBICHTABEEAEL, 77 AD
L0 RIEEEFICH LGRS D Z L 03D 5,

—MRENS, SAAEBEERIT, b LT, DU SRS D, W< ODREDEE T,
INHDOFYEH - A URIT, BOEELETIRET 2 Z ENERSI L, 6o T, HEBiaIE,

— 103 —



VAL — Ty ROT a—h—IZ Lo TRRBUINAR— A THEEREND Z &7,

I ASE12% NEANFTERL IZHE-> T, 77 R AMETRELEZS Y EX L - A 2O T,
SMEDOFBHEIZIE SO THBEB ST DN D Z L RHETH HHE (7272 L, BB Y RN T T
DOFRFELIORREZ +SICHEEL TWD Z EEFIEE T 5, ) MBUES 25385 L2 T2 6720,
Z LT, HEMRE Tl A EZIEFEENICEHA STV ABUERS TOBEZ AW T, B R
XN D THAH ) PESFEE L TCOMBUEENIE SN D, MBUEESRENIZT 7 o X2k -
TSHADOND ME NN OWTE, REERERRGAEN B D, LIz > T, REEFERRMBEEZRET 512
bizoT, BEMEIL, TORERT, YEBELROEREITIEARXRER 2 G, XEICEELY
H25THAHEEZLNDTRTOMEREELS LORIZOWTIRFT 5,

20254F- 4 A30H B L U20244- 4 A30AHIE, 77 o Xt AAEF Y XL - A VBICHET A EE
MORFEERIBUEBDORY > a v 2 H L TWRhoT,

6 ZIEEAR L OVE R ATRERZ iiE5

20254F 4 A 30 H 35 L U20244 4 H30H OEWIRBIE, ~ A ¥ — « 77 NI, BITARERY T A
SZRAFEBIOY T A 1 ZSFAHEEFTA LT\, BEHAHENPREDRVIRY . 7 T 2 SZIFIE
FOLBYIFARHIABALILZI00 0 TH Y | Z DB OZASTERORALHFIABMIZION TH S (72720, X4
WK E BFAIL, 50, 000K RV E 7 IXBhET 2 FIABE I 248 LT 5, ) . BB
WEDRVIRY | MPEEICBT D7 T A 1 sk F O AR IARALILL, 000, 000, 4 HI AL E
SERADOKEEILL0, 000, 000K RV TH Y, £, TDHD 7 T A 1 %45 5EH D BAKHIABALIX10, 000 1
Thod, BHESLOEDIZEY, 7T A 1 ZEFEHR~O LY ESEOMEIT, HIKTH50,000k
WTHD,

T 4—H— 77 NI, EHIREARZRASF LA T D, BZWGERIL, 74 —F— - T7 R
BT D RAS D% WL TSR T D, A—TNAT T2 UIFTv R QUF 74 —=F—T57
ROZFEEM) Lo, ) 1, BHAHOBERICLY ., @07 7 ABL/ £13v ) —X%22H
L ORISR EEREBLORITL, 27 ABLO/ £33V Y —XOZEFEENMLO 7 7 AR &
O/ FF V) —ROZ AR EESTZ DD LT D HERRET DHEREAGT D, 74—%—+ 77
YRIEBIE, v RE— - T U RO T ASKIFHFOREE TH D, 7T R JZFFHRE T T A
MZZIRFESR D 2 T D 7 T AZRAFHRERA LT D, 7 T AMZIEIEARIT, 3.25%% LR E 35 H
IATFECBIA TR D, BEATFEE UUF ICDSCJ Evd, ) TR, 7T X ] %3R5
. HIAFECEHIRE S 720 ARG 5AFEUNIZZRFESE DN HR SN D 5613, 4.00%% 1
[REFTHCDSCH|EDLND, FHESHPIREDRVIRY, 77 A 25 (CDSC) BX
W T AMZERES O LR AR A BALIZ3000 TH Y . T DB OKEHARAMIZION TH D,

ZNEND 7 7 ZAOMBEMBUT, FFE7 7 AZRIAEF OB R ARESINZIEHEI: ORAE IIRE T
HAUEPEZ %Y 7 T ADFATH HIR WTRER AR D AR TR LTRSS, 77 » XOHEEIC
o T, BITBLUCHEHR LD ODZIFAES 1 47 0 Mg EMR 2 IRET 2 BT, KERT T =
U, ERE S (i) ICFE#E SRl TR X IS SWCEM SN D, BR ATRES N SRR DT

— 104 —



FOER LIk 2B L OSHAEIL. BRSNS A ORAF IIRE T 2 Mg EL TR
HiIZBFAE® L LTERRINTND, 74 —F— - 77 FNiX, —BOIC, ZBEDT 1 —F— -
77 RIZxT 2R 0505 (—IZER, ) I, TRNENDT 4 —F— « 7 7 ROME EMEE
DFFFNEICE LWBS CTHETHRN 228 IRt 2, Billatt, ARTFIRFHITHET
Z OMOFEHESHEORBENIL, BHRIO R WEZIRIERICKT D HIAL A ELR T 2R Z - L T
Do 74— H— 77 RII RAFOTEECERET Z N TEHHEREAREZ AL HBITLTEY
GRIAE S LTHOBINTWD, BREARBZSIERIL, MEMRIEICZEEN T 7 o TR LT
AR 2 BRTHER AT L2 GBI, 7 7 AN ) REERSHECTRA SN D,

TRUEEICBT D2 ASRERIGIT, UFD LY ThoT,

VAH— e T 7R

7T AS 77 A1
20254 20244F 20254F 20244F
4 H30H 4 H30H 4 H30H 4 H30H
HIE RBATH 2 A Al 5 29, 555, 216 35, 285, 540 1,086 1,086
SRR FEAT 113, 147 35, 352 — —
ZASRESR E R L (3, 388, 799) (5, 765, 676) — —
HIRFEAT I 52 kAl 55 26, 279, 564 29, 555, 216 1, 086 1, 086
TA—H—= e T 7R
7 T7A] 7 7 AM
20254 20244F 20254F 20244F
4 H30H 4 H30H 4 H30H 4 H30H
B FATHE S Al 55 28, 060, 385 33, 299, 130 11,710,015 13, 612, 990
ZARRESFAT — — 219, 610 174, 980
2R E R L (2, 852, 946) (5, 238, 745) (1,239, 398) (2,077, 955)
HIRFAT W S Ak AlE S 25, 207, 439 28, 060, 385 10, 690, 227 11,710, 015

20254F 4 AB0REBIE, 74 —&— - 77 RO T A JZKGEHREB L7 7 AM SRR O E R A]
BB AR IE, 1 A OIEHEY FE THHHEEZD100%RA LTz (20244F : 100%) , 20254F 4
H30RBIE, ~AHX—+ 772 ROV T ASZIRAMFOERTREZISRIT, 7 —F—- T 7K
M100%IRA LTz (20244F : 100%) , 202544 H30HHIAE, ~AX—+« 77 FDJ7 T A 1%
AEFR O H R FREZ A AE AR 1T, BRSO B 23100% A L Tz (20244 1 100%)

ET7 i

LA T A oEIEL, FHSEOKEICI Y Y LW SR KO T, W
HHIRIE, ~AF— 77 ROT T ASZIEFEFICL » TR bi =434 %, 8, 080, 458K K
JVETIISAREEA 1T Y4720 0.29102K R/ (20244 @ 9,315,803k ROV E /-3 ZRiEE 1 04720
0.2872k Kv) Thot-, MEMKIE, 77 A 1 ZKEFICK > T bR oE AT -7

— 1056 —



(20244F - 72 L) .

WEBRBUE, 74 —X— 77 FDI T A JZEFHFB L O 7 AMZEFHFIC L - Thb
T rBlald, EAE 5, 381, 203K RV ETITZ AR R 1 12720 0. 204K RV (20244 : 6, 276, 615
K RVFETIIZAERASR 1 0H7200. 204K RV) 8L 02, 678, 729K RV E - X%l Ak 1 14720
0.24Kk F/L (20244F : 3,028, 542K RV FE 2 IXZasalbsx 1 N 47200. 24Kk Fv) Thote, 74 —4
— - 77V RInb ORI, AR (R HEHECBVWT, MEEH L L GRESh TV,

W8 AplpEMLIcBEH TS Y Ry
77 R, FORBE I EEEK, VR HREB IO Y A7 FHERIC OV THREIC L
WETA RTA 2R LTWD, 77 AONIEAME TRIE SN2 8REER L OEmAmET, LIT
DB Z G~ AZ — « 77 RO TR STV D,

- e ERIMTRES: . AEFIAEER S £ ORr il & & Lo R E A e

- RS E O L LB OGERL S - EZRE B LU OfhoE S5

- Bla s L OVEII A Al AE S

AL — e T 7 ROBEIFENSAELL8F ) A7 BIOER ) A7 2 EHTH-DICv A X
— - Ty U RPERET DT U AT 0 THGI

(a) thiftitg ) 22

IBER 22 A5 2 BRI I 2 2 BEIE O FHTIXE BRSO BN Th 2 — 7. MaZHRIE A il 7 2 PRiE
R0, HERIT, BREOKREELITTANTERI RERH D, E> T, FREFRIL, 77 X
KLTREY A7 HZRAIRBNRDLH00E ) DEBERS BT 2 0B R H 5,

7y R, G Y A7 (MGl Y 27 @RV A7 BIOERY 27 25T, ) | EMEY X
IBIOVERERIEBREIT) AZICE6E8NTWDS, 77 A0 U A7 EHIKHEILZ, S0 & 1
DY AT DT 5 2 @SB 2T Z1T O 2 L bk D, BHASME, ZhbozhTh
DY RAY ZEHRT L7720 EZEHOICHEL, Zno0ZENZEND Y A7 OEHIFEHIOWTA
BHLTBY, ZORAFRIIUTOLEBYERNIND, ZhbOHEHI, RAUBHEHOH EH» 6 FEMWIZ
EHEIN TR,

%Y A7 1%, RAERMEHOFEROMB A A E TCHLZENbELELTALS, 2L, 77
Y ADMEBOEE A OFERCHE TG SN2 T X CTORIMICEE L KIE T ERIC X HMEE
BOREIC~Y—7 v b« ROV a v z2RTIENLAEL I DWENRBRERT, FHALZ, A1l
AER IS L OVE OO @G dn 2 K E ORI TR T 2 Z & 2B LT, 7 7 » AOKRE H BITHEEHY)
WD — 5T, FrEDEFE T IFEETMNCEE T 5 U X7 ZRAKRICIZ 2720127 7 o AOEFERL
SEBET S, £i2. HiBY A 213 77 o RSk TR SN DT U ST ¢ 78K 258 U T ER
IR S LD, BEESHIE, ~AX— - 77 RO A7 L EBLIZ, TOEHABENED b
vFw—0 & FREBY ATIZONTHLHIET D,

— 106 —



BEOHR FIZEW L, FRESHE, O3B ¥ —FnEHIT, vRZ— - 77 FOMERE
D15%~65% 2 BET 2, KEBUTI L OBREEEEM  KIEBUFE 3 L OUKIE {3 O 5@k 145 |
A A =)V FERF K EARZE O AT, EERER S m A RER 5 & O ERE R R N7 2 &

To, KELSOEOBIFR L DG S,

WEMRBUE, KEREER~OBEEIL, £83% (20244F : §82%) Th -7,

WEWRIUE, 7V AT 4 THRMR DT 7 ROA AT AR—=Txy—d, TROLEBV TH D,

20254F- 4 H30H 20244F- 4 H30H
B2 T v 7 a LB KELEE) 149, 312, 743% KL 303, 363, 3442k Kv
FBELEFI AT v 7 g VK (RELSK) 86, 775, 800K KL 146, 413, 080K R/L
EtZES DIE S SF 9 M 208 314
TR WESeR) * 18, 188, 140k Kb 19, 080, 892k KL
OTC&E&NAY v FEK (FBETA) —k K 2,210, 581K K/
LS RSB TR S D
SBRNAT o TEHK) (FHETAR) 637, 648, 882K KL 653, 601, 2494 K/
OTC h—HFNY H—r « 2T v TEK
(FEEITLA) 2,234, 186k Kv 4, 355, 452 KL
OTCZ VLY v b T 74/ MK
—BATe T ay (AELA) 5,971, 780k KL 13, 501, 873 F/L
OTCZVL¥v b T 74/ MK
—BHTaT gy (FEETA) 3,917, 464k R L 12, 687, 921 K1
LS RSB TSR S D
TJVLYy b T 7V MK
—HTaT v ay (HETAR) 12, 595, 000k KL 13,010, 000k K /v

* 202544 A30H B L 1U20244 4 AS0HK THIMICBW T, ~AHX— -+ 77 ROMEFELRICE
WTI0%E B2 AL BT ZAR— % =3 o=, FRLSMNT, BET U AT o THEETAIC

Ko THEEDI0NEZ B2 HBE Y A7 OEF TR,

w HAEHMICBWT, 2 X — -« 77 0 Fid, ZBHEAFITTB X OB 726 N E ARG R
34,506, 922k R/ KT, 215,671k RO KEMBEESR L ORI —a B o b 1 iE%& (2024
o A FT2808 U847 b ONTHEE AR A #1564, 247, 937K RVE LT, 232, 754K RV Dk

EMBEEiAE7bRNc2—u Bo b 1 3E5) 2HA L TV,

IR SN TV T RTOREOT U NT 4 720N T OB

B T, AREERARRED FARARICE STV,

B HMBIRIE, BT

20254E 4 H30H 20244F 4 H30H
2T v g VB (KESHH) 255, 000, 0002 KL 490, 800, 000K R/
FERAT g VK (eSS 151, 300, 000 K1 449, 700, 000 KL

— 107 —



FtZES OIE S SE 9 M 300 400

e (W E A %R) 19, 100, 0004 KL 34, 300, 000K KL
OTCAE&HAY v 73K (FHEITLA) 1, 700, 000k K /v 940, 000K KL
BRI TIER SN D

SBRAT v TEE GFRETA) 748, 400, 000k K/ 1,053, 100, 000K KL
OTC h—=HFNLYHF—r« 2T v THL

(FEETTA) 2,400, 000K KL 4, 400, 000k KL
OTCZVLYv b T 74/ MK

(FBETTA) 15, 500, 000 KL 35, 600, 0004 KL
R TR SN D

LYy b e T 74 MK (FRETTA) 11, 600, 0004 KL 8, 000, 000k KL

ok W HIRET R SEERK (RRETCA) OFEHRA F1E8, 900, 000K R/ (20244F : 13, 500, 000K K /L)
Thol,

NYa— T vk URTREE

ANYa—-Tyh- U7 (LLF [VaR] &5, ) oV RZHEZ, —EDORAHFF Iz
THRIEDEHKETORBGIRTHARICHEE LGS, 77 v ROMBEELRICKIT 2 PR KELE BHE
HLDHHbDTHD, VaRFEL L ETHOMEERY Y a VB LOMHBBREZEHET 22 L Tl
EEMEB LY A7 OSHEMEE2BET 5, FatcER SN, BERICESS FETHD, VA7
FETRTOTHEBLOTRTCOREMICES T B LTHET L2 LN TE, VUAZHEZ, 0&DD
URATEEICHENTDLENRTED, Fla~vAY— - 772 NiE, fRAOM ARG Z BRI,
1 HEBERMRE T 299%DEHKEZ B2 20 E THISNDV a REIXRFERZ AEG 5, FH
SfEE. Va RO BAOHTHICIREL CODARMERH LT 77 47 - VA7 ([ RTyx o7
TI—] bW, ) ERELHTOICHE FHEOBEBERET VEFMAT L (20244 : JhE OBEEE
FEFNLEFALE, ) » UTIRENTEZVa ROV X, —HEObLDOT, ~—4 v~ MERER X
OAR—F 74 U A ORI K- TR ORE L & bIcE# L, 7=, MR OIEEho A L 72 5,

WEOTF—ZICLDHE, VaRIiL, 770 XA ZNVAEIFHROELEE N 20N ~—27 v MZE
F2HVA7 « 2V AR=V ¥ —Z AL IROADNRFETH D, VaROBEFOREL, diHY A
7 BROWMEDEBDSAGN, FEROV 27 OEMER TRICERLR2NWZ L ThHhDH, B/rHVaRF
EBXOMESMIT, ERAVaRERIZENDL ZENDHD, 512, 1 HEEMEE L GHESN
7eVaRIZ, 1HDOI BIZRHAELIT~y VEHET L ENHRRVWRY v a v oilif) A7 %2+
CHIE L2, WEHRICBIT AV a ROEENL, —KIZ, 2/ AFR—Vry— RT7T74 V748
KO/ ETEES T AMOHEBARRROKEOEIC L DD TH D, EHSHZEHOF]D20244F 4
H30AKHRTIX, B2V a RFESIOCESMBFM STz, 202544 H30 0 RFA & bl L
7VaRBEIEOKR—F7+VADY A7 GFHOEENL, HBHSMHDZFHTL ) A7 ETNVOEH %K
el T\ 5,

THFRIZ, 2RO EBIOMRO~vAZ— 77 ROV aREZFL TS,

— 108 —



R—b74+ VA N Fv—H g
20254E 4 H30H 0.78 BV AN
20244F 4 H30H 0.98 YA AL

* I CE Bo f AXEEHEES T v A
W AP =T 7 REBEEMDOR T~ — I BT D20, R Fv—7 OV aRBEID
Voa REFEIIER L Ty,

VAL — - T 7 v ROFEBMORMGRE R &K TRERIZBIT DU A7 BRONRIZ, TROLEBY
Thd, VAZHIE, TRERRT T 4 V7 4 (1IEERE) ITES0TWD, 77747« U A
7 (FRRABYO NI vx /25— LIF ITE] 20, ) ) idk, HxOHLr bk KPPV a
VEVARTETAOEFEL G~ M) v AEANT, A= 73 VARV F~—T DU Z—2D
ZO TR REIEEREZLZNET 5,

A—b7x+ U4 N Fw—* REYVDTE
20254E 4 A30H U 27 &5 4.92 0.14 4.85
20244 4 A30H V27 &5 6. 70 0.17 6. 60

* I CE Bo f AXEEHEES T v A

(b) WY 2”7

WEY A7 1%, ARV — RO L - T, SR OAEMEE 2Tk F vy vy a - 7r—
EETDHI R THDH, WESN TV DRGSO ER Te@pEMmIct LT, VAZBEL D,
77V AOEEO L, N—ABELAOBEERTTRASNL TV DD, 7 7 XOMBURER
EEZ, RELBICRVE LWEELZT D WRENR D 5,

HR—RABEET 7 AR -V ¥ — (LEZNOMSHREELZR, ) X, TROLBVTHL, &
MR PE L 13, WD CEMMTRET 2 Z LN TELIRENGEZRL TN D, FTRICBWT, EEE
PEEPEICIIV AL —« 77 ROR— 7+ UAEEONFEMEIE ENTND, BEEEEL IO
AL, TBARYENBLOT U AT 0 7R ORFEHFAMESE N ZEN TN D, FEEZRKIT,
WEY AT BBET 5 FiEE LTRSS,

20254F- 4 H30H OWMEKBAEDOINEY A7

M ot 1 At
EIE *k kv >k kv % R
F—=AKNZ VT - Rv — 2,203, 638 2,203, 638
PR R — 88, 700 88, 700
JFH e R — 12, 659 12, 659
Z—n 5,267, 729 165, 239 5,432, 968

— 109 —



HAH — 179, 951 179, 951
AL A s T T — 127,118 127,118
5, 267, 729 2,777, 305 8, 045, 034
AT =g i &t
AlE *k kv X kv X kv
F—=AKZUT - KL — 1,008, 126 1,008, 126
RN — 42, 750 42, 750
JFH - Rv — 38, 383 38, 383
a2—n — 572,715 572,715
HAH — 903 903
Z=a—U—J R R — 56, 525 56, 525
SNV z— e Ja—F — 104, 970 104, 970
A =T« Jra—F — 100, 614 100, 614
— 1, 924, 986 1, 924, 986
M ot 1 At
i<y X kv X kv X kv
Z—n — 270 270
— 270 270

20244F 4 A30 0 O EHRBUEDIME Y 27
M ik At
BRE K R K R K R
F—=AKZ VT« Fv — 1,949, 871 1,949, 871
R — 15, 779 15, 779
JFH e v — 95, 710 95, 710
Fxza - 3t — 242 242
a2—n 5,812, 617 674,016 6, 486, 633
—a—vY—7 K Ku — 21, 454 21, 454
IV = e Jm— — 195, 240 195, 240
HEY + — 3, 942 3, 942
AT z—FT 2« Jua—F — 128, 186 128, 186
5,812, 617 3, 084, 440 8, 897, 057
M g1 At
Al K Fov *k kv ) kv
F—=AKZ VT« Bv — 784, 676 784, 676
TIIN e LTI — 994 994

— 110 —



WA R - 34, 427 34, 427

JFH - v — 9,926 9,926
FU R — 1,375 1,375
HETE (A a7r) — 4,071 4,071
oL T - Y — 2, 441 2, 441
aZ—n — 595, 119 595, 119
N AV — T 5V b — 18, 372 18, 372
A2 K pE— — 6, 072 6,072
AARATITI)» b — 25, 582 25, 582
HAH — 116, 655 116, 655
~b—=v7 ¥y b - 16, 488 16, 488
Ao~y — 10, 424 10, 424
—a—Y—J K- KV — 11, 789 11, 789
N—=F K AU%T 4 — 9,007 9,007
UHR—=IL s FL — 23, 347 23, 347
H7T 708 TR — 16, 089 16, 089
AL A TTF — 41, 038 41, 038
B A o R—= — 32,020 32,020

— 1,759,912 1,759,912

20244F 4 H30H BITE, AMVEFREILR o T,

(c) &MY =7

MY 27 0%, HiHeR ORI L5, SR ONIEMEE 7ZI3fFkF v v a - 7r—0%H)
VA7 LEFZMNTOND, Bk A713, REMEEZIZFRF v v 2 - 7o =0 eRAE)IC R
ShDempEm»bE L5, AMAMRESRE. RMAMRESRICH AT, S&MEBICH 5 BISE MK
WS, —RRICHIEID MRV, v A — - 7 7 ROSREE#ERS L O@RAEOKRESIE, ZEFIfHE
BRZTh o, FHSAOBERTIE, YikEnid, @FIEBNST 2SI —BRAITER0s, —K
DEF LY b EFEND IV ETATHERBNG AT, TS TR0 2 LR H 5. KIS, KB
T, FIME T LS8 —RISFHEREA I Ly, @RIOEEITE, v~ AF— - T 7
R NEENFIAT B A MRES 2> 515 2 B IGR O B B SIS B2 52 5,

INA o A=)V REERY A7

VAL — e T 7V RIE, A—T A —RIZL DR Baa SUTELIES&PIZLH&AH1T23BB
B—LUIF (2 vy M) 720 g - A — L R EShd, ) OREEFMRERICRET
Do ZAUD TN I NGES: & AT SHL, RIS, BRSO EMREREE L T D < DIRA
DFHLNDH— T, B OEMAESE XTI EOWITEARY A7 BLOFIREY A7 (Y43%A s
FITEHEDOEBRIBITETIIBEO A BT, ) ZNIEL, £ RRIFRUDB MR EZITEEH L
TWDRFHIEIRRC, ) MM ZEEED LV &, FIE D SRR ORE & & BICEBT 5720, FrEDIL
NKIEPRRFES LD & D TIEARV, TV DIRIEST A« A —)v REEFIMFESRIL, —a9 72K 4ED

— 111 —



BHEENIR LTRSS T 2 @A O MFES & T, (FARICERIZINC L5508 62T 503,)
EAE) (BLORERERBL) | E¥B LUEEDEYREREMER S THiGIcE N TRMmISNT
WHEME (BAEL TOD RIS, ) 2 X0 IRHEIRICKRS 2 mIcH 5, wEIS, —EORILT
T RROEN £ 7238 O EFIC X - T SEAMRESRORITH MEB RBITICHD 77— A0 A,
[FERDFREDN, TR, FHTEW L ALy DRINTTZFATE IR Z 27 ietEn & 5,

XY A

YAL— 77 RBRA LTV AEBEIESORBITEIL, FHCERMET L TWAREENCIE, 5
ZRAT D FE ISR MRS ) LTS 9 RE AR ZHIRAMEET 22 &N TED, vRAH
— 77V R DL RAAREGGFEORETHEETHZENTET, vAX— - 77 FOILA
WL, ~AF— Ty FRTVLIT LEXL> TWEHAIIIINERY ZenbDb, o~
AL — Ty v RiE, W SNTERMEICH T 2 8RORTIC L2 BEEZEOEVWI L H D,
ZO—T, @fo ERIE, WIRAMEEDOREL TRISH TV LD bELNICIEDL LR H D,
THUFEE L, ST AMREEON TR A EIZ L, SFEBICT ARISE A mD, v AL — -
77 v ROMEEMEBOEENMEZ D 5, WIRAMER Y X7 2089 AMEERIT, —&Iic, SFMET
L TCWAEEITITRIZE 215 5 ATRetE MK < 72 0 . R B L TV ASEEITITHKLE W 5 Tt &
{725,

LIFOFIT, MBCREEFIREEICKS T 28 A Tolisnzef 7 rn 7 7 A LEaR LTV,

SR 27 20254 4 H30H

1 A i 1~ 54 54EH SRR it

Kk Rov Kk Kov Kk R Kk kv Kk Rov
B
T a—h—Hs — — — 3, 100, 292 3, 100, 292
Blak L OB MY 10,671, 191 — — 149, 721 10, 820, 912
PR D O EE A MFER D FEH) - - - 5,772,737 5,772,737
PYE RSB TR SN AT v
FHNAR D AU BFEAL 4 131, 703 — — — 131, 703
AU A B — — — 71, 750 71, 750
RILFLEF & O DM AL 4 - - - 2,075, 368 2,075, 368
AW U CTATEMET
HIE S h b e E 35, 158, 191 60, 614, 565 137, 049, 389 217, 588 233, 039, 733
EIEAT 45, 961, 085 60, 614, 565 137, 049, 389 11, 387, 456 255, 012, 495
Al
78— —~DRG — — — 13,834 13,834
PR D DOFREAAGRESR DIEA — — — 41, 057, 000 41, 057, 000
RIBEFFD DZIRFEHOER L — — — 159, 106 159, 106
HIUE R CER SN DAY v
BLHNAR D ARALDAE B ZEL A 28, 290 — — — 28, 290
BEDOT VT 4 TEKNARD
R, RRmRAGAH 32,010 284, 674 1,974, 000 — 2, 290, 684
AL B A — — — 233, 068 233, 068
RILRE B K OE B G R AT — — — 78, 242 78, 242

— 112 —



F D DAL — — — 558, 861 558, 861

5% U CAEMET
HWE S5 emAE 625, 994 615, 691 8, 342, 789 551, 367 10, 135, 841
A (HEHESZASAESR D
RAZIRBT D MEEEZRL, ) 686, 294 900, 365 10, 316, 789 42, 651, 478 54, 554, 926
&MY A7 20244 4 A30H

AR 1~54 5 4F R &3t

K Fv K Fv K R K Fv % kv
& e
7 a— i —TEA& - — - 3,903, 548 3,903, 548
Bl L OBL& SN 25, 341, 954 — — 137, 169 25,479, 123
R D OB RES DO FEA] — — — 17, 774, 399 17, 774, 399
SERFNAR D AR B FELE 104, 384 — — — 104, 384
FRILF BB £ O Do FRIL4: — — — 1, 798, 646 1,798, 646
A& U CALMET
HWE S b eEiErE 44, 776, 747 50, 938, 818 169, 705, 262 322, 311 265, 743, 138
BREAGH 70, 223, 085 50, 938, 818 169, 705, 262 23, 936, 073 314, 803, 238
i
7 a—h— DR - — - 13,504 13, 504
R D OFE A MRESR DIEA — — — 73, 892, 650 73, 892, 650
R DA DOEE L — — — 189, 719 189, 719
PG EEE CIER SN DAY v
BHNAR D ARALDZE B FEML A 253, 213 — — — 253,213
BEDT VST 4 TN D
LR, REMAEAGEE — 413, 431 1,967, 537 — 2, 380, 968
AL PR - — — 639, 703 639, 703
HRAILRE F6 L OVE PR A TR — — — 96, 039 96, 039
Z DOt RIE - - — 382, 793 382, 793
A% U CATAMET
HIE X5 SRl 553, 633 1,953, 901 23, 357, 020 167, 847 26, 032, 401
AEF (HRATRESZASIER D
A IRET 2MEPEL RS, ) 806, 846 2, 367, 332 25, 324, 557 75, 382, 255 103, 880, 990

A= AR s AHE =Ty — (GFIRT » TROOWAMRBBER, ) 11, LRICHRSH
TB, GRIRT Y TR, BRI 22 L EHT 5 Tk L LTRSS,

20254E 4 H30H 20244F 4 30 H
= HUFILE. * v K RL
Bl X OVBLe S M ™ 1,639, 927 2,191, 960
AL
S A U CAEANE CHIE S 4L 5 EBRES 12, 486, 034 8, 864, 549
&t 14, 125, 961 11, 056, 509

* 20254E 4 H30H B LTUN20244E 4 A0 THIMIZBWT, ~AX—« 77 v FOBEBITIRIC T
HEEEFRIZE S OZEF BT /80 o T2,

— 113 —



(d) wmEhtE) =27

WEWEY 2713, 77  ARERMABOBBBITEG 21T 2 Z LR RV X702 LT
oo, 77 ADTMERIT, WEFRNEHERLET DXAMAEFOER L TH D, Mk S Afk
HE TSI SN THRY, OTCT IUNT 4 78N HNT I N2 T~ A X — « 77 ROERNE
inld, FBEBRNETHLE008H D, TOMEP, v AF— 77 NI, HEpLICERELTWD
AEFD—H % . B LB A 7o 9720, RITRE DFATIROE M DA T 70 & DRFE DFZITKS
JET DT DI NIEEICITWVERE T, EHICHE TS RWATRENERN H 5,

TRENME U 27 OB E -3/ MET DMEND D LR ENTEHE. WERAMICERENT
WhHEBD, FHESMMT, mEMERELS, FTHRERIERICEVEFT LI OR— 753V FDRY
varERYET, BERSEZRETD,

77 ROEE TS T, FEESHIEL, M7 7 o XOWREWER Y g VR ERT 5, H
RARESZ AL 1T, RAEDEEOFERTEHRT ZENTE D, L, 2D O —AICR
HENT - BEMIOICRET 5700, BIREN TN EOMMINEEOX vy v 2 - Ty b7 a—
ERETHLOE LT THEL TR,

PUTFoFRIT, MBOIREEFHEEH 2 52K A £ TOERMAHMICESN T, 4T 2 I L i
7V ADEER L CABEELZSEL THON LTV D, RICEBT5881%, 2 LOFGI2TnZgn
)V\\/‘T/:’— * 7m”—w6&)50

HEMEY 27 20254F 4 H30H

1ARE 1~32A 3mARE At

K Rv K Rv X kv * Kv
BREA T 42,176,017 8,182,986 204, 653, 492 255,012, 495
Ak
T a— = ~DRIAE 13, 834 — — 13, 834
R D ORE A MFESR OREA 8,028,681 33,028,319 — 41, 057, 000
RFEHRDOZIFEFDOHERE L 159, 106 — — 159, 106
SEERKINTAR D AR EBREIL S 28, 290 — — 28, 290
FEDT VST 4 TR D
A, IREMREAmAE — — 2, 290, 684 2, 290, 684
AL EE R 233, 068 — — 233, 068
FRIVRE I L OVE BB ARAT 78, 242 — — 78, 242
Z ORI EH 558, 861 — — 558, 861
5% 18 U CAEME T
HIE X5 ek 903 811, 038 9, 323, 900 10, 135, 841
AESE 9,100,985 33,839, 357 11, 614, 584 54, 554, 926

— 114



TEEMEY A 20244 4 H30H

1 22HAKw  1~3M0H 37 H &t

K Fov K Fov K Fov KR
BREGET 74,394,306 14, 593, 048 225, 815, 884 314, 803, 238
Ak
70— —~DKFLE 13, 504 — — 13, 504
RER D ORE A MRESR OIEA 73, 892, 650 — — 73, 892, 650
RFERFDOZIRAFOER L 189, 719 — — 189, 719
HIE R CIER SN D AT v
TERNAR D AL B FEHLE 253,213 — — 253, 213
FeEDT VAT 4 TH AR D
EiEKEX TR K — — 2, 380, 968 2, 380, 968
AL B 639, 703 — — 639, 703
RIRE B L OVE BRF BT AN 96, 039 — — 96, 039
T DM RILEH 382, 793 — — 382, 793
k%18 U CAEME T
HIE Sh 5 Ak 116, 655 488, 676 25, 427, 070 26, 032, 401
AEES 75, 584, 276 488, 676 27, 808, 038 103, 880, 990
(e) B RS

77 RiE, BEMEFESTOGERY A7 &b &, EEERBEITY A7 2A->Tn5, BBlah
TeAAMRERR OB B RIEITY A7 1%, 7o —h— B33 & % % H LT R O A5 H LI A liFEs: o 51
LEITH 2D, HIKRTHDEBZHND, BEARFOIIANE, 7 v — I — NG liGEsR % 81 L 72k
WCORTH, EHLOEDOYFEENMESZIEIT LeWGE, BEIEIMAL L,

77 RE, BHEENERMNTHILEEZ, TSN TWDAEEZ LI T —H— T (—T
— . BTB L OB SN BB EBE 2179 2 LIk > TERY A7 2T 52 L2 LTV
5. TUNT 4 TEINCEETZ U X703 LR, ZORGIHETENMER RNEITICR 5 etttz
TS,

TAL = T 7 ¥ KRBT T LRI O BRERK BIE T 2RO A EMEIL, 23, 458, 980K
KL (20244F : 35,199, 180k K/L) Th 5,

YAL— - T 7 NIRRT, AR & o TR MY 5 Sh e @B EICRE T 5,

F&AT A PELL R
20254F 20244F
4 H30HBIE 4 F30HHALE
AAA/Aaa 16. 30% 13. 15%
AA/Aa 2.92% 2. 47%
ASA 4.56% 1.73%

— 115 —



BBB,/Baa 13. 14% 8. 96%

BB,Ba 18. 32% 18. 32%
B/ B 8.22% 6.07%
CCC/CaaBLOZENLT 2.92% 3.34%
MRS AT 10.57% 12. 40%
Bl& X OF O i 23.05% 33.56%

100. 00% 100. 00%

*  [ERAT) OREREROGEHNELERT 20, HHESMT. [/TRDONERARELN
TWZRWEEOFEMIK L, WEFAEICE ST, MBORKRMNZRET 5, BT, FKEMH
i DBORI AT 2 TS 5720 FATICEY 2 HE ARG REIR T & UVY %R b O ISR 72 FF U
DNTHHT 5,

fEHEEIX, 202544 H30H 3 L 020244F 4 AB0RBIED~ A X — « 7 7 ROME MR L LTHR

RENTWD, BBBELITENLL BT S ESs EHERICOWTIE, A—3 F£iEENn
Plb) id, BEEKERREIND, BT, AXVH—R&TT—R, b—TFT 4 —ABLOT 4 v T
IO LB SN D b MO 2 KB L T\ D, B XN — b7+ U AERER,
REf Of%iE & & HICEEN T 5, BEBLIOZOMMEEX, b LHIUE, A— 7+ U FTHROBE,
TUNRT 4 78 LOERERORH Y = 4 &R,

T 7 U AEDH DL, ML LT 3EF I LD 2520 Ty,

FleT77 o RE, =T 47 - T UNT 4 T, BleB LOBSEMY RO N T m—0—
FRINEI L OZE OMORINBOFEERLEEIHFLFERY A7 b3TWd, 77 ADT 1
T varvig) FELE e T s vayBEVFEOELLNE LTOBRBIHTL U A2 M O KE
KIVRAZIE, TIUNRT 4 TEHOANFEMETH L, ¥ AV, vAX— - 77 REBGIFHTFE)
LD T~ AL —EEPFBREMRET D Z LI L 0B ESnD2, HRiz sz, ~AH— -7
7Y RBRTOT a0 FCHLGA, v AX— 77 v RIFERIICSHL 9 REBTERN 72 i
REFT, YT VAT 4 TR OBEITARIZE L,

VAL — T 7RI, OTCTIUNT 4 TBIVABRRNEZEHTHISDA (HBEAV 7T
VRT 4 THE) ~AX =372 5 NS E—E DS IF T & O Thiks S, FFERZIE (w4
B =) 2R 1GHT— =« Ny JFAEEB L O OMOEEICIE S FEFRE L G| 2 F B9
B~ AN — IR A K DY FHE Th D, ~ A X —HIT, b0 b S EE ORI, 20,
AE. AR, TV P ERBIORMK TICETAGREZEL I ERHDH, vAX— - Ty
Nt SN HR T, v~ A —OFHIHE-> T, —EOBRBIMHFHFICEAL L, 77 v XD
BRI Lo TOBIMETRE SN WD, ~AX— - 772 ROMET, BEIHETHICHT 5 2A
NELEFBEOWTAMNCE Y, BEIFHEFHICSEESND, HET, BlEFkEBUF S LT
BEEAEREIC L » THRIT SN EFFER DI FE I~ A X — - 77 FE X O fRE 2 G M8 75
Ik > TABESNEZOMIEEDOERNRBD LA TS, HEEMEL, ~AX— 77 ROFESI

— 116 —



FHFEHICBTDERRNY Y g AESDWTIRESND, [ SDAVAZ—ZIZEALT, vAHX— -
Ty v RIZHEASNDETERIZ, vAX— - 77 FOMEER, —EOHMICREDRMEE T
[l 572G AR ET D ENH D, BEMTFICHEA SNHK TEHIT, BBIHFFOEYE 138
A DEE L~V FRISZHAICRETDIZERNH D, WINor—2h, BERIC, TOMo
MERIRMKE TEZEIRL, KTYEFOGHNRREICESE, Y%PHK T oA UHRAB X
VCEAOXLZELT X TORREDOT VAT 4 TEBLIOBBERNOELERFE LT R DH, 7
T EBINT D~ AY — 77 ROE—F R IHEEOBSI T HICLDREIX, ~AF—- T 7
Y ROFEROT VNT ¢ TIRENCHR U CHEE 52 D[N d 5.

WEHIRIUE, ~AF— - T7 2 Fid, v AZ=FNESRRFET VAT 4 TRANTHR D IEBR
BfER Y Y 3 %983, 579K KL (20244F : 856, 696K R/L) A LT o, T 5 OIFIMIMIHE THE
AT, v AF— T 7RIk o TRt S 7z RiT. AF1835, 627k F/b (20244 : 673, 191K F)L)
T, RIFORKICBEET 282G 2 8D 5,

VAL — - T7 U ROEREHY A7 OERIL, EEERE NL—T 47 « T UNRT 1 TGO
MDOAT Ly RTh D, ARIZRRRERKONEMBDL0% ARG L, —DDFITH & DR THIR S 4L
TWDH AN, 20254F 4 H30 B OEEWIRBIE, B 4 i & O TRkl L Tun o, ANEfmED
14. 45%\Z & 7= 5 FFAMAA34, 082, 552K R/L (20244F @ #i—F—4F — « Ny JilEd & ORI THER S
TW5, AEMED18. 49%I2 & 7= % FAM%ES1, 299, 986K R/L, EFRBUMFHRY 4 J# & O ThERE <1
TW5, AEMED13. 88%I2 & 7= 5 FEA4E38, 492, 740K KL, BL B o f AfFS & O THifE &
TN D, AFEMIED12. 44%I2 & 7= 5 F-lEES4, 509, 000k Kv) OEKITERL,

Ty U RE T RADOEREER LOCKEOBEK SO —MERA T ARESHOEN Y A7
ELENTWD, RESHE, ~AX— 77 v FOBERGI OO0, IEEB X OTEGER 2179,
T, RESME, v A¥— - 77 U RICHT 2SO O BITH, 77 R T ER, Bise
BLOBIESEMMIARHRE DAY AZICEHEND M, ZIUIRERHNR T 7 Vv X EGE LTk
TN T ERERLBR A T LR NWZ LI KV AL D,

WMEAREOERY AT IHIHRRKOT I AR—T vy —id, FEWMEHERRLE, LTOLEBY 4
FrEhTtung,

20254E 4 H 30 H 20244F- 4 H30H
P Sh O FEYE b B% PRV
Lk %W U CATEMME CHIE S LD
EREPER L OEmA KO
Tl E R B A T RIE S 204, 436, 463 219, 904, 871
LR 22,999, 000 34, 509, 000
T UNT 4 TG 3, 600, 489 6, 885, 584
Bl L OBLE %Y 10, 820, 912 25, 479, 123
P RE B DO E A MRESR DA 5,772, 737 17, 774, 399

— 117 —



RIF B F L OE DMLD AR 4 2, 075, 368 1, 798, 646

7a—h —E4 3, 100, 292 3,903, 548
eI AR D RN BhFERLE — 104, 384
OB R TR SN D

AT TERINAR D AR BhFERLE 131, 703 —

FUNRT 4 TEFET, HFERK, OTCAY vy 7EBHBIOEET LI T L - AU v TV a 3
WXV END, BEDOT VAT 4 TEEIRDER Y A7 ORKE L, ENEHOH 5~ A
H— 77 RO~ AL —EERFERR (ERL S BLOERLD) OfEER, BEEsSh 5,

TAH— T 7 v R, EHREITORENE, EBEABITROT Y AR—T v — EHERBITREO
BEAREZHEHLTERY A7 BXOTFREGHBAZAET 2, REIL, TAGHBRZRET HERIC
IR L OFREDFEROM T &2 E T D, 20254 4 H30H 3 L U20244E 4 A30H BIfE, Z Dfh
DFRTORNAE, 7 v—H =53 HEMHEHE, Biel LOEHEEIT. AAA all EOEHEA
OEBIHFHFTHRAINTEY, 1EMUNIZREIND TETH D, BEHIT, HEHNICEN Lo
BEEBITTOEWVENPEEIFHETRFICH L2, BEHERNEITORREEITE 22N EEZ XL TN5D,
ZOFER, DPDPHRITY AT —« 77 RIZe o TR BEEN W=D, 12200 O FHEEHEK
WZEES SHERFISBESITFRFEH STV,

AT —h e AR =K R T TR hTAR s BhoR=—F, b—FT 4 —RTXk->T, K
IZA a2 (20244E: Aa 3) ORBRFMITEAASGSNZ, S&PTu—v e 40 71F, b—TF 4 —X|T
LoT, MIRIZA 3 (20244F : A 3) DA EFEG SN,

=T e m— 0, AT E ISR R R A VR I A E 7T &, BB A G 1 A e
FENLBRICHRF S, ZHUC KD, EE, FIHATRERBLGEEmOEBORELZELEDH 2 LN T
%o ZHBRIEX, AW OZREIFICE SN TRET D, V=7 - u—iF, REAZEBELT, it
Ou—REFENPOEEINDSZ LIZXVEET 0, b LIEL, thor —REZFOFSO—IC
M (RN=T 4 _X—=a) THZLICEIVEBTLIZENTEDL, YAZ— -« T7 R, v—
VEIFINR=T 4R =a VIIRET G E. T v RiE, v AL — - T 7 U REfED FoR O
NHENV AL —« 77 FIZHTHESEZRBITL2VWT AZIZELE, AT, a—roffy F2n
BEEEZBIT LRV AZICHLE 535,

77 AOEETENAE - T, BESHEIE, MBS T 7 Y ADERAR Y Y 2 Y 2ERT 5.

(f) &@hT Y T ¢ 7

VAL — Ty RE, WEHNERIMRAEEEORNLA— 7+ UV AEADO DT, SR
BETFHERBLOMMLEZRA L, THEH), 28, &RV A7 LFZOMD) 27 &~y P LT
Do T ORI, BHAHENTED LB I OHIBOL & THERASND, ~AX— 77 RiX
WA RIS, L, . A7 a vBEOR T v 7 EEH L, #ERICAE U
AR (K FHEETHmE S,

— 118 —



(g) ATEAMEDFLAEY

@il 7> & £ DO ARINE IS K ONRIL G ORIRG 2 4 2 PEBR U 7o @FHD . ATEMEOBBEIE & A7 S
N5, BREMICE 2&MAMORIEMEIZ, ~ A ¥ — - 77 > FIZBWTAT AT RE 72 HE DL il p i
DEATHHZEN TREROEKN X v v o « 7u—2E5 W TRES b D,

I FRSE7E EFES : BR] OUETIE, v A — - 77 2> FiZxt L, AIEERIE O 435612,
MEICHWN A Ty hOBEENZ T 2ATEMEEt =T X —2 N5 Z L Z2ERLTWVD

AERL TR B R— O&EF I ITAEOMSGME (B (L~r1)

< LoUL 1 OFRGAIR Z BT, EREE 2T AMICEL T, B (Thbblitg) E7oiXmMEn
(Tb BN LIRELIZE D) WThrOBlEn kA 7y b (LLr2)

CEEFTITAMICE LT, BERRTST — XSRS Ty b TRb LB AR
A7k (LUL3)

INTEARERIE 23 AR B S LD N EME e = F 0% — 0D L-Ubid A TEAERE 2 EICBN T
BEEBROIRKBENL DA Ty MIESHWTRESND, ZO7DIT, A 7y b OBEEMEX
INTEAMAERNE SRICRT L CTEE SN D, AEMERIED, BIERATREA 7y MIES< %kiﬁ%ﬂﬁ
EETOBIEFREA 7y FEERAT 556, YEHEIR. LV 3 Th D, AEAMERERKIC
JOREDA Ty NOEEROETEITIE, BEFZITABICREOERZ S [E L1 U’wﬁx%ﬂzéh
Do

[BELETRE ] LT ADENDOPREICIE., 77 v A L ATEEDHMAERINS, 772 T, B8
EA[RE/R T — X L, EBICATARE T, EMMICEME F/2 X EH S, MR H - THRIEERTEEZ:.
MEIN TR, UEHRICEGHICRE G35 LRI L vt sn=mgEsr—2Tth s
LEZTND

FEMAEDS, TER R THHICRB T AMGMKICIES L, TRbE LU VIO E S B RE A MFEA I
I, ESBEESREE, BT CHREI SN TWDET URT 4 7 KEMBEE SIS L O E DK E
VTV MEBREEN G END, AKX — - 772 Nt Uik OGBS 2 1% L2,

JEFE L 1T 72 SNRVTHBGIZB W TG STV DA, MG, 7 ¢ — 7 — 350 £ 72 13815
AHEA 7y MIS & o TEAMT b1 5 O MRS AF I EED W TRl S U 2 @ @hpdiin (X, L-ULb 2025y
Hand, ZHbICIREEKAMERL LORFEOHKE Y 7V AGHER, LGSR ERB LU0 T
CTUNRT 4 TREEND, LUV 2EREAMRESRICIE, HRRTE TR Sh TN LT/ %
TIRRERIRZZ T 2R v a UNEEND D, TORMEIE, — BRI AFTRER TS ERICES
WT, FEFENMER KO E I FRRIE T REME 2 RS IR S ND Z &3 D 5,

IEFE IR TG DFAE LR OERPESL IOV T, v AZ — » 77 U Rid, 8%, §HlisER K OERN

DOFHEL LT RICEO DN HIBICESS NHBERET VEHAT 2 2 030 5, BT
F—=HZFEASNTWRWEERB L RAEICOWTOA 7y MiE, LUL3IIHEEEND,

— 119 —



TFIE, 20254 4 A30 H O MRBITEICAEMME CHE SN~ A Y — -« 77 v ROERNEER
JOEMAEEZAEMEE =TIV —TCoT LI=ETH D,

INTEATE — e e L~yL 1 LUl 2 L~UL 3 e
KR K Rov * Kov K Rv
FE A AT
e ERSRESS
REDT VAT 4 7HKIC
250k, RelEEnEE 1, 974, 000 316, 684 — 2, 290, 684
R fE
B — 156, 484 — 156, 484
— B - —E — 1,014, 750 — 1,014, 750
AETE AT — 770, 396 — 770, 396
TR — — 127,911 — 127,911
4l — 430, 207 — 430, 207
AIVATT — 980, 342 — 980, 342
A a=P — 1,984, 707 — 1,984, 707
NSRBI — 536, 010 — 536,010
Fan-y
BNy — 5, 369, 495 — 5, 369, 495
JEEN) — 2, 849, 947 — 2, 849, 947
W|EV—EA — 3,642, 194 — 3, 642, 194
— WY - —E — 10, 417, 239 — 10, 417, 239
AETE WA i — 2,639, 584 — 2, 639, 584
TR LE— — 6, 754, 790 — 6, 754, 790
4l — 12, 870, 506 — 12, 870, 506
BT — 353, 097 — 353, 097
AIVATT — 3, 131, 022 — 3, 131, 022
FU)mY— — 1, 665, 675 — 1, 665, 675
LITPES — 764, 586 — 764, 586
N F¥ - B — 6, 082, 049 — 6, 082, 049
SMEBURFER LY
S E BUR R B & — 14, 347,076 — 14, 347, 076
BT U Ny TR
BUR R E— 7 —
HIRE B REE — 24, 449, 838 — 24, 449, 838
PEAT— T — ViR — 19, 476, 478 — 19, 476, 478
FEEr — RS — 18, 828, 716 — 18,828, 716
=7 sua—r
BTN — 616, 054 — 616, 054
LN — 1,764, 774 — 1,764, 774

— 120 —



HWE—EX - 739, 172 - 739,172

—REERS - —E R — 3, 114, 141 — 3, 114, 141
TR TR — 640, 069 — 640, 069
T XX — — 639, 711 — 639, 711
At — 241, 151 — 241, 151
~NIVATT - 1,913, 629 — 1,913, 629
Fr)ad— — 2,147, 543 — 2,147, 543
s — 752,934 — 752,934

S G A RS — 33, 448, 065 — 33, 448, 065

KEBEF B L OB R R

T—F— VBB — 30, 484, 437 — 39, 484, 437
REHMGEARE T 1, 974, 000 225, 461, 463 — 227, 435, 463
FUNRT 4T

SEPETH — 217, 588 — 217, 588

FWTLIT A

AT g K — 1, 870, 931 — 1, 870, 931

OTC h—&) -+ JEH—1 -

AT THEK) — 26, 034 — 26, 034

OTCZ VLY |-

7 3V MK — 3,489, 717 — 3,489, 717
T UNRT 4 TEE — 5, 604, 270 — 5, 604, 270
% U CALEME CHIE S 2 &mEESG 233, 039, 733
INTEATE — <l & e UL 1 Ll 2 LUl 3 ozt

¥ Kov ¥ Koy ¥ Kov ¥ Koy

LS — 10, 671, 191 — 10, 671, 191

hE R CER END

ERNAT < TEH — 5,703, 213 — 5,703, 213

LS RSB TR S D

JVL¥y T 74V MK — 497, 853 — 497, 853
INTEATE — 4B 1 L~ L~UL 2 L~UL 3 o5t

KRV K Rov K Rov K Rov
FUNT AT

SEPETH — 551, 367 — 551, 367

ST L IT A

AT T va UHR — 1,407, 144 — 1, 407, 144

OTCZ VLY |-

F 7 4L NEK - 2, 462, 828 — 2, 462, 828
T UNRT 4 TEE - 4,421, 339 — 4,421, 339

T B A58 D EH — 5, 714, 502 — 5, 714, 502
HAE 218 U CAEAMMM CHIE S b it a A st 10, 135, 841

— 121 —



INTEATE — 4B & ULl L~UL 2 Ll 3 &3
K R KR b NI KR
s B TR SN D
GRIAT v TEK) — 4, 386, 102 — 4,386, 102
P /eS| 380, 818 — — 380, 818

INIEARE THIE SR W Z DORIEMED R SN D TR TOZOMOEELS LOARIT, UL

2T END, BEBLUCARON
FERLR 3 BLOERL4 22RO Z &,

FUZOWTIIMBOREEFT B E % . IR IEOREEH IOV T

FFRIT, 20244 4 H30 A OWEHIRBAEICAEME THEShIc~w A X — - 77 v FO&MEES
FOEMAEEZ AEMEE =T VX =TI LR TH D,

INTEATE — e e L~UL 1 LUl 2 LUl 3 o)
>k Kv >k Rov >k Rov >k Rov
& A MFESR -
e ERIFRES:
Ty My TGRS — 1, 646, 769 — 1, 646, 769
FEDT VAT 4 7HHIC
i N 2 R 1, 891, 000 489, 968 — 2, 380, 968
R fE
GRS — 431, 183 — 431,183
—HIEE M - —E X — 1,104, 616 — 1,104,616
AT TR i — 790, 612 — 790, 612
TR — — 195, 392 — 195, 392
A — 173,771 — 173,771
AIVATT — 920, 561 — 920, 561
FU)mY— — 2,128, 330 — 2,128, 330
N ¥ - & — 388, 737 — 388, 737
FEAE
FEARSERS — 4,103, 846 — 4,103, 846
B — 2,615, 085 — 2,615, 085
WEV—EA — 3,004, 073 — 3,004, 073
—MRIEE - —E — 9,491, 675 — 9,491, 675
A T — 2, 778, 743 — 2,778, 743
TR F— — 6, 447, 649 — 6, 447, 649
AR — 5, 789, 366 — 5, 789, 366
AIVATT — 3,021, 443 — 3,021, 443
FU ) aY— — 1, 395, 557 — 1, 395, 557
[TPES — 359, 906 — 359, 906
N ¥ - & — 3, 469, 483 — 3, 469, 483

— 122 —



SHEEFE R L O

S E BUR R B & — 17, 696, 862 — 17, 696, 862
BTV TGRS
HF AR RE £ — o —
HRE B REE — 26, 155, 570 — 26, 155, 570
¥R T —7 — VLS — 10, 801, 079 — 10, 801, 079
FEr— RS — 22, 033, 051 — 22,033, 051
=7 euv—r
SR — 506, 947 — 506, 947
B — 1, 406, 427 — 1, 406, 427
BEY—E A — 553, 530 — 553, 530
— WY - —E — 3, 185, 088 — 3, 185, 088
AT TR i — 326, 927 — 326, 927
TR LE— — 645, 218 — 645, 218
Sl — 490, 371 — 490, 371
AIVATT — 1, 556, 090 — 1, 556, 090
T )aY— — 1, 740, 949 — 1, 740, 949
LITPES — 889, 997 — 889, 997

B E A AlRES: — 41,077, 441 — 41,077, 441

KEBUNF 8 L OBUR R IR

T = UEB RS — 72, 710, 559 — 72,710, 559
EE A ML AF 1, 891, 000 252, 522, 871 — 254, 413, 871
TUNRT 4T

JETEERK — 322,311 — 322,311

T L IT A -

AT T ya — 4,517, 067 — 4,517, 067

OTCZ VLY b -

VAV WIS S| — 6, 489, 889 — 6, 489, 889
T UNT ¢ TEF — 11, 329, 267 — 11, 329, 267
52l U CAEME CRIE S 25 St E a5t 265, 743, 138
INTEATE — <l & e UL 1 Ll 2 LUl 3 ozt

b NI K Ry * Kov * Kov

Bl 0 — 25, 341, 954 — 25, 341, 954

OB R TR SN D

SRIAT » T HK — 7,599, 938 — 7,599, 938

HILE R TR SN D

A A W 7 — 888, 596 — 888, 596

R ES S 647,971 — — 647,971

— 123 —



INTEAMAE — 4l 2 LUl 1 L2 L~L 3 &EF
K R KR b NI KR

FUNT LT

SEIETER — 167, 847 — 167, 847
HWESLIT A -

AT v g UEK — 3,029, 978 — 3,029, 978
OT CAEH AT v 7K — 18, 149 — 18, 149
OTCh—&) s UH—1 -

AT THEK — 248, 658 — 248, 658
OTCZ Vv k-

T 7 x v N EH — 6, 085, 484 — 6, 085, 484
T UNT 4 THE — 9, 550, 116 — 9, 550, 116
T B A58 EHK — 16, 482, 285 — 16, 482, 285
HAE 2 U CAEAMMM CHIE S b et aE A st 26, 032, 401
INTEATE — 4 B 1 L~ L~UL 2 L~UL 3 o5t

K R KR K R KR

BRI TIER SN D

BRIAT T HK — 7, 054, 695 — 7, 054, 695
ﬁ%%ﬁ%%fﬁ%éhé

LTy e F 74 MK — 72, 363 — 72, 363

NIEARE THRIE SN2 W RZ DA EMIENBER SN DT XRTCOZDOMOERER I OAEZ, L~Ub
2B END, BEBLOABEBOWNRIZOWTIIMBOREEHEEL . 70 MEi FEORHilc VT
TEFR 3 BIWNERR4 220z b,

B2 8 U CAEME THRIE S D SR E

20254E 4 A30H 20244F 4 A 30 H
* v ¥R

FEE AR CHRAE SNDER/IERE
&S 10, 671, 191 25, 341, 954
BEHRSRESR 191, 696, 714 210, 955, 462
L AR 22,999, 000 34, 509, 000
KEMBEABRES, EEETEAEER IO
T — b e RN (20244 ¢ KEF S I RE S
BLOa<w—ry L« X—03—) 10, 449, 065 6, 568, 441
FUNRT 4T 5, 604, 270 11, 329, 267
BEEDT U NT ¢ TSR DAL 2,290, 684 2, 380, 968
B8 &8 U CALEME CHIE SN 5 etiE Ea st
(H&Sm % & 1) 243, 710, 924 291, 085, 092

— 124 —



202544 H30H 202444 H30H

X Rov b %
45238 U CAEME THIE S 41D
BRE PE O N EAME D E O OIS :
FBUE A 348, 276 (13, 315, 998)
FREBURLE D) 7,670, 294 13, 857, 033
Flag, (K HFt 8,018, 570 541, 035

(h) BAY X7 EH

HRATREZ AL ORA B ITIRE T DMMEEN, 7 7 Y AOERII DD, 77 X, ZEED
FEHWNIEC TR A BITB IOER LBAThL D720, BRAEZ IR ORAE IRET 2 /&
PEOEFHIT, AARSSEBTLILEND D, 77 ANEEZEMNT L9 A TORBIE, /A
UE—v iRt L, o~ AY— - 77 v FOREEDZ LVIERICT LT 0Bk 5720
2, e EIR L LTI T 2N MR+ 2 2 & icd 5, BT, TOHEICLY, 77X
OEREARW L ERICELWARREZ BT ARENRH D EEZONLIKREOER L ZHIRT 5 Z
LNTE D,

77 AR, BAME Z MR R TITIRR T 5700, BIT RS 5 T#HTH S,

CHBHOFITEBIUHRLOKELZ 1 HO D LICHMEREE BEX DN LEE LI L THERT S Z
L. ROV T 7 AN E R ATRESL A Al R OORA I SHL O Bl ez i+ 5 2 L,

» BRHIFROMER 722 & DN IRARRA AL L O ARHA BN OB/ OWTHEL TV 7 7 o X
DEFRICHER L | ZEFEFHFORR LB L OHRETZITI 2 &,

BEHSEIT, BREZEEFORAH ICHBET O MEEMEICESE, BARZEHAL TVD,

9 R X O H
(a) BERZRFELZLITTHEEYFEE L ORG
B P
77V AOEESIETHLEHESIX, v AX— - T 7V ROBEOHRNG, 7 T A SZIRAERIL
2.00%., 7 7 A 1 ZAEFEHR1%0. 60% % LRR & 9 5 FRMEN 2 2587 2 MR 2 B3 5, 2 H 0% B
X, BHASMOKREICEY, v~ A¥— - 77 U RIZBEET 57 7 A SZIEIEHRICH L TGER SN2
oz, BESHIE, T4 —F— T 7 NOK T T AD ARG PEMAAICKT LT, 74 —F— -
77 NICHEET DZRAFTHD 7 7 A ] Z4RAEFRIEL 60%, 7 7 AMZAEFEZRITL. 00% % EFR &
T DAEUHIN A = fHT D,

ol

N

BHoStT, RGeS tick LT, BHEASAB IO EZCSAOM TEE SN2 . &R
MHXIA S, BARORITHEEOHEMIL. BAROBEIIRTFGESAEHE S X b b, W HRREE,
BEAHIL, IRFESFITK L T2, 493, 349K F/L (20244F : 2,128,207 K L) XA -7,

i

oy

— 126 —



BfE, 74 —%— -« 77 ROAREEMEFEMEE T DB AL (EAS N5 LE A2 5
<) . 7 TR ] RARARITFEEL 80% A A 72\, 7 T AMBEZISTERITFEEL 20% 2 B2 720 & T
HEhb, 202544 A30HHIME, BEASMIE, FRROREASRE BB L LT372,472Kk Fv
(20244F : 319,255 K KL) &7 4 —H— « 77V RIZBWRE LTz, BEItLZ, WO TH, 2005
BRI FELZEE T DHEREAT 5,

R

CAH— e Ty U ROEHEEICESE, CIBCHIET Y e A F—Fvatir - vr .7
YR RFRARM I oR=— (FA4~2) VITY R LUF A& — - 77 ROZiERtE] L
9, ) X, FAF— - T 7 ROBENDL, 22,500k Kz B[R T 28 (BFFAET2 2L
BRI, IEERRBEEKEL DR END R BIE, ZBBFEORERLS, A7 LR Ekx RBAND
WEINDZ LD, ) DXILNEZ T HENEHT D,

DINDHEHINEL, B2 RA L, MEMEmICBRINEND, vAF— - 77 FOZFESIT., v~ A%
— TPV ROEENS, v AX— - T U RIIEE LT RAY— -« 77 ROZHESENAHE L
TRTCOEHRORNIBEEHOLR L E=%1) 5,

T4 —=H = T ROEHMFEICESE, A= N ATz R UIFT v K (T4—F—+T7
Y ROZFESR) F. T4 —F— - T 7 VU ROBEND, KT 4 —F— « T 7 ROARNEIME E
MREELZ % L CTHERO0. 02% % EIR & 2B (7272 L., 4E%E0 ERRIT60, 000K KL E L, FHRIZ15, 000
KRNVET D, ) OIHNNEZTDLHEREET D, 02WMEIE. BAxAEL, WEHEICHRILWE
No, 74 —4— 77 ROZFRIT, 74 —F— - T7 V ROGHENDL, T4 —F—+T7
NIZBE L TT 4 —F— - 77 v ROZFSANAHE LT X TORHENRIBEEHOLRE L 2517
Do

(b) FEBIEFIEIR L DELTI
P R

BT, AT —Fc ARU—h R T TR FTAD s BrR=— (IRESH) TR L
T, YRAE— T 7V ROEEND, v A — -« 77 RO RVEHE FEMARIZ R L THEERO. 10%
ERET D, BHAFEAL, BmABRBLOSND®MENEZ L 5, o, FHESIL, RESHITK LT,
T4 == Ty ROEFENS, 7 4 —F— 77 ROAREEME EMEI T L TR0, 10%
ERETDH, BARAEL, BHBLWINDWMINEZ S 5, B, RESHIISH ) &S
PRSI EHE, &7 7 0 ROBENL XL,

REGEAEE

BRESME, A7 —h ANV —h A~ FTAL B =—-UIFv K (LT 27
—he2RU—1] EWH, ) GIHEMRESH) 277 XT3 ERESTICEm L, FH
SR, FREARBESIC L2 EHER T — RT3 L, 67,500k R/VZ~vAZ— « 77 ROMEHE
AR D30, 0030% & N 2 7=k %E LIRE T 2HWMMAE, ~ A% — 77 ROEEN L FRARBE S
WZ3HA 9, BINAS 724 O EEOWRM S ERA S b, YeZmElix, A xREL, BAKLNT

— 126 —



X, EHEE, FIEARESAHIC ) NSNS EN 2, ~ A X — - 77 RO
PEDDHA S, WHRITIEL, 74 —F— - 77 U FOFEOT ML, FHREMABESAIIH L, FH
#35, 000K /WA A5 Ak R AE i 00 & BLEEBS R 2 N A 7o A 3 O o URLERIEN L, LR RIRE (R
5K) FHRFICBOTRERMICEZENTEBY, A4RAEL, BABRLW T bN S, BB,
RIS ) NS BHNRBEENEZ, 74 —F— - 77 FOBENP LA D,

77 YR AT = s AR = R EORIT, AT — b+ A DU — FO®BH S BEE ST L5
T 58 R ARG T A 2 e H 5, 20254 4 A30H 35 L UN20244F 4 A 30 H & TAEFEIZE
WT, BHHRZOCE>T7 7 V XOBANBA T 2 L3 anotz,

FEHEG AT HMN

BEAHT, T 4N s Gy BT by — (LR EREGRITAM) TR LT, 4%
FREBRITRHOEBEIZE ST, 77 VU ADEEND, v AZ— -« 77 2 NI L TIERH
300, 000k Rv& FIREL, 74 —&—+ 77 RIZBH L CTIEERIT5, 000k Kvz2 TRETSH, Hx
AL, AR NDWMINAE S S, FESE, ARERFEHEITSII L ) & A7
SIEERE, FRTENOT 7 FOBENL XL Z L 2R 5,

Z DD F

SIS, ENTINDO T 7> Fid, RS, EFZ2ETT 00T X TOEM L L ICEEAB LT
IR O, RE FERH =B LOBMEAR IOV TORER L ORI FEE e, i
RIS L < IZZOMOFLE, ZEERBLIORETES LOEBOREM 2z G, ACOERL IV
FREINMNET 22O SO ZH/HT 5,

ENENDOT 72 Rit, thOFERA~OREIZHEE L CTHABLIOCERTEREZ2 ) Z 23
KRENDZEAN DD, FNEFNOT 7 Rid, A—F 7+ U AEGNZEE L THANFER 2 309 =
LERIREINDGENRD D,

L0 T
WHEOPERBNZIBNT, v AX— 7 7 R, &fpginzeE L, efis 20 ERisE T 5720,
~—7y NOEBNC K DB ZRBROY 27 (5 A7) £EIWRGIHEFLFOEBERET (EH
URAZ) #A->T05, EOERLTHIAINTWDERBY, ~A¥— - 77 R, #EE-IE%
DIDFEERE A HZ — 77 FEDOMTRIRFOWEINT 7 4V T 2BMARY A 71235 E
nTns,

Ell @REERS I OSMARR L ICT VAT 4 TEEL L OT VAT 4 7ABEORE
LUTFoFIE, MEHRIBUE, BRREI) D H 5~ A 7 —ZSIRFERK 13RO G & 7o
TWALTIUNRT 47 VREHBLOW LV ARZOMETH H, 22580 iERICHET 2 EEmR5 I, b
Lo, EiL 3 22 Mo 2 &, MBEREOAN L v~ 24— 7 7 FIIMBUREFEEF BV T,
N AL —EGRFRRIORR L 72 5 SR IE & GRAR L 2R L,

— 127 —



202544 H30H

Barclays
Capital Inc.
(clearing
broker)

b NS

Bank of
America N. A

Kk v

Barclays
Bank PLC
Xk Rv

BofA
Securities,
Inc.

X kv

BNP Paribas
X Rv

Citibank
N. A
X kv

BRE -

FUE R CIER S LD
BRIAT v 7TEH) §

OTC =&)L= JH—1

AT TEKx #

OTCZ V¥ b« F74/L K
—RHTuT gkt
OTCZ LYy k-« F74/ MK
—WATaT gkt

FUE R CIER S LD
JLVy ke T 7 AL NRKS

ER /SO

SelERH

BTV IT L AT v a B
L 7R ok

626, 591

3, 850
1, 364 — -

22,999, 000

301, 899

EEAT

5,214 626, 591

22,999, 000

301, 899

A

FUE R CIER S LD
SBRIAT > TEH) §

OTC =&)L= JH—1

AT FEKx #

OTCZ V¥ b« F 740 K
—wHTuT s gk

OTCZ LYy bk« F 74/ K
—WATaT gkt

FUE R CIER S LD
JLVy ke T 7 ALK S

ER /SO

SelERAH

BTV IT L AT v 7 a B

472,812

15, 432 — —

61,178 62,613 -
105,172 — -

329, 806

70, 022
53, 427

afad

181, 782 62,613 494, 888

329, 806

123, 449

SEMETES L O
7Y 57 4 THE A

(176, 568) (45, 144) 131,703

22,999, 000

(27,907)

(123, 449)

Zw/ GEAN) HREFEHEE T

(134, 757) (22, 959) —

22,999, 000

(110, 800)

HlUAE

(41,811) (22, 185) 131,703

(27,907)

(12, 649)

ST DS s s A LR
(TBAZZ 7 5dr) #*

SEHL T D Z IR R
(TBAZZ 7 ) #%

I IS0 IR LR
(ZEAF) PR (TBAZEFG 2 & dr) #*

(134, 757) (22, 959) -

23, 458, 980

(110, 800)

— 128 —



2025%E 4 A30H (H3%)

Citigroup
Global
Markets, Inc

% kv

Deutsche
Bank

Goldman
Sachs

AG International

*k kv

% kv

HSBC
Bank
PLC
kR

JPMorgan
Chase
Bank N. A
K Ry

JPMorgan
Securities
LLC

K Rov

BPE

RSB CIE R s B
SRR v THRK §
OTChr—=%N+ UH—2 -

AT TR #

OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ EK
—HTe T s arx

OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ EK
—WATuT s v gkt

RIS RB CIER S D
LYy b T AR
SeRA §

SelESH

WS L IT A AT v T a UK
L ARk

1,473, 961

50, 599

33,990

6,523
1, 146, 758

g

1,473, 961

50, 599

117,694

2,757

1,153, 281

AfE

RSB CIE R S B
SRR v THRK §
OTChr—=%+ UH—1 -

AT T #

OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ hEK
—BHEITuT I gk #
OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ hEK
—WATuT 7 gkt
RSB CIER S D

VA AN A VI SR
e §

SelESH

WS L IT A AT v T a LB

518,424

176, 575

13,778

21,013

24, 422
566, 625

256, 231

29,071

AfaE

518,424

176, 575

13,778

21,013

591, 047

285, 302

SRGIEIES LU
7 U AT 4 TR

955, 537

(125, 976)

103,916

(18, 256)

562, 234

(284, 521)

ZH GEAN) HERGEHEE T

955, 537

(112, 965)

103,916

562, 234

(284, 521)

HAH

(13,011)

(18, 256)

SCH T DS AR s FH R
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #%

S T DS BB R
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #%

S TS 720 0O SRR
GEAG) AR (TBAZEFG 2 5 ) »*

956, 000

(112, 965)

120, 000

698, 000

(362, 312)

— 129 —



2025%E 4 A30H (H3%)

Merrill
Lynch
International

>k Rov

Mizuho
Capital
Markets LLC
K Rov

Morgan
Stanley &
Co. LLC
K kv

Morgan Stanley
& Co. Inter—
national PLC
K kv

NatWest
Markets

PLC
K Rov

State Street
Bank and
Trust Co

K Rov

BPE

RSB CIE R s B
SRR v THRK §
OTChr—=%+ UH—2 -

AT TR #

OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ EK
—HT e T s a vkt

OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ EK
—WATuT s gkt

RIS RB CIER S D

VA AN A VI SR
SeRA §

SelESH

T L IT A AT v T a LB
U ARk

147,122

37,399

26, 034

198, 599

102, 881

50

gt

147,122

37,399

327,514

50

AfE

RSB CIE R S B
SRR v THRK §
OTChr—=%+ UH—1 -

AT T #

OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ hEK
—BHEITuT I gk #
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ EK
—WATuT gk #

RIE B CIE R S D

VAR AN A E YN S
SeRA §

SelESH

T L IT A AT v T a UK

30, 873

14, 598

5, 823

82, 846
10, 375

123,109

A aE

30, 873

14, 598

99, 044

123,109

SRGIEIES LU
7 U AT 4 TR

116, 249

22,801

228,470

50

(123, 109)

ZH GEAN) HERGEHEE T

116, 249

22,801

(15,971)

(121, 780)

HAH

244, 441

50

(1, 329)

SCH T DS AR s FH R
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #%

S T DS BB R
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #%

S TS 720 0O SRR
GEAG) AR (TBAZEFG 2 5 ) »*

141, 363

32,010

(12,977)

(15,971)

(121, 780)

— 130 —



Toronto— Wells Fargo WestPac

Dominion Bank UBS AG Bank, N.A. Banking Corp. B
202554 A30H (Ho%) b % k Fv kv * kv b SIZ
BRE
HIEREEBE CIER SN D
ERIAT » 7§ - — — — 626, 591
OTCh—=%N-JH—1 -
AT T # - - — — 26, 034

OTCZ VT vy kT 74 /L ALK
—wHT T I g x # — — _ _ _

OTC/ VT v b« F740 NEK
—AT O T 7 gkt — — — — 1, 853, 672

PGB R CIER S LD
JVTy ke T 7 RS — — — — —

P /ES SRS — - — — 781
SElER 404 — — — 217, 588
T L IT A AT v S a LKH — 332, 862 — — 1,870, 931
L 7R ek — — — - 22,999, 000
BREGTET 404 332, 862 — — 27,594, 597
A

HIEREEBE CIER SN D

SRR » T § - — — — 472, 812

OTCh—&)-Jx—r -
AT o TR - - - - -

OTCZ LYy k- F 741 N2
—RHTuT s gk # — — — — 826, 783

OTCZ LYy k- FT74N K
—MAT BT I g # - — — — -

PR CIER SN D
Iy ke T 7 AN - — — — 22,076
FatZES S - — — — 29,071
SElER 86, 660 5, 043 — 683 551, 367
T LIT A AT v g KH — 150, 566 — — 1,407, 144
BEAE 86, 660 155, 609 — 683 3, 309, 253
BRI ER L O
T UNRT ¢ THEEAF (86, 256) 177, 253 — (683) 24, 285, 344
2 GEAN) BREEHE T — 177, 253 — —
HlE (86, 256) — — (683)
A F O IR R

(TBAZZRG & 5 Tr) % — - 143, 311 — 316, 684
SCH FOZ IR IR

(TBAZZRG & 5 Tr) #+* — 200, 000 — — 1, 974, 000
SEALTIE 70 02 IR R — - — — 23, 458, 980

(FEAN) AR (TBAZEF9 & Fdr) *+ — — — — (894, 521)
* b LI, TLITLAERLS, MEBCREFEEDOHI 28 U CTAEME CHIE S5 EREERS

k%

#t

X/ FdemaEicEEnsg,

W BCIRRB R R B O 2@ U CAEME THE SN 2 &MEER L O/ £ iemAaficas th
Do

TEBI DRSS E | FFEDT v —T = HIBMHERP RO 5N D561 H 5,

VAR —EEGRFERNC I EIND (ERL8) .

BRAEPER L OT U AT o THEEOGFOBIBHERIIF RSN TORY, HIRE, RRFOR
KNCBET 2 @B 0HEanH 5,

— 131 —



§ WBUREEHHEEFE L TORG Eand, HAERPRE SN TWRWET B OEBRELeZ &, YR
FKNTER D BHREL A O T2 DI S 2R IT, ERROFIITEENTE LT, BF1392, 920k

INTholz,

202444 H30H

Bank of
America N. A

>k Rov

Barclays Barclays Capital Inc.

Bank PLC
% kv

(clearing broker)

% kv

BofA Securities
Inc.

*k kv

Citibank,
N. A
>k Rov

BPE

OTCEFIRY v FHK* #
UGB RSB CIER S D
SRR v TRK §
OTChr—=%+ UH—1 -

AT T #

OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—FBHITuT I gk #
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74V EK
—MATOT 7 gk i

UGB R CIER S LD

VA AN A I SR
SeRA §

SelETH

T L IT A AT v T g U
L ARk

34,193
746, 240

5,533
95

1, 088, 236

34, 509, 000

24, 394
757,725

BPEAFT

780, 433

b, 628

1,088, 236

34, 509, 000

782,119

Ak

OTCERIAT v FEHKx #
FUE R CIER S LD
ERIAY v THK §
OTChr—=%N+ UH—1 -

AT TR #

OTCZ V¥ b« T 74V hEK
—wHTe T s gk #
OTC/VTy b« F740 MEKY
—AT O T gkt

PUUE R CIER S LD

VA AN A I SR
S §

SElETH

T L IT A AT v T g U

497, 640

13, 229
86, 574

1,274,997

432,928

AEAR

521,914

99, 803

1, 341, 449

432,928

GRS L O
7 8T 4 AR

258,519

(94, 175)

(253, 213)

34, 509, 000

349, 191

%M/ GEAN) HREFEHEE T

76, 537

34, 509, 000

283, 331

HAH

181,982

(94, 175)

(253, 213)

65, 860

SCH T DS A s PR
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #%

P F ORI AR
(TBAZZ 7 ) #%

SEH FIZ 200 R HR R
(ZEAF) PR (TBAZEFG 2 & dr) #*

76, 537

35,199, 180
(388, 194)

123, 331

160, 000

132 —



2024424 A30H (H3%)

Citigroup Global
Markets, Inc.

Kk kv

Credit Suisse
International

X kv

Deutsche
Bank AG
KR

Goldman Sachs
International

X kv

HSBC Bank USA,
National Association

>k kv

BRE

OTCERIAY v 7K #
FUE R CIER S LD
BHAD > 7 §

OTC h—HNL - JH—r -

AT FEKx H

OTCZ V¥ v bk« F 740 M2
—RHTuT s ax #
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—AT e T gk f

FUE R CIER S LD
JVTYy ke T 7 a0 MRS
SeRA §

SElEFRH

BT L IT A AT v g LHKH
L AR ek

1,001, 680

946, 972

212, 827

149, 492 -

24, 965

gEAT

1,001, 680

946, 972

212, 827

174, 457

=V

OTCEFIRY v FEHK* #
PULE RSB CIER S D
SRR v TRK §
OTCh—&n - )F—r .

AT FEKx #

OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—wH T s gk #
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—AT e T gk f

HUE R CIER S LD

IV v ke T 7 a0 MRS
SeRA §

SelERH

T L IT A AT v T a U

1, 546, 952

497, 231

220, 753

168, 401 -

10, 339 1, 440
194, 736 -

ARAE

1, 546, 952

497, 231

220, 753

373, 476 1, 440

SRMETES L O
7Y 5T A THE AT

(545, 272)

449, 741

(7,926)

(199, 019) 32, 267

ZH (GEA) HERGEHEE T

(451, 333)

420, 000

(199, 019) —

HAE

(93, 939)

29,741

(7,926)

— 32, 267

SCH T DS A A s PR
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #%

S T DS BB R
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Er) #%

S TS 720 0O SRR
GEAG) LR (TBAZEFG 2 Zr) »*

(451, 333)

420, 000

(221, 858) -

— 133 —



2024424 A30H (H3%)

JPMorgan Chase
Bank N. A.
X kv

JPMorgan
Securities LLC

X kv

Merrill Lynch
International

% kv

Mizuho Capital
Markets LLC Co.
Xk Fv

Morgan Stanley &
International PLC
Kk kv

BRE

OTCERIAY v 7K #
FUE R CIER S LD
ERIAY v THK §
OTChr—=#Nn- s —r -

AT TR #

OTC/ VT v b« F740 MEKY
— R TeT s gk
OTCZ V¥ b T 74/ hEK
—EAT e T s gk f

FUE R CIER S LD

VA AN A Wi 25 O
SEEK §

SIS H
IEFLIT A AT vy g 3Bt
L ARk

9, 750
2, 246, 706

887, 503

104, 384

156, 758

1,706

429, 493

36, 847
184, 548

g Ot

2, 256, 456

991, 887

156, 758

1,706

650, 888

=V

OTCEFIRY v FEHK* #
UGB RSB CIER S LD
SRR » TRK §

OTC h—HN - JH—r -

AT TR #

OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—RH e T s gk #
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74V hEK
—EAT e T s gk f

FUE R CIER S LD

VA AN A Wi 25 O
SRR §

SIS H

T L IT A AT v T a U

18, 149

1, 258, 520

830, 729

33, 381

12,010

248, 658

66, 525

135,914
113, 584

AfaE

1, 276, 669

830, 729

33, 381

12,010

564, 681

SRMETES L O
7Y 5T A THE AT

979, 7187

161, 158

123, 377

(10, 304)

86, 207

ZH (GEA) HERGEHEE T

978, 000

161, 158

123, 377

33,714

HAE

1,787

(10, 304)

52,493

SCH T DS A A s PR
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #%

S T DS BB R
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Er) #%

S TS 720 0O SRR
GEAG) LR (TBAZEFG 2 Zr) »*

978, 000

233, 000

133,989

33,714

— 134 —



NatWest State Street Bank

Toronto—

UBS AG

WestPac

[S )
Markets PLC and Trust Co. Dominion Bank Banking Corp.
20244E 4 A30H (o3%) * Kov * Kv ¥ Rv k Rv K Rv ¥ Fv
BRE
OTCERIAY v FEKx # — — — — — —
FUE R CIER S LD
ERIAY v THK § — — — — — 1, 088, 236
OTC h—=Hb- JH—r -
ATy TEH g — — — — — —
OTCZ LTy k« F74 /L MEK
—RHTaT s gkt — — _ _ _ _
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—EATeT s gk — — — — — 3,571,898
FUE R CIER S LD
VP b T 7L MK S - - - - - -
FR/ESOR - — — — — 104, 384
SIS 27, 566 81,911 37, 746 2,799 2,900 322,311
WIS L IT A AT w7y g B — - 46, 696 320, 524 — 4,517, 067
L AR Bk — — — — — 34,509, 000
BrEGE 27, 566 81,911 84, 442 323, 323 2,900 44,112,896
=V
OTCEFIRY v FEHK* # — — — — — 18, 149
UGB REBE CIER S D
SRR v TRK) § - - — — — 1,274,997
OTCh—%N YBH—1 -
AT TR # — — — — — 248, 658
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—wH T T s gk # — — — — — 3,167, 493
OTCZ V¥ b« T 74/ hEK
—WEATRT Ak # — — _ _ _ _
JUE R TR SN D
A AR EVIAN SO — — — — — 66, 452
SeRA § - - - — — -
SIS — - 458 6, 467 — 167, 847
FWTVIT A AT v T v a R — — 13, 263 199, 970 — 3,029, 978
AEaE — — 13,721 2086, 437 — 7,973, 574
BRI R L O
FYNRT ¢ THE AR 27, 566 81,911 70, 721 116, 886 2,900 36,139, 322
%M/ GEA) HRGEH T - 81,911 — 100,000 -
Ali&E 217, 566 — 70, 721 16, 886 2, 900
SCH T DS A A s PR
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Ep) #% — 122, 397 — — — 456, 254
A F ORI R
(TBAZE 9 2 5 Er) #% — — — 100, 000 — 1,924, 714
SER TAE 70 0 AR — — — — — 35, 199, 180
(FEAN) AR (TBAZZF9 & Zdr) o+ — — — — (1,061, 385)

b LHIE, LT LxERS, MBURIEFHEEOHLE 28 U CTRIEMIE THE S L5 e Es
I/ T e AaEcEEn s,
ok JWBCRIERI A FE OIS 28 U TAEMME THE Sh 2 @& ERS L0/ $3eMaficash

é@

T ERORNESE, BEDOT u—T—nb

B R EERFERAOICIVMESN D (ERLS) .

— 1356 —

BRI SRD SN D HENH D,



# ERMEES LT U AT 0 TG EO A OBIBIRITER R ST, HIRIE, RikFOH
FINCBET 282 0HARH 5,

§ MECRREFEE ECoRG Eaid, HESERE SN TV WET A OZBGEHLE 2 5T, St
FNTAR D YHIEFL A D 7= D I SN 28T, EROFRITITEENTE LT, 45567, 3422k R
INThHoTz,

AWBEREIL, 202542 7 A23 AT, ZFESIC L o TRE S,

13 WMBCRRERHEE A L0 FES:

202545 A19AFIC, 77 v i, RESE AT — e AR —h U7« T K hT AL -
HR==NEJPEAT Y « Fo—R e N « X« T—IEE LT, #HERESTLER, 2T
—RF ANV —=h A2 NTAL D NR=— UIT Yy R T7T 7Y Ty
AV RAS— e =X e VTV —IEB SN, AAMT, 77 ROARERFERITS
W™, TN e H—a N B LB NN—F Y R e N =X e Ty R

Ry TINY « TR« T— o T—)b« T)VIEFEINT,

(3) REBMIIFAEMRE
20254 4 A 30 H BIEOBIEM B ESHICH T A EROES 2D Z &,

— 136 —



Combined statements of financial position

End of each reporting period

April 30
ASSETS
Current Assets Notes 2025 2024
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss * 3,4,8,11 $233,039,733 $265,743,138
Sales of investments awaiting settlement 8 5,772,737 17,774,399
Receivable from Manager 8,9 71,750 —
Receivable for variation margin on futures contracts 4,8 — 104,384
Receivable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts 4,8 131,703 —
Interest and other receivables 2,075,368 1,798,646
Cash and cash equivalents 3,8 10,820,912 25,479,123
Deposits with broker 4 3,100,292 3,903,548
Total Assets 255,012,495 314,803,238
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss * 3,4,8,11 10,135,841 26,032,401
Purchases of investments awaiting settlement 8,10 41,057,000 73,892,650
Redemptions of units awaiting settlement 6 159,106 189,719
Payable forvariation margin on futures contracts 4.8 28,2590 —
Payable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts 4,8 — 253213
Payable for management fees 8,9 233,068 639,703
Payable for custody and administrative fees 8,9 78,242 96,039
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, at value 8 2,290,684 2,380,968
Payable to broker 4 13,834 13,504
Other accrued expenses 8,9 558,861 382,793
Total Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units) 54,554,926 103,880,990
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at fair value # 1,8 $200,457,569 $210,922,248
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the:
Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) $200,527,865 $210,985,427

* See Note 3(a)(i)
#At period end April 30, 2024, the funds valued net assets at bid/ask prices. Period end April 30, 2025 Note 3 references the updated valuation process.

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statements.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 8
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Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)

Interest frem financial assets and financial liabilities at fairvalue through profit or loss

Netrealized and change in unrealized gain/

e} n/

(loss)
Netrealized and change in unrealized gain/(loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss

Total operating income/(loss)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Management fees

Custody fees
Administrative fees
Transfer agent fees

Trustee fees

Audit fees

Other expenses
Reimbursal from Manager
Total operating expenses
Operating profit/(loss)
Finance Costs
Distributions to holders of redeemable units

Profit/(Loss) after distributions

Increase/(Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
fromoperations

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statements.
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For the years ended
April 30
Notes 2025 2024
3,8 $14,125,961 $11,056,509
45,891 16,778
7,972,679 524257
22,144,531 11,597,544
9 2,935,493 3,274,971
9 12,260 96,896
9 61,446 50,519
9 376,943 377,344
9 64,113 68,356
9 99,678 96,865
9 110,353 88,033
9 (372,472) (319,255)
3,347,814 3,733,729
18,796,717 7,863,815
7 (8,059,932) (9,305,157)
10,736,785 (1,441,342)
$10,736,785 $(1,441,342)
Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 9



Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

Net Assets attributable to hoiders of redeemabie units at the beginning of year
Increase/(Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
from operations

REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTIONS

Proceeds from units issued
ClassM
Value of units redeemed
ClassJ
ClassM
Increase/(Decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable unit transactions

Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the end of year

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statements.
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For the years ended
April 30

Notes 2025 2024

$210,922,248 $249,828,271
10,736,785 (1,441,342)

6 1,191,116 910,535
6 (15,694,339) (27,596,796)
6 (6,698241) (10,778,420)
(21,201,464) (37,464,681)

1,8 $200,457,569 $210,922,248

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 10



Combined statements of cash flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations

Interest from financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss
Distributions to the holders of redeemable units
Net amertization of premiums

Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents

Net (increase)/decreasein sales of investments awaiting settlement
Netincrease/(decrease) in purchases of investments awaiting settlement

Net (increase)/decrease in receivable for variation margin on futures contracts

Net (increase)/decrease in receivable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts
Net (increase)/decrease in deposits with broker

Net (increase)/decrease in receivable from Manager

Netincrease/(decrease} in payable for custody and administrative fees
Netincrease/(decrease) in payable for variation margin on futures contracts
Netincrease/(decrease) in payable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts
Net increase/(decrease) in payable to broker

Net increase/(decrease) in payable for management fees

Netincrease/(decrease) in collateral on certain derivative contracts, at value
Netincrease/(decrease} in payable for other accrued expenses

Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss
Netincrease/(decrease) infinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities

Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Distributions paid to the holders of redeemable units
Proceeds from redeemable units

Redemptions of redeemable units

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Exchange (gains)/losses on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statements.
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For the years ended
April 30
Notes 2025 2024
$10,736,785 ($1,441,342)
3 (15,513,096) (11,410,097)
7 8,059,932 9,305,157
1,387,135 353,588
(45,891) (16,778)
4,624,865 (3,209,472)
3 12,001,662 100,777,319
8,10 (32,835,650) (210,614,809)
4,8 104,384 (104,384)
4,8 (131,703) 270,463
4 803,256 (3,903,548)
8,9 (71,750) —
8,9 (17,797) (78,275)
4,8 28,290 (62,437)
4,8 (253,213) 253,213
4 330 13,504
8,9 (406,635) 408,883
8 (90,284) (637,564)
8,9 176,068 32,243
3,4,8,11 32,703,405 270,414,401
3,4,8,11 (15,396,560) (103,968,920)
738,668 49,500,617
13,849,239 14,352,853
14,587,907 63,943,470
7 (8,059,932) (9,305,157)
6 1,191,116 910,535
3 (22,423,193) (38,290,418)
(29,292,009) (46,694,040)
(14,704,102) 17,249,430
3,8 25,479,123 8,212,915
45,891 16,778
3,8 $10,820,912 $25,479,123
Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 11



Notes to combined financial statements 4/30/25

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Notes to combined financial statements, references to “State Street”, if any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Company
and references to “OTC”, if any, represent over-the-counter. References to “funds’ net assets” are based on net assets of $200,457,569 at April 30,
2025;$210,922,248 at April 30,2024. Unless otherwise noted, the “reporting period” represents the period from May 1, 2024 through April 30, 2025.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund (the “Master Fund”) is a series trust of the Putnam Offshore Master Series Trust (the
“Master Trust”), pursuant to a Master Base Trust Deed dated August 18,2005 and a Master First Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18,2005
and Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 2, 2024 between CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company {(Cayman) Limited and Franklin Advisers,
Inc. {the “Manager”) (formerly The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC). Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) (the “Feeder Fund”) is a series
trust of the Putnam Offshore Feeder Series Trust (the “Feeder Trust”), pursuant to a Feeder Base Trust Deed dated July 13,2005 (as amended) and
a Feeder Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005 (as amended) and Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 4, 2024 between MaplesFS
Limited and Franklin Advisers, Inc. (the “Manager”). The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered under the Mutual Funds Act (As Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

The Master Fund and Feeder Fund operate as a master/feeder fund structure (collectively the “funds”) (each individually a “fund”) whereby
substantially all of the net assets of the Feeder Fund are invested in units of the Master Fund. These combined financial statements are in respect
of the funds, comprising the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund.

Separate books and records are maintained for each fund in order to determine the net asset value for the Feeder Fund. The Feeder Fund has the
same inherent risks as the Master Fund.

The investment objective of the funds is to seek as high a level of current income as the Manager believes is consistent with preservation of
capital. The Manager will seek to achieve the funds’ objective by investing mainly in bonds that are securitized debt instruments and other
obligations of companies and governments worldwide, are either investment-grade or below investment-grade (high yield bonds), and have
intermediate to long-term maturities (three years or longer).

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financial statements have been prepared in compliance with IFRS Accounting Standards as published by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The principal accounting policies have been applied consistently by the funds forall periods presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Current period and prioryear combined financial statements of the funds are presented on a combined basis as management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent one reporting entity given the manner in which the entities are managed. References to the
financial statements hereafter are to be considered on a combined basis. Intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full.

The Manager makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates
are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates and differences could be material.

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the material accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities classified
at fair value through profit or loss. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards, requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

(a) Financial instruments

(i) Classification

The Master Fund classifies its investments based on both the Master Fund’s business model for managing those financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performanceis evaluated on a
fairvalue basis. The Master Fund is primarily focused on fair valueinformation and uses thatinformation to assess the assets’ performance
and to make decisions. The Master Fund has not taken the option to irrevocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other
comprehensive income. The contractual cash flows of the Master Fund’s debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these
securities are not held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows. The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to
achieving the Master Fund’s business model’s objective. Consequently, all investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. As such, in accordance with
IFRS 9, the Master Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 12
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(ii) Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Master Fund commits to purchase or sell the
investment. Investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired and the Master Fund
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Securities purchased or sold on a delayed delivery basis may be settled at
afuture date beyond customary settlement time; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the securities. Losses may arise due to
changes in the fair value of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does not perform under the contract.

Purchases and sales of investments awaiting settlement represent payables for securities purchased and receivables for securities sold
that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the statement of financial position date respectively. The due from
brokers balance, if any, is held for collection. These amounts are recognised initially at fairvalue and subsequently measured at amortised
cost. At each reporting date, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk
has notincreased significantly since initial recognition, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected creditlosses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorgani-
sation, and defaultin payments are all considered indicators that a loss allowance may be required. If the credit risk increases to the point
that it is considered to be credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss
allowance. Asignificantincrease in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is more than 30 days past due.
Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.

(iii) Measurement

Financial assets and Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are
recorded in the Statements of comprehensive income {loss) as part of the net realized and change in unrealized gain/(loss) on financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fairvalue through
profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘Financial Assets or Financial
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) in the period in
which they arise.

Investments for which market quotations are readily available are valued at the last reported sales price on their principal exchange, or
official closing price for certain markets, and are classified as Level 1 securities under IFRS 7 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
(IFRS 7). If no sales are reported, as in the case of some securities that are traded OTC, a security is valued at the average of the last
reported bid and ask prices, the “mid-price”, and is generally categorized as a Level 2 security. For the period ended April 30,2024, prior to
the change in Manager, the fair value measurement used by the fund was at bid/ask prices.

Market quotations are not considered to bereadily available for certain debt obligations {(including short-term investments with remaining
maturities of 60 days or less) and other investments; such investments are valued on the basis of valuations furnished by an independent
pricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Manager. Such services or dealers determine valuations for normal
institutional-size trading units of such securities using methods based on market transactions for comparable securities and various rela-
tionships, generally recognized by institutional traders, between securities {which consider such factors as security prices, yields, matur-
ities and ratings). These securities will generally be categorized as Level 2. Certain securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided
by a single source. Securities quoted in foreign currencies, if any, are translated into U.S. Dollars at the current exchange rate.

To the extent a pricing service or dealer is unable to value a security or provides a valuation that the Manager does not believe accu-
rately reflects the security’s fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures
approved by the Manager. Certain investments, including certain restricted and illiquid securities and derivatives, are also valued at fair
value following procedures approved by the Manager. These valuations consider such factors as significant market or specific security
events such asinterest rate or credit quality changes, various relationships with other securities, discount rates, U.S. Treasury, U.S. swap
and credityields, index levels, convexity exposures, recovery rates, sales and other multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are
classified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the priority of the significant inputs.

Generally, trading in certain securities (such as foreign securities) is substantially completed each day at various times prior to the close
of the NYSE. The Master Fund translates prices for its investments quoted in foreign currencies into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates,
which are generally determined as of 4:00 P.M. Eastern Standard Time each day the NYSE is open. As a result, changesin the value of those
currenciesin relation to the U.S. dollar may affect the fund’s NAV. As a result, the Manager or its delegate uses fair value pricing procedures.
These securities, which would generally be classified as Level 1 securities, will be transferred to Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy when
they are valued at fair value.

Investmentsin collective or other investment funds are valued with reference to their respective net asset value per uniton the relevant
valuation date.

Fortheyears ended April 30,2025 and April 30,2024, no securities or derivatives were fair valued by the Manager.

(b) Off-setting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statements of financial position when thereis a legally enforceable
right to off-set the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 13

— 142 —



(c) Income from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash
equivalents. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities. Income received from collective
or other investment funds is recorded on the ex-date and retain the character of income as earned by the underlying investment. All premiums/
discounts are amortized/accreted on a yield-to-maturity basis. The Master Fund earned certain fees in connection with its senior loan purchasing
activities. These fees are treated as market discount and are amortized into income in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss).

(d) Distribution policy

Distributions to the unitholders from operating profit/({loss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to unitholders of the Feeder Fund, subject to the
approval of the Manager. Income distributions, if any, will be made monthly. Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fund are recognized as a
finance cost in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss). Distributions from capital gains, if any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and
paid at least annually.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks, including foreign currencies. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash needs rather than for investments or other purposes. Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown as payable to custodian in the
Statements of financial position.

April 30
Cash and cash equivalents 2025 2024
Foreign cash $§270 $—
USD cash 149,451 137,169
Cash equivalents 10,671,191 25,341,854
Total cash and cash equivalents $10,820,912 $25,479,123

(f) Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, through its custodian, receives delivery of the underlying securities, the fair value of which at the time of purchase is required to
be inan amount at least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. Collateral for certain tri-party repurchase agreements, which totaled
$23,458,980 (2024: $35,199,180) at the end of the reporting period, is held at the counterparty’s custodian in a segregated account for the benefit
of the Master Fund and the counterparty. The Manager is responsible for determining that the value of these underlying securities is at all times at
least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. In the event of default or bankruptcy by the other party to the agreement, retention of
the collateral may be subject to legal proceedings.

(g) Stripped securities

The Master Fund may invest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that may be structured in classes with rights to
receive different portions of the interest and principal. Interest-only securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of
the principal. If the interest-only securities experience greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the Master Fund may fail to recoup fully
itsinitial investment in these securities. Conversely, principal-only securities increase in value if prepayments are greater than anticipated and
decline if prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fair value of these securities is highly sensitive to changes in interest rates.

(h) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting records of the Master Fund and Feeder Fund are maintained in U.S. Dollars, the currency in which they receive subscrip-
tions and facilitate redemptions of their redeemable units. The Manager considers the U.S. dollar the currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The U.S. dollar is the currency in which the funds
measure their performance and report their results. This determination also considers the competitive environments in which the funds
are compared to other investment products. The financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transac-
tions. The cost of each security is determined using historical exchange rates. Income, expenses and withholding taxes are translated at
prevailing exchange rates when earned or incurred. The Master Fund does notisolate that portion of realized or unrealized gains or losses
resulting from changes in the foreign exchange rate on investments from fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices of the
securities. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation and foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) as Net realized and change in unrealized gain/(loss) of assets
and liabilitiesinforeign currencies. Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities at fair value through profit and loss are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) as Net realized and
change in unrealized gain/{loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Investments in foreign secu-
rities involve certain risks, including those related to economic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency fluctuations,
not present with domestic investments.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 14
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(i) TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into TBA (to be announced) commitments to purchase securities for a fixed unit price at a future date beyond
customary settlement time. Although the unit price and par amount have been established, the actual securities have not been specified.
However, itis anticipated that the amount of the commitments will not significantly differ from the principal amount. The Master Fund holds, and
maintains until settlement date, cash or high-grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Income on the securities will not be earned until settlement date.

The Master Fund may also enter into TBA sale commitments to hedge its portfolio positions, to sell mortgage-backed securities it owns under
delayed delivery arrangements or to take a short position in mortgage-backed securities. Proceeds of TBA sale commitments are not received
until the contractual settlement date. During the time a TBA sale commitment is outstanding, either equivalent deliverable securities or an offset-
ting TBA purchase commitment deliverable on or before the sale commitment date are held as “cover” for the transaction, or other liquid assets in
an amount equal to the notional value of the TBA sale commitment are segregated. If the TBA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition
of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realizes a gain or loss. If the Master Fund delivers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain or a loss from the sale of the securities based upon the unit price established at the date the commitment was
entered into.

TBA commitments, which are accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities themselves, and involve arisk of loss
due to changes in the value of the security prior to the settlement date as well as the risk that the counterparty to the transaction will not perform
its obligations. Counterparty risk is mitigated by having a master agreement between the Master Fund and the counterparty.

Unsettled TBA commitments are valued at their fair value according to the procedures described under “Measurement” above. The contract is
marked to market daily and the change in fair valueis recorded by the Master Fund as an unrealized gain or loss. Based on market circumstances,
the Manager will determine whether to take delivery of the underlying securities or to dispose of the TBA commitments prior to settlement.

4. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts may serve as a component of the Master Fund’s investment strategy and are utilized primarily to structure and economically
hedgeinvestments to enhance performance and reduce risk to the funds, or for other investment purposes. The Master Fund does not designate
any derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS 9 and hence these derivative financial instruments are classi-
fied at fair value through profit or loss. The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may hold or issue include, but are not limited to, forwards,
futures, options, certain currency transactions and swap contracts.

The Master Fund may enter into options contracts. L osses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments if there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform. If
awritten call option is exercised, the premium originally received is recorded as an addition to sales proceeds. If a written put option is exercised,
the premium originally received is recorded as a reduction to the cost of investments. Exchange-traded options are valued at the last sale price
or,if nosales are reported, the last bid price for purchased options and the last ask price for written options. OTC traded options are valued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on swaps are similar to options on securities except that the premium paid or received is to buy or grant the
right to enterinto a previously agreed upon interest rate or credit default contract. Forward premium swap option contracts include premiums
that have extended settlement dates. The delayed settlement of the premiums is factored into the daily valuation of the option contracts. In
the case of interest rate cap and floor contracts, in return for a premium, ongoing payments between two parties are based on interest rates
exceeding a specified rate, in the case of a cap contract, or falling below a specified rate in the case of a floor contract.

The Master Fund may enter into futures contracts. Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments, if there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contractis unable to perform.
With futures, there is minimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since futures are exchange traded and the exchange’s clearinghouse, as coun-
terparty to all exchange traded futures, guarantees the futures against default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of finan-
cial position. When the contract is closed, the Master Fund records a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed. Futures contracts are valued at the quoted daily settlement prices established
by the exchange on which they trade. The Master Fund and the broker agree to exchange an amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the
value of the futures contract. Such receipts or payments are known as “variation margin.”

The Master Fund may buy and sell forward currency contracts, which are agreements between two parties to buy and sell currencies at a set
price on a future date. The U.S. dollar value of forward currency contracts is determined using current forward currency exchange rates supplied
by a quotation service. The fair value of the contract will fluctuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The contract is marked to market
daily and the change in fair value is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss. The Master Fund records a realized gain or loss equal to the difference
between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed when the contract matures or by delivery of
the currency. The funds could be exposed toriskif the value of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counterparties to the contracts are unable
to meet the terms of their contracts or if the Master Fund is unable to enter into a closing position. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the
Statements of financial position.

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/or centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, which are arrangements between two parties to
exchange cash flows based on a notional principal amount. An OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an
upfront premium. For OTC interest rate swap contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as a liability on the Master
Fund’s books. An upfront payment made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund’s books. OTC and centrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any
changeisrecorded asanunrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps. Daily fluctuationsin the value of centrally cleared interest rate swaps
are settled through a central clearing agent and are generally recorded in variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded
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as unrealized gain or loss. Payments, including upfront premiums, received or made are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or
the closing of the contract. Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related
to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable
changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency
or a clearing member defaults, in the case of centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, on its respective obligation to perform under the
contract. The funds’” maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central clearing risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated
for OTC interest rate swap contracts by having a master netting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin. There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantee fund and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing
member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position. At the close of the reporting period, the
Master Fund has deposited cash valued at $2,000,758 (April 30, 2024 $2,822,476) in a segregated account to cover margin requirement on open
centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts.

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts, which are arrangements to exchange a market-linked
return for a periodic payment, both based on a notional principal amount. To the extent that the total return of the security, index or other finan-
cial measure underlying the transaction exceeds or falls short of the offsetting interest rate obligation, the Master Fund will receive a payment
from or make a payment to the counterparty. OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon
quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any change is recorded as an unrealized gain orloss on OTC total return swaps.
Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared total return swaps are settled through a central clearing agent and are generally recorded in
variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Payments received or made are recorded as
realized gains or losses. Certain OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related
to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable
changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or in the price of the underlying security or index, the possibility that there is no liquid market for these
agreements or that the counterparty may default on its obligation to perform. The funds” maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central
clearing risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC total return swap contracts by having a master netting arrange-
ment between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared total return swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation
margin. There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally cleared total return swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantee fund
and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements
of financial position.

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/or centrally cleared credit default contracts. In OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts, the
protection buyer typically makes a periodic stream of payments to a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receive a
contingent payment upon the occurrence of a credit event on the reference obligation or all other equally ranked obligations of the reference
entity. Credit events are contract specific but may include bankruptcy, failure to pay, restructuring and obligation acceleration. For OTC credit
default contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as a liability on the Master Fund’s books. An upfront payment
made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund’s books. Centrally cleared credit default contracts provide the same rights
to the protection buyer and seller except the payments between parties, including upfront premiums, are settled through a central clearing agent
through variation margin payments. Upfront and periodic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centrally cleared credit
default contracts are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or close of the contract. The OTC and centrally cleared credit default
contracts are marked to market daily based upon quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any change in value of
OTC credit default contracts is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss. Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts
are generally recorded in variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Upon the occurrence
of a credit event, the difference between the par value and fair value of the reference obligation, net of any proportional amount of the upfront
payment, is recorded as arealized gain or loss. In addition to bearing the risk that the credit event will occur, the funds could be exposed to market
risk due to unfavorable changes in interest rates or in the price of the underlying security or index or the possibility that the Master Fund may be
unable to close out its position at the same time or at the same price as if it had purchased the underlying reference obligations. In certain circum-
stances, the Master Fund may enter into offsetting OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss. Risks
of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position. The funds” maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either
as the protection seller or as the protection buyer, is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit default contracts by
having a master netting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared credit default contracts through
the daily exchange of variation margin. Counterparty risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts due
to the clearinghouse guarantee fund and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Where the Master Fund

is a seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund may be required to make is equal to the notional
amount. At the close of the reporting period, the Master Fund has deposited cash valued at $1,099,534 (April 30,2024 $1,081,072) in a segregated
account to cover margin requirement on open centrally cleared credit default contracts.

Income related to swap contracts is accrued based on the terms of the contract. Receivables and payables related to closed swap contracts
are presented in the Financial assets or Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss line items on the Statements of financial position.
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts areincluded in Net realized and change in unrealized gain/(loss) on financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognized on the Statements of
financial position, but they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and
do not therefore indicate a fund’s exposure to credit or market price risks. The derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or unfavorable
{liabilities) as a result of fluctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
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amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments are favorable or unfavorable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

5. TAXATION

The Master Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are primarily domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws that indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents, such as the funds.

Typically, the foreign tax liability, if any, will be withheld from the proceeds. In some specific jurisdictions capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Master Fund’s brokers on a withholding basis.
Inaccordance with IAS 12 — income Taxes, the funds are required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that the tax laws of foreign coun-
tries require a tax liability to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities
have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant
taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. Thereis
sometimes uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the funds. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment,
including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

AtApril 30,2025 and April 30,2024, the funds had no significant uncertain tax liability positions with respect to foreign capital gains taxes.

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

At the end of the reporting periods, April 30, 2025 and April 30,2024, the Master Fund had Class S and Class | Units available for issue. Unless the
Manager determines otherwise, the minimum initial investment for Class S is 300 Units and the minimum subsequent subscription shall be 10
Units, provided that the absolute minimum initial investments shall be US$50,000 or its equivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determines otherwise, the minimum number of Class | Units that can be subscribed for by way of initial investment shall be 1,000,000
Units, the minimum aggregate value of the initial investment shall be US$10,000,000 and the minimum number of Units that can be subscribed for
by way of subsequent investment shall be 10,000 Units. The absolute minimum aggregate value of the initial investment in Class | Units that the
Manager may determine shall be US$50,000.

The Feeder Fund has unlimited Units of capital. Each Unit will represent an undivided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund. MaplesFS Limited
{the “Feeder Fund Trustee”), at the direction of the Manager, shall have the power to designate and issue Units from time to time by reference to a
separate Class and/or series and determine the mannerin which Units of any Class and/or series differ from Units of any other Class and/or series.
The Feeder Fund currently has two Classes of Units, Class J and Class M Units, which are investors into Class S of the Master Fund. Class M Units
are sold with a maximum front-end sales charge of 3.25% and do not pay a contingent deferred sales charge (CDSC). Class J Units do not pay a
front-end sales charge and are subject to a CDSC of up to 4.00% if those Units are redeemed within five years of purchase. Unless the Manager
determines otherwise, the minimum initial investment for Class J (CDSC) and Class M Units shall be 300 Units and the minimum subsequent
subscriptions shall be 10 Units.

The net asset value of each class is calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units of a particular class of
units, with the total number of outstanding redeemable units of that class. In accordance with the provisions of the funds’ governing documents,
investment positions are valued based on the valuation procedures set out in Note 3 (iii) for the purpose of determining the net asset value per
unit for subscriptions and redemptions. Proceeds and payments for redeemable participating units issued and redeemed are shown as move-
ments in the Statements of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units. The Feeder Fund generally provides
its unitholders with the right to redeem their interest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date (generally daily) for cash equal to the proportionate
share of the net asset value of the Feeder Fund. The Manager, the Transfer Agent or other delegate of the Manager reserves the right to reject any
application for Units without stating any reason for doing so. The Feeder Fund issues redeemable units, which are redeemable at the holder's
option and are classified as financial liabilities. The redeemable units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the end of the
reporting period, if the holder exercises the right to put the unit back to the funds.

Unit transactions for the years were as follows:

Master Fund Class S Class|
April 30 April 30

2025 2024 2025 2024
Units cutstanding at beginning of year 29,555,216 35,285,540 1,086 1,086
Units issued 113,147 35,352 — —
Units redeemed (3,388,799) (5,765,576) — —
Units outstanding at end of year 26,279,564 29,555,216 1,086 1,086
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Feeder Fund ClassJ ClassM

April 30 April 30
2025 2024 2025 2024
Units cutstanding at beginning of year 28,060,385 33,299,130 11,710,015 13,612,990
Units issued — 219,610 174,980
Units redeemed (2,852,946) (5,238,745) (1,239,398) (2,077,955)
Units outstanding at end of year 25,207,439 28,060,385 10,690,227 11,710,015

At April 30,2025, 100% of the Feeder Fund’s Class J and Class M redeemable units were held by one unaffiliated investor (2024: 100%). At April 30,
2025, 100% of the Master Fund’s Class S redeemable units were held by the Feeder Fund (2024: 100%). At April 30,2025, 100% of the Master Fund’s
Class | redeemable units were held by an affiliate of the Manager (2024: 100%).

7.DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions to the unitholders are made at the discretion of the Manager in an amountand at such time as determined to be appropriate. Atthe
end of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Master Fund Class S amounted to $8,080,458 or $0.2910 per unit (2024: $9,315,803 or $0.2872
per unit). At the end of the reporting period, there were no dividends paid to Class | (2024: SNil).

At the end of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class J and Class M amounted to $5,381,203 or $0.204 per unit (2024:
$6,276,615 or $0.204 per unit) and $2,678,729 or $0.24 per unit (2024: $3,028,542 or $0.24 per unit), respectively. Distributions from the Feeder Fund
are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive income {loss) as a finance cost.

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funds have investment guidelines that set out their overall business strategies, their tolerance for risk and their general risk management
philosophy. The funds’ financial assets and liabilities at fair value comprise the Master Fund’s financial instruments which may include:

+  Investmentsincluding fixed-income securities, floating rate securities and equity securities;
+  Bondsthatare securitized debtinstruments and other obligations of companies and governments worldwide;
Cash and short-term investments; and

+  Derivative transactions which the Master Fund enters into to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Master Fund’s
investment activities.

(a) Market price risk

While it is the intention of the Manager to implement strategies which are designed to minimize potential losses, there can be no assurance that
these strategies will be successful. Itis possible that an investor may lose a substantial proportion or all of its investment. As a result, each investor
should carefully consider whether it can afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds.

The funds are exposed to market risk (which includes market price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit or default
risk. The funds’ risk management process consists of a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks and balances.
The Manager performs periodic reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. These policies
have remained substantially unchanged since the beginning of the period to which these financial statements relate.

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the potential loss the funds might suffer
through holding market positions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investment or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market. The Manager considers the asset allocation of the funds in order to minimize the risk associated with particular
countries or industry sectors while continuing to follow the funds’ investment objective through a careful selection of securities and other finan-
cialinstruments within specified limits. Market risk can also potentially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered into by the funds. The
Manager measures both the Master Fund’s total risk as well as their risk of underperformance versus their stated benchmark.

Under normal market conditions, the Manager expects to invest 15% - 65% of the Master Fund’s net assets in each of these three sectors: U.S.
and investment-grade sector - U.S. government securities and investment-grade bonds of U.S. companies, High yield sector - lower-rated

bonds of U.S. companies, and International sector - bonds of foreign governments and companies, including both investment grade and
lower-rated securities.

At the end of thereporting period, investments in U.S. securities were approximately 83% (2024: approximately 829%).
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Atthe end of the reporting periods, the funds’ notional exposure on derivative contracts was as follows:

April 30

2025 2024
Purchased interest rate swap option contracts (contract amount) $149,312,743 $303,363,344
Written interest rate swap option contracts (contract amount) 586,775,800 $146,413,080
Futures contracts (number of contracts) ** 208 314
Forward currency contracts {contractamount) * 518,188,140 $19,080,892
OTC interest rate swap contracts (notional) S— $2,210,581
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts (notional) $637,648,882 $653,601,249
OTC total return swap contracts (notional) $2,234,186 $4,355,452
OTC credit default contracts - protection purchased (notional) $5,971,780 $13,501,873
OTC credit default contracts - protection sold (notional) $3,917,464 $12,687,921
Centrally cleared credit default contracts - protection sold (notional) $12,595,000 $13,010,000

* For the periods ended April 30,2025 and April 30, 2024, the Master Fund did not have notional exposure, in excess of 10%, as a percent of net assets. There are no
other concentrations to currency risk in excess of 10% of net assets as a result of forward derivative notionals.

** Forthe reporting period, the Master Fund held U.S. Treasury securities and a Euro-Bobl security with number of contracts totaling 177 and 31 and notional
amounts totaling $34,506,922 and $4,215,671, respectively (2024: U.S. Treasury securities and a Euro-Bobl security with number of contracts totaling 280 and
34, and notional amounts totaling $54,247,937 and $4,232,754, respectively).

The volume of activity for the reporting periods for any derivative type that was held during the period is listed below and was as follows based on
an average of the holdings at the end of each fiscal quarter:

April 30

2025 2024
Purchased swap option contracts (contract amount) $255,000,000 $490,800,000
Written swap option contracts (contract amount) $151,300,000 $443,700,000
Futures contracts (number of contracts) ** 300 400
Forward currency contracts (contract amount) $19,100,000 $34,300,000
OTC interest rate swap contracts (notional) $1,700,000 $940,000
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts (notional) $748,400,000 $1,053,100,000
OTC total return swap contracts (notional) $2,400,000 $4,400,000
OTC credit default contracts (notional) $15,500,000 $35,600,000
Centrally cleared credit default contracts (notional) $11,600,000 $8,000,000

** Forthe reporting period, average of the Futures holdings at notional values was $8,900,000 (2024: $13,500,000).

Aggregate Value at risk

The Value at Risk (VaR) risk measure estimates the maximum expected loss in pre-taxation profit as a percentage of the fund’s net assets over a
given holding period for a specified confidence level. The VaR methodology is a statistically defined, probability-based approach that takes into
account market volatilities as well as risk diversification by recognizing offsetting positions and correlations between products and markets. Risks
can be measured consistently across all markets and products, and risk measures can be aggregated to arrive at a single risk number. Given the
interdependencies between market variables, the Master Fund also estimates the VaR or threshold loss that is not expected to be exceeded at the
99th percentile confidence level over a 1-day horizon. The Manager uses a third-party multi-factor model (2024: used a proprietary multi-factor
model) to estimate the active risk (also referred to as tracking error) from which VaR estimates can be analytically derived. The VaR estimates
presented below are point-in-time and vary over time as a function of market and portfolio composition changes and are representative of
activity during the period.

Given its reliance on historical data, VaR is most effective in estimating risk exposures in markets in which there are no sudden fundamental
changes or sudden shifts in market conditions. An inherent limitation of VaR is that the distribution of past changes in market risk factors may
not produce accurate predictions of future risk. Different VaR methodologies and distributional assumptions could produce a materially different
VaR. Moreover, VaR calculated for a one-day time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be liquidated or offset
with hedges within one day. Changes in VaR between reporting periods are generally due to changes in levels of exposure, volatilities and/or
correlations among asset classes. As of April 30,2024, prior to the change in Manager a different VaR methodology and distributional assumptions
was used. The change in VaR and total risk of the portfolio compared to April 30, 2025 reflects an updated risk model used by the Manager.
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The table below shows the VaR of the Master Fund for both start and end of the review period.

Portfolio Benchmark* ** Ratio**
April 30, 2025 0.78 n/a n/a
April 30, 2024 098 n/a n/a

* ICE BofA U.S. Treasury Bill Index

** The Master Fund uses a cash equivalent benchmark, therefore VaR of the benchmark and VaR ratic are not relevant.

The factor risk breakdown for the Master Fund for both start and end of the review period is presented in the table below. The risk decomposition
is based on expected annualized volatility (1 standard deviation). Active Risk {or Estimated Tracking Error “TE”) measures the predicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference between the portfolio and the benchmark using the current positions of each and the risk model’s factor
covariance matrix.

Portfolio Benchmark* Estimated TE
April 30, 2025 Total Risk 492 0.14 485
April 30, 2024 Total Risk 6.70 0.17 6.60

* ICE BofA U.S. Treasury Bill Index

(b) Currency risk

Currencyriskis therisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in which they are measured. A portion
of the funds’ assets are held in currencies other than the base currency with the result that the funds’ Statements of financial position can be
significantly affected by currency movements.

Non-base currency exposures (excluding the notional impact of forward currency contracts) are detailed in the tables below. Monetary assets
represent investments that can be converted into monetary termsin a very short period of time. In the tables below, Non-Monetary assets include
the fair value of the Master Fund’s portfolio investments. Monetary assets and liabilities include the unrealized appreciation and depreciation of
TBA sale commitments and derivative contracts. Forward currency contracts are entered into as a method of reducing currency risk.

Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2025

Assets Non-Monetary Monetary Total
Australian Dollar S— $2,203,638 $2,203,638
British Pound — 88,700 88,700
Canadian Dollar — 12,659 12,659
Euro 567,129 165,239 5,432,968
JapaneseYen — 179,951 179,951
Swiss Franc — 127,118 127,118
$5,267,729 $2,777,305 $8,045,034

Liabilities Non-Monetary Monetary Total
Australian Dollar S— $1,008,126 $1,008,126
British Pound — 42,750 42,750
Canadian Dollar — 38,383 38,383
Euro — 572,715 572,715
JapaneseYen — 903 903
New Zealand Dollar — 56,525 56,525
Norwegian Krone — 104,970 104,970
Swedish Krona — 100,614 100,614
$— $1,924,986 $1,924,986

Currency Non-Monetary Monetary Total
Euro S— $270 $270
$— $270 $270
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Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2024

Assets Non-Monetary Monetary Total
Australian Dollar $— $1,949,871 $1,949,871
British Pound — 15,779 15,779
Canadian Dollar — 95,710 95,710
Czech Koruna — 242 247
Euro 5,812,617 674,016 6,486,633
New Zealand Dollar — 21,454 21,454
Norwegian Krone — 195,240 195,240
South Korean Won — 3,942 3,942
Swedish Krona — 128,186 128,186
$5,812,617 $3,084,440 $8,897,057

Liabilities Non-Monetary Monetary Total
Australian Dollar S— $784,676 $784,676
Brazilian Real — 994 994
British Pound — 34,427 34,427
Canadian Dollar — 9,926 9,926
Chilean Peso — 1,375 1,375
ChineseYuan (Onshore) — 4,071 4,071
Colombian Peso — 2,441 2,441
Euro - 585,119 585,119
Hungarian Forint — 18,372 18,372
Indian Rupee — 6,072 6,072
Israeli Shekel — 25,582 25,582
JapaneseYen — 116,655 116,655
Malaysian Ringgit — 16,488 16,488
Mexican Peso — 10,424 10,424
New Zealand Dollar - 11,789 11,789
Polish Zloty — 9,007 9,007
Singapore Dollar — 23347 23,347
South African Rand — 16,089 16,089
Swiss Franc — 41,038 41,038
Thai Baht — 32,020 32,020
$— $1,759,912 $1,759,912

AtApril 30,2024, there are no foreign currency balances.

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The risk arises on financial instruments whose fair value or future cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates. Short-term
securities are less sensitive to interest rate changes than longer-term securities, but they also usually offer lower yields. A large portion of the
Master Fund’s financial assets and liabilities are debtinstruments with floating interest rates, which, in the Manager’s opinion, are generally less
sensitive to interest rate changes but may decline in value if their interest rates do not rise as much, or as quickly as interest rates in general.
Conversely, floating rate instruments will not generally increase in value if interest rates decline. Changes in interest rates will also affect the
amount of interest income the Master Fund earns on its floating rate investments.

High yield securities risk

The Master Fund invests in fixed income securities rated Baa3 or lower by Moody’s or BBB- or lower by S&P (commonly known as “junk” or “high
yield” bonds). These securities are considered speculative and, while generally providing greater income than investment in higher-rated secu-
rities, involve greater risk of principal and income (including the possibility of default or bankruptcy of the issuers of such securities) and may
involve greater volatility of price (especially during periods of economic uncertainty or change) than securities in the higher rating categories.
Because yields vary over time, no specific level of income can ever be assured. These lower-rated, high vielding fixed income securities generally
tend to reflect economic changes (and the outlook for economic growth), short-term corporate and industry developments and the market’s
perception of their credit quality (especially during times of adverse publicity) to a greater extent than higher-rated securities which react primarily
to fluctuations in the general level of interest rates (although these lower rated fixed income securities are also affected by changes in interest
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rates). In the past, economic downturns or an increase in interest rates have, under certain circumstances, caused a higher incidence of default by

the issuers of these securities and may do so in the future, especially in the case of highly leveraged issuers.

Payment risk

The issuers of debt securities held by the Master Fund may be able to call a bond or prepay principal due on the securities, particularly during
periods of declining interest rates. The Master Fund may not be able to reinvest that principal at attractive rates, reducing income to the Master
Fund, and the Master Fund may lose any premium paid. The Master Fund would also lose the benefit of falling interest rates on price of the prepaid
bond. On the other hand, rising interest rates may cause prepayments to occur at slower than expected rates. This effectively lengthens the
maturities of the affected securities, making them more sensitive to interest rate changes and the Master Fund’s net asset value more volatile.
Securities subject to prepayment risk generally offer less potential for gains when interest rates decline, and may offer greater potential for loss

when interest rates rise.

The tables below present the interest rate profile of the Statements of financial position categorized by maturity dates.

151 —

Interest Rate Risk April 30,2025
Non-interest

Less than 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years bearing Total
Assets
Deposits with broker S— S— S— $3,100,292 $3,100,292
Cash and cash equivalents 10,671,191 — — 149,721 10,820,912
Sales of investments awaiting settlement — — — 5,772,737 5,772,737
Receivable forvariation margin on centrally
cleared swap contracts 131,703 — — — 131,703
Receivable from Manager — — — 71,750 71,750
Interest and other receivables — — — 2,075,368 2,075,368
Financial Assets at fairvalue through profit
orloss 35,158,191 60,614,565 137,045,389 217,588 233,039,733
Total assets $45,961,085 $60,614,565 $137,049,389 $11,387,456 $255,012,495
Liabilities
Payable to broker §— S— S— $13,834 $13,834
Purchases of investments awaiting settlement — — — 41,057,000 41,057,000
Redempticns of units awaiting settlement — — — 159,106 159,106
Payable forvariation margin on
futures contracts 28,290 — — — 28,290
Collateral on certain derivative contracts,
atvalue 32,010 284,674 1,974,000 — 2,290,684
Payable for management fees — — — 233,068 233,068
Payable for custedian and administrative fees — — — 78,242 78,242
Other accrued expenses — — — 558,861 558,861
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit
orloss 625,994 615,691 8,342,789 551,367 10,135,841
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units) $686,294 $900,365 $10,316,789 $42,651,478 $54,554,926
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Interest Rate Risk April 30,2024
Non-interest

Less than 1 year 1-5years Over 5years bearing Total
Assets
Deposits with broker S— S— S— 53,903,548 53,903,548
Cash and cash equivalents 25,341,954 — — 137,169 25,479,123
Sales of investments awaiting settlement — — — 17,774,399 17,774,399
Receivable forvariation margin on
futures contracts 104,384 — — — 104,384
Interest and other receivables — — — 1,798,646 1,798,646
Financial Assets at fairvalue through profit
orloss 44,776,747 50,938,818 169,705,262 322,311 265,743,138
Total assets $70,223,085 $50,938,818 $169,705,262 $23,936,073 $314,803,238
Liabilities
Payable to broker S— S— S— $13,504 $13,504
Purchases of investments awaiting settlement — — — 73,892,650 73,892,650
Redempticns of units awaiting settlement — — — 189,719 189,719
Payable forvariation margin on centrally
cleared swap contracts 253,213 — — — 253,213
Collateral on certain derivative contracts,
atvalue — 413431 1,967,537 — 2,380,968
Payable for management fees — — — 639,703 639,703
Payable for custody and administrative fees — — — 96,039 96,039
Other accrued expenses — — — 382,793 382,793
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit
orloss 553,633 1,953,901 23,357,020 167,847 26,032,401
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attrib-
utable to holders of redeemable units) $806,846 $2,367,332 $25,324,557 $75,382,255 $103,880,990

Non-base interest rate exposures (excluding the notional impact of interest rate swap contracts) are detailed in the tables above. Interest rate
swap contracts are entered into as a method of reducing interest rate risk.

April 30
Interest Income 2025 2024
Cash and cash equivalents * $1,639,927 $2,191,960
Debt securities:
At fairvalue through profit or loss 12,486,034 8,864,549
Total $14,125,961 $11,056,509

* The Master Fund had no interestincome frominvestments in affiliated issuers for the periods ending April 30, 2025 and 2024.

(d) Liquidity risk

Thisis the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The main liability of the funds
is the redemption of any units that investors wish to sell. The Master Fund’s financial instruments that include investments in OTC derivative
contracts, if any, which are not traded in an organized public market, may beilliquid. As a result, the Master Fund may not be able to promptly
liquidate some of their investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value in order to meet their liquidity requirements or to
respond to specific events such as deterioration in the credit worthiness of any particular issuer.

To minimize or mitigate the effect of liquidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can either re-position the portfolio or adjust the
allocation to obtain a higher concentration of more liquid and viable securities as detailed in the investment objective.

Pursuant to the funds’ investment policy, the Manager is to monitor on an ongoing basis the funds’ liquidity position. Redeemable units
are redeemed on demand at the holder’s option. However, the Manager does not foresee that the contractual maturity disclosed will be
representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments typically retain them for the medium to long-term.
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The tables below analyze the funds’ assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statements of

financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Liquidity Risk April 30,2025
Greaterthan

Lessthan 1 Month 1-3 Months 3 Months Total
Total Assets $42,176,017 $8,182,986 $204,653,492 $255,012,495
Liabilities
Payable to broker 13,834 — — 13,834
Purchases of investments awaiting settlement 8,028,681 33,028,319 — 41,057,000
Redemptions of units awaiting settlement 159,106 — — 159,106
Payable forvariation margin on futures contracts 28,290 — — 28,290
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, at value — — 2,290,684 2,290,684
Payable for management fees 233,068 — — 233,068
Payable for custodian and administrative fees 78,242 — — 78242
Other accrued expenses 558,861 — — 558,861
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 903 811,038 9,323,300 10,135,841
Total Liabilities $9,100,985 $33,839,357 $11,614,584 $54,554,926
Liquidity Risk April 30,2024

Greaterthan

Lessthan 1 Month 1-3 Months 3 Months Total
Total Assets $74,394,306 $14,593,048 $225,815,884 $314,803,238
Liabilities
Payable to broker 13,504 — — 13,504
Purchases of investments awaiting settlement 73,892,650 — — 73,892,650
Redemptions of units awaiting settlement 189,719 — — 189,718
Payable forvariation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts 253213 — — 253,213
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, at value — — 2,380,968 2,380,968
Payable for management fees 639,703 — — 639,703
Payable for custody and administrative fees 96,039 — — 96,039
Other accrued expenses 382,793 — — 382,793
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 116,655 488,676 25,427,070 26,032,401
Total Liabilities $75,584,276 $488,676 $27,808,038 $103,880,990

(e) Credit risk

The funds will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom they trade and will also bear the risk of settlement default. The risk of default on
securities traded is considered minimal as delivery of securities sold is only made when the broker has received payment. Paymentis made on a
purchase when the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation.

The funds seek to mitigate their credit risk by undertaking transactions with broker dealers, banks and regulated exchanges which the Manager
considers of high credit ratings and that it considers to be established. Risks associated with derivative contracts, if any, involve the possibility that
the counterparty to the contract may default on its obligation to perform.
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The fairvalue of collateral that has been accepted by the Master Fund related to outstanding repurchase agreements is: $23,458,980 (2024:
$35,199,180).

The Master Fund generally invests in financial assets which have a credit rating assigned by well-known rating agencies.

Percentage of Net Assets
April 30
2025 2024
AAA/Aa2 16.30% 13.15%
AA/Aa 292 247
A/A 4.56 173
BBB/Baa 13.14 8.96
BB/Ba 1832 1832
B/B 822 6.07
CCC/Caa and below 292 334
Unrated” 10.57 12.40
Cash and net other assets 23.05 33.56
100.00% 100.00%

* In erder to menitor the credit quality of the “Unrated” underlying debt securities, the Manager, on the basis of the internal research, prepares its cwn ratings for
the various instruments for which publicly available credit ratings are not available. The Manager reviews the key financial metrics of the issue and structural
features of the instruments in order to calculate the implied ratings for each of these instruments.

Credit qualities are shown as a percentage of the Master Fund’s net assets as of April 30,2025 and 2024. A bond rated BBB or higher (A-3 or higher,
for short-term debt) is considered investment grade. This chart reflects the highest security rating provided by one or more of Standard & Poor’s,
Moody’s, and Fitch. Ratings and portfolio credit quality will vary over time. Cash and net other assets, if any, represent the market value weights of
cash, derivatives, and short-term securities in the portfolio.

The funds themselves have not been rated by an independent rating agency.

The funds are also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokers
and other receivable balances. The funds” maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either as the protection seller or as the protection buyer,
is the fair value of the derivative contracts. This risk is mitigated, but not eliminated, by having a master netting arrangement between the Master
Fund and the counterparty. Where the Master Fund is a seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund
may be required to make is equal to the notional amount of the relevant derivative contract.

The Master Fund is a party to ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.) Master Agreements that govern OTC derivative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements that govern transactions involving mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may resultin delayed delivery (Master Agreements) with certain counterparties entered into from time to time.
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties’ general obligations, representations, agreements,
collateral requirements, events of default and early termination. With respect to certain counterparties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted to the Master Fund is held in a segregated account by the funds’ custodian. The Master Fund’s collateral is
delivered to the counterparty by either pledging or transferring collateral to the counterparty. Collateral can be in the form of cash or debt secu-
rities issued by the U.S. Government or related agencies or other securities as agreed to by the Master Fund and the applicable counterparty.
Collateral requirements are determined based on the Master Fund’s net position with each counterparty. With respect to ISDA Master Agreements,
termination events applicable to the Master Fund may occur upon a decline in the Master Fund’s net assets below a specified threshold over a
certain period of time. Termination events applicable to counterparties may occur upon a decline in the counterparty’s long-term or short-term
credit ratings below a specified level. In each case, upon occurrence, the other party may elect to terminate early and cause settlement of all
derivative and foreign exchange contracts outstanding, including the payment of any losses and costs resulting from such early termination, as
reasonably determined by the terminating party. Any decision by one or more of the Master Fund’s counterparties to elect early termination could
impact the Master Fund’s future derivative activity.

At the close of the reporting period, the Master Fund had a net liability position of $983,579 (2024: $856,696) on open derivative contracts subject
to the Master Agreements. Collateral posted by the Master Fund at period end for these agreements totaled $835,627 (2024: $673,191) and may
include amounts related to unsettled agreements.

The Master Fund’s main credit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 10% of the fair
value of favorable contracts outstanding are with a single issuer, with the exception of Government National Mortgage Association, which were
valued at $34,082,552 or 14.45% of fair value at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2025 (2024: Uniform Mortgage-Backed Securities, which
were valued at $51,299,986 or 18.49% of fair value, Government National Mortgage Association, which were valued at $38,492,740 or 13.88% of fair
value and BofA Securities, Inc., which were valued at $34,509,000 or 12.44% of fair value).

The funds are exposed to credit risk associated with the Custodian who holds a portion of the funds’ financial assets and U.S. cash balances. The
Custodian provides clearing and depositary operations for the Master Fund’s investment transactions. The Custodian also provides some of the
short-term lending facilities to the Master Fund. The funds were also exposed to Custodian risk on cash and cash equivalents that the Custodian
has failed to treat correctly in accordance with procedures agreed to by the funds.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk as of the reporting date can be analyzed as follows at the end of each reporting period:

April 30

Instrument Type 2025 2024
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprised of:

Fixed income investments $204,436,463 $219,504,871
Repurchase agreements 22,999,000 34,509,000
Derivative assets® 3,600,489 6,385 ha4
Cash and cash equivalents 10,820,912 25,479,123
Sales of investments awaiting settlement 5,772,737 17,774,399
Interest and other receivables 2,075,368 1,798,646
Deposits with broker 3,100,292 3,903,548
Receivable for variation margin on futures contracts — 104,384
Receivable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts 131,703 —

* Derivative assets are comprised of forward contracts, OTC swap contracts and forward premium swap option contracts. The maximum credit risk on certain
derivative assets is mitigated as a result of the Master Fund’s enforceable master netting arrangement (Notes 8 and 11).

The Master Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default.
Management considers both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any expected credit loss. At April 30, 2025 and
April 30,2024, all other receivables, amounts due from brokers, cash and short-term deposits are held with counterparties with a credit rating of
AA/Aa or higher and are due to be settled within 1 week. Management considers the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterpar-
ties have a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised based on
12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Master Fund.

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit rating issued by Moody’s at year end of Aa2 (2024: Aa3). S&P Global Inc. had a credit rating
issued by Moody’s at year end of A3 (2024: A3).

Senior loans are purchased or sold on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis and may be settled a month or more after the trade date, which
from time to time can delay the actual investment of available cash balances; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the securities.
Senior loans can be acquired through an agent, by assignment from another holder of the loan, or as a participation interest in another holder’s
portion of the loan. When the Master Fund invests in a loan or participation, the funds are subject to the risk that an intermediate participant
between the Master Fund and the borrower will fail to meet its obligations to the Master Fund, in addition to therisk that the borrower under the
loan may default on its obligations.

Pursuant to the funds” investment policy, the Manager is to monitor on an ongoing basis the funds’ credit position.

(f) Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fund may employ various investment techniques and instruments for investment purposes or for efficient portfolio management of
their assets for hedging against market movements, currency exchange, interest rate risks or otherwise. Any such instruments are used under
the conditions and within the limits laid down by the Manager. The Master Fund utilized forwards, futures, options and swap contracts during the
reporting period, and any resulting gains or losses were reported in the Statements of comprehensive income {loss).

(g) Fair valuation estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of other receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flow at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Master Fund for similar financial instruments.

Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure” requires the Master Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

+  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

+  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for asset or liability, either directly (thatis, as prices) or indirectly
(that s, derived from prices) (Level 2)

+  Inputsfortheasset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The levelin the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest
level inputthat s significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurementin its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety
requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.
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The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the funds. The funds consider observable data to be that
market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent

sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1, include active listed equi-
ties, exchange traded derivatives, U.S. government treasury bills and certain non-U.S. sovereign obligations. The Master Fund does not adjust the

quoted price for these instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations
oralternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include investment-grade corporate bonds and
certain non-U.S. sovereign obligations, listed equities and OTC derivatives. As Level 2 investments inciude positions that are not traded in active
markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflectilliquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally

based on available market information.

For financial instruments for which there is no active market, the Master Fund may use internally developed models, which are usually based on
valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on

observable market data are classified within Level 3.

The following table analyzes the fair value hierarchy of the Master Fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting period April 30, 2025.
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Fair Value - Financial assets Levell Level2 Level3 Total
Investment in securities:
Fixed Income:
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, at value $1,974,000 $316,684 S— $2,290,684
Convertible bonds and notes
Capital goods — 156,484 — 156,484
Consumer cyclicals — 1,014,750 — 1,014,750
Consumer staples — 770,396 — 770,396
Energy — 127911 — 127911
Financials — 430,207 — 430,207
Health care — 980,342 — 980,342
Technology — 1,984,707 — 1,984,707
Utilities and power — 536,010 — 536,010
Corporate bonds and notes
Basic materials — 5,369,495 — 5,369,495
Capital goods — 2,849,947 — 2,849,947
Communication services — 3,642,194 — 3,642,194
Consumer cyclicals — 10,417,239 — 10,417,239
Consumer staples — 2,639,584 — 2,638,584
Energy — 6,754,790 — 6,754,790
Financials — 12,870,506 — 12,870,506
Government — 353,097 — 353,097
Health care — 3,131,022 — 3,131,022
Technology — 1,665,675 — 1,665,675
Transportation — 764,586 — 764,586
Utilitiesand power — 6,082,049 — 6,082,049
Foreign government and agency bonds and notes — 14,347,076 — 14,347,076
Mortgage-backed securities
Agency collateralized mortgage cbligations — 24,449,838 — 24,449,838
Commercial mortgage-backed securities — 19,476,478 — 19,476,478
Residential mortgage-backed securities — 18,828,716 — 18,828,716
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Senior loans
Basic materials — 616,054 — 616,054
Capital goods — 1,764,774 — 1,764,774
Communication services — 739,172 — 739,172
Consumer cyclicals — 3,114,141 — 3,114,141
Consumer staples — 640,069 — 640,069
Energy — 639,711 — 639,711
Financials — 241,151 — 241,151
Health care — 1,913,629 — 1,913,629
Technology — 2,147 543 — 2,147,543
Transportation — 752,934 — 752,934
Short-term investments — 33,448,065 — 33,448,065
U.S. government and agency mortgage obligations — 39,484,437 — 39,484,437
Totalinvestmentin securities 1,974,000 225,461,463 — 227,435,463
Derivatives:
Forward contracts S— $217,588 S— $217,588
Forward premium swap option contracts — 1,870,931 — 1,870,931
OTC Total return swap contracts — 26,034 — 26,034
OTC Credit default contracts — 3,489,717 — 3,489,717
Total derivatives — 5,604,270 — 5,604,270
Total Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss $233,039,733
Fair Value - Financial assets Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
Cash equivalents S— $10,671,191 S— 510,671,191
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts — 5,703,213 — 5,703,213
Centrally cleared credit default contracts — 497,853 — 497,853
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivatives:
Forward contracts S— $551,367 S— $551,367
Forward premium swap option contracts — 1,407,144 — 1,407,144
OTC Credit default contracts — 2,462,828 — 2,462,828
Total derivatives — 4,421,339 — 4,421,339
TBA sale commitments — 5,714,502 — 5,714,502
Total Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss $10,135,841
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Levell Level2 Level3 Total
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts S— $4,386,102 S— $4,386,102
Futures contracts 380,818 — — 380,818

All other assets and liabilities not measured at fairvalue but for which fairvalue is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation techniques.
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The following table analyzes the fair value hierarchy of the Master Fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting period April 30, 2024.
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Fair Value - Financial assets Levell Level2 Level3 Total
Investment in securities:
Fixed Income:
Asset-backed securities S— 51,646,769 S— $1,646,765
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, at value 1,891,000 489,968 — 2,380,968
Convertible bonds and notes
Capital goods — 431,183 — 431,183
Consumer cyclicals — 1,104,616 — 1,104,616
Consumerstaples — 790,612 — 790,612
Energy = 195,392 . 195,392
Financials — 173,771 — 173,771
Health care — 920,561 — 920,561
Technology — 2,128,330 — 2,128,330
Utilities and power — 388,737 — 388,737
Corporate bonds and notes
Basic materials — 4,103,846 — 4,103,846
Capital goods — 2,615,085 — 2,615,085
Communication services — 3,004,073 — 3,004,073
Consumercyclicals — 9,491,675 — 9,491,675
Consumerstaples — 2,118,743 — 2,118,743
Energy — 6,447,649 — 6,447,649
Financials — 5,783,366 — 5,789,366
Health care — 3,021,443 — 3,021,443
Technology — 1,395,557 — 1,395,557
Transportation — 359,906 — 359,906
Utilitiesand power — 3,469,483 — 3,469,483
Foreign government and agency bonds and notes — 17,696,862 — 17,696,862
Mortgage-backed securities
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations — 26,155,570 — 26,155,570
Commercial mertgage-backed securities — 10,801,079 — 10,801,079
Residential mortgage-backed securities — 22,033,051 — 22,033,051
Senior loans
Basic materials — 506,947 — 506,947
Capital goods — 1,406,427 — 1,406,427
Communication services — 553,530 — 553,530
Consumer cyclicals — 3,185,088 — 3,185,088
Consumerstaples — 326927 — 326,927
Energy — 645,218 — 645,218
Financials — 490,371 — 490,371
Health care — 1,556,090 — 1,556,090
Technology — 1,740,949 — 1,740,949
Transportation — 889,991 — 889,99/
Short-term investments — 41,077,441 — 41,077,441
U.S. government and agency mortgage obligations — 72,710,559 — 72,710,559
Totalinvestment in securities 1,891,000 252,522,871 — 254,413,871
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Derivatives:

Forward contracts S— $322,311 S— $322,311
Forward premium swap option contracts — 4,517,067 — 4,517,067
OTC Credit default contracts — 6,489,889 — 6,489,889
Total derivatives — 11,329,267 — 11,329,267
Total Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss $265,743,138
Fair Value - Financial assets Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
Cash equivalents S— $25,341,954 S— $25,341,954
Centrally cleared interestrate swap contracts — 7,599,938 — 7,593,938
Centrally cleared credit default contracts — 888,596 — 888,596
Futures contracts 647971 — — 647971
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
Derivatives:

Forward contracts S— $5167,847 S— $167,847
Forward premium swap option contracts — 3,029,978 — 3,029,978
OTC Interest rate swap contracts — 18,149 — 18,149
OTC Total return swap contracts — 248,658 — 248,658
OTC Credit default contracts — 6,085,484 — 6,085,484
Total derivatives — 9,550,116 — 9,550,116
TBAsale commitments — 16,482,285 — 16,482,285
Total Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss $26,032,401
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
Centrally cleared interestrate swap contracts S— $7,054,695 S— $7,054,695
Centrally cleared credit default contracts — 72,363 — 72,363

All other assets and liabilities not measured at fairvalue but for which fair value is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation techniques.

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss:

April 30
2025 2024
Financial assets held for trading;
Cash equivalents $10,671,191 $25,341,954
Debt securities 191,696,714 210,955,462
Repurchase agreements 22,999,000 34,509,000
U.S. treasury bills, certficates of deposit and commercial paper (2024 U.S. treasury bills and
commercial paper) 10,449,065 5,568,441
Derivatives 5,604,270 11,329,267
Collateral on certain derivative contracts 2,290,684 2,380,968
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including cash equivalents) $243,710,924 $291,085,092
April 30
2025 2024
Other net changes in fairvalue on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Realized $348276 §(13,315,998)
Changein unrealized 7,670,294 13,857,033
Total gains/(losses) $8,018,570 $541,035
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(h) Capital risk management

The capital of the funds is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units. The amount of net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis, as the funds are subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the

discretion of unitholders. The funds’ objective when managing capital is to safeguard the funds’ ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for unitholders and maintain a capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Master Fund. The
Manager, at its discretion, may scale down a significant redemption that it deems would materially prejudice the management of the funds in
accordance with its investment objectives.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the funds’ policies are to perform the following:

»  Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and redemptions relative to the assets it expects to be able to liquidate within a day and adjust the
amount of distributions (if any) the funds pay to redeemable unitholders.

+  Redeemand issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the funds, which include the ability to restrict redemptions
and require certain minimum holdings and subscriptions.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemable unitholders.

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

(a) Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an affiliate of the funds, may be entitled to an annual fee of up t0 2.00% for Class S Units and 0.60% for Class | Units payable out
of the assets of the Master Fund. For the fiscal year, at the discretion of the Manager, the management fee was not assessed to Class S Units

associated with the Master Fund. The Manager will receive an annual fee of up to 1.60% for Class J Units and 1.00% for Class M Units, the Units
associated with the Feeder Fund, per annum on the average monthly net assets of each Class of the Feeder Fund.

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay a distributor a fee as agreed between the Manager and such distributor out of the Manager’s fee. Any Japanese Agent
Securities Company fee shall be paid out of the Japanese sub-distributor’s fee. At the end of the reporting period, the Manager paid the
Distributor $2,493,349 (2024: $2,128,207).

Itis currently expected that the total expense ratio (excluding amortized organizational expense) for Class J Units will not exceed 1.80% and Class
M Units will not exceed 1.20% per annum of the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund. As of April 30, 2025, the Manager reimbursed
the funds $372,472 (2024: $319,255) for expenses that exceeded the total expense ratio above. The Manager reserves the right to modify this total
expense ratio at any time.

Trustee fees

Pursuant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (the Master Fund Trustee) is entitled to be
paid out of the assets of the Master Fund afee of up to $22,500 per annum subject to an annual review where the fee may be increased for various
reasons such as inflation without Unitholder consent as long as the fees are still considered to be at normal commercial rates.

Such fees will accrue daily and be paid quarterlyin arrears. The Master Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Fund’s assets.

Pursuant to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, MaplesFS Limited (the Feeder Fund Trustee) is entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a
fee of up to 0.02% per annum on the average daily Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund up to $60,000 per annum and subject to a $15,000 minimum
per year. Such fees will accrue daily and be paid quarterly in arrears. The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Feeder Fund Trustee in relation to the Feeder Fund out of the Feeder Fund’s assets.

(b) Transactions with Non-Related parties

Custodian fees

The Manager shall pay to State Street Bank and Trust Company (the Custodian}, out of the assets of the Master Fund, a fee of up to 0.10% per
annum on the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Master Fund, accrued daily and paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall also pay to
the Custodian, out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0.10% per annum on the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund
accrued daily and paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Custodian out of each
fund’s assets.

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custodian has appointed State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd. (State Street) (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
in relation to the funds. For administrative services performed by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee up to $67,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund. Additional
monthly per quote pricing fees will apply. This fee will accrue daily and be paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable
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out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Master Fund’s assets. The Manager shall also pay the Sub-Accounting
Agent out of the assets of the Feeder Fund an administrative fee of approximately $5,000 per annum plus monthly per quote pricing fees. This fee
is included with the Custody fees on the Statements of comprehensive income (loss), and will accrue daily and be paid monthly in arrears. The
Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Feeder Fund’s assets.

The funds may enter into expense offset arrangements with State Street whereby State Street’s fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash
balances. For the years ended April 30,2025 and April 30, 2024, the funds’ expenses were not reduced as a result of expense offset arrangements.

Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Citibank Europe plc (the Transfer Agent), out of the assets of the funds, a fee based on the volume of transfer agent activity,
subject to a $300,000 minimum per annum on the Master Fund and a $75,000 minimum per annum on the Feeder Fund, accrued daily and paid
monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of each fund’s assets.

Other Expenses

In addition, each respective fund bears all other expenses incidental to its operations and business, including, amongst others all compliance
costs and the fees of its auditors and legal advisers; custody charges; interest and commitment fees on loans and debt balances; any income,
withholding or other taxes; cost of communication with Unitholders and prospective investors.

Fach fund may be required to pay subscription and redemption charges in connection with investments in other investment companies. Each
fund may be required to pay brokerage commissions in relation to portfolio transactions.

10. MARKET CONDITIONS

In the normal course of business, the Master Fund trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions where risk of potential loss
exists due to changesin the market (market risk) or failure of the contracting party to the transaction to perform (credit risk). The Master Fund may
be exposed to additional credit risk that an institution or other entity with which the Master Fund has unsettled or open transactions will default
as discussed in previous notes.
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11. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following tables summarize any derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, at the end of the reporting periods,
that are subject to an enforceable master netting agreement or similar agreement. For securities lending transactions or borrowing transactions

associated with securities sold short, if any, see Note 3. For financial reporting purposes, the Master Fund does not offset financial assets and
financial liabilities that are subject to the master netting agreements in the Statements of financial position.

April 30, 2025

Assets:

Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts®
OTC Total return swap contracts™

OTC Credit default contracts - protection sold**
OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased™*
Centrally cleared credit default contracts®
Futures contracts®

Forward currency contracts®

Forward premium swap option contracts®
Repurchase agreements**

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts®
OTC Total return swap contracts™

OTC Credit default contracts - protection sold**
OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased**
Centrally cleared credit default contracts®
Futures contracts®

Forward currency contracts®

Forward premium swap option contracts®
Total Liabilities

Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets
Total collateral received (pledged)*t

Net amount

Controlled financial instruments received (including TBA commitments)**
Controlled cash collateral received (including TBA commitments)*”

Uncontrolled collateral received

Collateral (pledged) (including TBA commitments)**

*Excludes premiums, if any. Included in Financial assets and/or Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the Statements of financial position.

Bank of America

N.A.

3,850
1,364

$5,214

15,432

61,178
105,172
$181,782
$(176,568)
$(134,757)
$(41,811)

$(134,757)

g 2 i
] v
= = =S -g @
a 8 5 3
v n © v ‘=
= a2 9 <
) ST o 2 o
£ £ Sy s
a 825 3L o
S— $626,591 S— S—
17,469 — — —
— — — 301,899
— — 22,999,000 —
$17,469 $626,591 $22,999,000 $301,899
— 472,812 — —
— 22,076 — —
62,613 — — —
— — — 329,806
$62,613 $494,888 $— $329,806
$(45,144) $131,703 $22,999,000 $(27,907)
$(22,959) $— $22,999,000 $—
$(22,185) $131,703 $— $(27,907)
S— S— S— S—
S— S— S— S—
§— $— $23458,980 §—
$(22,959) S— 5— 5—

**Included in Financial assets and/or Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the Statements of financial pesition.

T Additional collateral may be required from certain brokers based on individual agreements.

*Covered by master netting agreement (Note 8).

#Any over-collateralization of tetal financial and derivative net assets is not shown. Collateral may include amounts related to unsettled agreements.
fIncludes current day’s variaticn margin only as reported on the Statements of financial position, which is not collateralized. Collateral pledged forinitial margin
on futures contracts, which is not included in the table above, amounted to $392,920.
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Citibank, N.A.

70,022
53,427
$123,449
$(123,449)
$(110,800)
$(12,649)
5,

S,

5,
$(110,800)

Citigroup Global
Markets, Inc.

57
1,473,961

$1,473,961

518,424

$518,424
$955,537
$955,537
S—
5,
$956,000
5,
5,

Q

E 2
a 3 e
2 §%
] EE
3 s 2
a 8 £

S— S—

— 33,990

— 83,704

50,599 —

$50,599 $117,694

— 13,778

176,575 —

$176,575 $13,778

$(125,976) $103,916

$(112,965) $103,916

$(13,011) $—

S— S—

5— $120,000

§— S—

$(112,965) S—

HSBC Bank PLC

21,013

$21,013

$(18,256)

$(18,256)

163

$—

S—
S—
S—
S—

b —
8 (@) _ <
5 = ¢ 39
&< S9 .8 83
0= (k=] = © o 3
S x S5 = =
== =3 gL NS
5a 54 b S ==
5— S— S— S—
— — 147,122 —
— 781 — —
6,523 — — —
1,146,758 — — 37,399
$1,153,281 $781 $147,122 $37,399
— 256,231 30,873 —
— 29,071 — —
24,477 — — —
566,625 — — 14,588
$591,047 $285,302 $30,873 $14,598
$562,234 $(284,521) $116,249 $22,801
$562,234 $(284,521) $116,249 $22,801
$— $— $— $—
S— S— $141,363 $32,010
$698,000 S— S— S—
S— S— S— S—
S— $(362,312) S— S—
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Morgan Stanley &

Co.LLC

S—

$(12,977)

Stanley & Co.
International PLC

Morgan

S—
26,034
198,599
102,881

$327,514

8,846
10,375
$99,044
$228,470
$(15,971)
$244,441

$(15,971)

NatWest

Markets PLC

50

$50

c
£ 2
8 :
[ &
% 2 2 Q
L5 5z @
&S e & 5
S— S— S—
— 404 —
— — 332,862
$— $404 $332,862
123,109 86,660 5,043
— — 150,566
$123,109 $86,660 $155,609
$(123,109) $(86,256) $177,253
$(121,780) $— $177,253
$(1,329) $(86,256) $—
S— S— §—
S— S— $200,000
S— S— S—
$(121,780) S— S—
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Wells Fargo Bank,

N.A.

T

WestPac Banking

Corp.

Total

$626,591
26,034
1,853,672
781

217,588
1,870,931
22,999,000
$27,594,597

472,812
826,783
22,076
29,071
551,367
1,407,144
$3,309,253
$24,285,344

$316,684
$1,974,000
$23,458,980
$(894,521)

w
a1



9 .

: s & :

5 2, 23~ o

£, T 258 <

. 5 < s s Y9 5 Y

April 30, 2024 o= o m S5 o £
Assets:
OTC Interestrate swap contracts* 5— S— S— S—
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts® — — 1,088,236 —
OTC Total return swap contracts™ — — — —
OTC Credit default contracts - protection sold™ — — — —
OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased** — — — —
Centrally cleared credit default contracts® — — — —
Futures contracts® — — — —
Forward currency contracts* 34,193 5,533 — —
Forward premium swap option contracts® 746,240 95 — —
Repurchase agreements** — — — 34,509,000
Total Assets $780,433 $5,628 $1,088,236  $34,509,000
Liabilities:
OTC Interestrate swap contracts™ — — — —
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts® — — 1,274,997 —
OTC Total return swap contracts™ — — — —
OTC Credit default contracts - protection sold™ 24,274 — — —
OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased** — — — —
Centrally cleared credit default contracts® — — 66,452 —
Futures contracts® — — — —
Forward currency contracts? — 13,229 — —
Forward premium swap option contracts* 497,640 86,574 — —
Total Liabilities $521,914 $99,803 $1,341,449 $—
Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets $258,519 $(94,175) $(253,213) $34,509,000
Total collateral received (pledged)*t $76,537 $— $— $34,509,000
Net amount $181,982 $(94,175) $(253,213) $—
Controlled financial instruments received (including TBA commitments)™™ §76,537 S— S— S—
Controlled cash collateral received (including TBA commitments)*” S— S— S— S—
Uncontrolled collateral received S— S— S— $35,199,180
Collateral (pledged) (including TBA commitments)*” S— S$— S— $(388,194)

* Excludes premiums, if any. Included in Financial assets and/or Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the Statements of financial position.
**Included in Financial assets and/or Financial liabilities at fairvalue through profit or loss on the Statements of financial position.
T Additional collateral may be required from certain brokers based on individual agreements.
# Covered by master netting agreement (Note 8).
# Any over-collateralization of total financial and derivative net assets is not shown. Collateral may include amounts related to unsettled agreements.
“Includes current day’s variation margin only as reported on the Statements of financial position, which is not collateralized. Collateral pledged for initial
margin on futures contracts, which is not included in the table above, amounted to $457,342.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)

— 165 —



Q
= 3 n 2

< g, e < G = £ S

Z G £ 2¢e a & 2 x5¢c o 3

X< e = .g g c.2 FE] S S < 50

c 32 ] S [l mS s oo ()=

e = £ =Z .S oz M=

8 b0 =< E 2 = 1S~ O x =]

- 25 2 3 22 833 z5 z 3

(5] G = S E a o £ I>2 5a 54
S— S— S— S— S— S— S— 5—
— 1,001,680 946,972 — 148,492 — — 887,503
— — — — — — — 104,384
24,394 - - - 24,965 33,707 9,750 -
757,125 — — 212,827 — — 2,246,706 -
$782,119 $1,001,680 $946,972 $212,827 $174,457 $33,707 $2,256,456 $991,887
— — — — — — 18,149 —
— 1,546,952 497,231 — 168,401 — — 830,729
— — — — 10,339 1,440 — —
432,928 — — 220,753 194,736 — 1,258,520 —
$432,928 $1,546,952 $497,231 $220,753 $373,476 $1,440 $1,276,669 $830,729
$349,191 $(545,272) $449,741 $(7,926) $(199,019) $32,267 $979,787 $161,158
$283,331 $(451,333) $420,000 $— $(199,019) $— $978,000 $161,158
$65,860 $(93,939) $29,741 $(7,926) $— $32,267 $1,787 $—
$123,331 S— S— S— S— S— S— S—
$160,000 S— $420,000 S— S— S— $978,000 $233,000
5— S— S— S— S— S— S— S—
S— ${451,333) S— S— $(221,858) S— S— S—
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Merrill Lynch
International

$156,758

$33,381
$123,377
$123,377
$_
$133,989

Mizuho Capital
Markets LLC

T

1,706

$1,706

12,010
$12,010
$(10,304)

$_
$(10,304)
Sf
S
57
Sf

Morgan
Stanley & Co.
International PLC

429,493

36,847
184,548

$650,888

248,658
66,525

135914
113,584
$564,681
$86,207
$33,714
$52,493
Sf
$33,714
57

S—

NatWest
Markets PLC

$27,566

$_
$27,566
$_
$27,566

State Street Bank
and Trust Co.

$81,011

$—

$81,911
$81,911

167

:
5% - 5e
L a g § S Total
5— S— S— S—
— — — 1,088,236
— — — 3,571,898
— — — 104,384
37,746 2,798 2,900 322,311
46,696 320,524 — 4,517,067
— — — 34,509,000
$84,442 $323,323 $2,900 $44,112,896
— — — 18,149
— — — 1,274,997
— — — 248,658
— — — 3,167,493
— — — 66,452
458 6,467 — 167,847
13,263 199,970 — 3,029,978
$13,721 $206,437 $— $7,973,574
$70,721 $116,886 $2,900 $36,139,322
$— $100,000 $—
$70,721 $16,886 $2,900
S— S— S— $456,254
S— $100,000 S— $1,924,714
S— S— S— $35,199,180
5— S— 5— $(1,061,385)
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12. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Trustees on July 23,2025.
13. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
Effective May 19, 2025, the funds changed their Custodian from State Street Bank and Trust Company to J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A. The

Sub-Accounting Agent also changed from State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd. to Franklin Templeton Investor Services, LLC. At the same
time, the funds’ Transfer Agent transitioned from Citibank Europe plc to Virtus Partners Fund Services Luxembourg S.ar.l.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc.
and its subsidiaries (the "Company™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
September 30, 2024, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2024, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to cur audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statementis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, 1mplementat10n, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Comparny's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated
financial statements are available to be 1ssued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurarce but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 405 Howard Street, Suite 600, San Francisco, California 94105
T: (415) 498 5000, www.pwe.com,/us
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

fricewwslorhpoelogers L LP

San Francisco, California
November 12, 2024
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inec.:
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc
and its subsidiaries (the "Company™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
September 30, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2023, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Marnagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated
financial statements are available to be 1ssued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are Lo oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with TUS GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhonseCoopers LLP, 405 Howard Street, Suite 600, San Francisen, California 94105
T: (415) 498 5000, www_pwe.com/us
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statemnents, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consclidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the andit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Fricesslothmepans 17

San Francisco, California
November 21, 2023
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2024

{in thousands, except share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 240,920
Receivables 124,813
Investments (including $23,105 at fair value) 51,235
Deferred taxes 39,106
Other 10,549
Total Assets $ 466,623
Liahilities
Due to affilialed entities, net $ 111,944
Compensation and benefits 117,746
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12,461
Income taxes 54,925
Total liabiliies 297,076

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)

Stockholder's Equity
Common stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding —

Additional paid in capital 78,245
Retained earnings 91,302
Total stockholder's equity 169,547
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity $ 466,623

See Notes to Consdlidated Financial Statements.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024

{in thousands)

Operating Revenues

Investment management fees
Service fees from affiliated entities

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Sales, distribution and marketing
Compensation and benefits
Fund-related expenses

Advertising and promotion
Information systems and technology
General, administrative and other

Total operating expenses
Operating Income
Investment and other income, net

Income before taxes
Taxes on income

Net Income and Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc.

See Notes to Consdlidated Financial Statements.
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$

1,589,353
88,606

1,677,959

220,772
290,098
263,717
255,966

48,570
148,297

1,227,420

450,539

19,674

470,213
108,819

$

361,394
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024

{in thousands)

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile netincome to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Income from equity method investments
Deferred income taxes

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables and other

Decrease in investments, net

Increase in due to affiliated entities, net

Increase in accrued compensation and benefits
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in income taxes payable 1o parent

Net cash provided by operating activities

Purchase of investments
Liguidation of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Dividends to parent

Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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361,394

(1,573)
(5,340)
561

(21,425)
5,611
11,142
23,837
290
(66,200)

338,297

(340)
154

{186)

(337,000)

(337,000)

1,11
239,809

240,920

180,112



Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

Business

Nature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the *Company”) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. (“Franklin® or the "parent”). FAl is a registered
investment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company
provides investment management and related services to investment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin {"affiliated funds"), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Services, LLC, Random Forest Capital, LLC,
Franklin SystematiQ Advisers, LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC, Franklin Venture Pariners,
LLC, Franklin Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP, LLC, Franklin
Holdings, LLC, and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investment advisers or
general partners of affiliated funds.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial stalements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncerainties in making estimates, actual amounts may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 12,
2024, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available to be issued.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FAI and its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling financial interest. The Company has a controlling financial interest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voting interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity ("VIE"). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

A VIE is an entity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activifies or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
investment. The Company's VIEs are all investiment products, and its varniable interests consist of its
investment management fees earned from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the aclivities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Invesiment
management fees eamed from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed to be at market and commensurate with service. The key estimates and assumptions
used in the analyses include the amount of assets under management {(*"AUM").

VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of investment products in which
the Company has an equity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure 1o loss from
these VIEs consists of equity ownership interests of $5.5 million and investment management fee
receivables of $1.0 million.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

While the Company has no contractual obligation 1o do so, it routinely makes cash investmenis
when Franklin launches investment products. The Company also may voluntarily elect 1o provide
investment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on its business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or other support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year.

Related Parties

Related parties include affiliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entities”). Amounis
due to affiliated entities, and substantially all of the Company's operating revenues, operating
expenses and receivables are from related parties.

The Company has a master netting agreement with Franklin and affiliated entities. As amounts due
to and from Franklin and affilialed entities are a detemminable amount and the right of offsel is
enforceable by law, receivables from and payables to affiliated entities are offset and the net
amount is presented as due to affiliates, net.

The Company earns investment management fees from affiliated funds and affiliated entities. The
Company also earns service fee revenues from its affiliated enfities for corporate services, which
are determined based on the costs incurred by the Company in performing these services. The
Company incurs expenses pursuant to agreements with affiliated entities for fund administration,
subadvisory, sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services.

Fair Value Measuremenis

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques
are observable or unobservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabiliies measured at fair value is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities, which may
include published net asset values (*"NAY”) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liahilities in active markets; guoted prices for identical or similar
assels or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. These inputs
require significant management judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumptions that market paricipants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events occur, such as global market fluctuations, issuer
specific news, economic and geopolitical events, natural disasters, and governmental actions. A
pricing vendor is engaged to provide a valuation factor, which represents an estimate as to how
much a specific investment value would have changed between the time that ihe investments
stopped trading in its local market and the time that the fund's NAY was determined. The price
adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation techniques for which the significant assumptions are observable in the market.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

The Company's investments are primarily recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis. Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposils with financial institutions and a nonconsolidated
money market fund sponsored by Franklin and are carried at cost. Due to the short-term nature and
liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions, limits the amount of
credit exposure with any given financial institution and conducts ongoing evaluations of the
creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which it does business. Deposits with financial
institutions exceeded Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits by $21.6 million at
September 30, 2024, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from affiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amounts. Due o the short-term nature and liquidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value.

Investments in Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of nonconsolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separale accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in earnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAY or estimated using NAY as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounts are determined using guoted
market prices, or independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes if quoted market prices are
not available.

Investments in Equity Method Investees

Investments in equity method investees consist of equity invesiments in entities, including
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able o exercise significant influence, but not contraol.
SBignificant influence is generally considered to exist when the Company’s ownership interest in the
investee is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee’s
board of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, are also considered in determining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the equity method when the Company’s
investment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially carried at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company’s proporionate share of the enfities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.

Other Investments

Other investments consist of equity investments in entities over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value. The equity
investments are measured at cost adjusted for observable price changes and impairment, if any,
which are recognized in earnings. The fair value of the entities is generally estimated using
significant unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. The evaluation of equity
investments considers qualitative factors, including the financial condition and specific evenis
related to an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying
value. Impaiment of equity securities is recognized in investment and other income, net.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interesis

Noncontrolling interests are third-party investor equity in consolidaled subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling interest holders to request setllement. Nonredeemable noncontrolling
interest are classified as a component of equity. Net income (loss) atfributable to third-party
investors is reflected as net income (loss) attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests in
the statement of income.

Nonredeemable noncontrolling interest of $236 is included in additional paid in capital. There was
no net income attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests during the year.

Revenues

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally investment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related to the services are satisfied and
it is probable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not occur in future periods.
The obligations are satisfied over time as the services are rendered.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based investment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over time.
Performance-based investment management fees are generally generated when invesiment
products' performance exceeds targels established in customer contracts. These fees are
recognized when the amount is no longer probable of significant reversal and may relate to
investment management services that were provided in prior periods.

AUM is generally based on the fair value of the underlying securities held by investment products
and is calculated using fair value methods derived primarily from unadjusted quoted market prices,
unadjusted independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes in active markets, or market prices
or price guotes adjusied for observable price movements after the close of the primary market in
accordance with the Company’s global valuation and pricing policy. The fair values of securities for
which market prices are not readily available are valued internally using various methodologies
which incorporaie significant unobservable inputs as appropriate for each security type and
represent an insignificant percentage of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company’s role
as principal as it controls the delegated services provided 1o customers.

Service fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the services are performed over time.

Stock-Based Compensation
The fair value of Franklin's stock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on

the market price of the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock and is amortized to

10
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesting period, which is generally
three years. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur.

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated U.3. federal and several combined state income tax
returns for Franklin.

Under an intercompany tax sharing agreement (the “Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes 1o the Company using the separate return method except for tax benefits arising from iis
federal and combined stale net operating losses, which are ulilized by Franklin under the
Agreemenl. As a result of this exception to the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred 1ax assets related to federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheet. Instead, these deferred tax assets are treated as transferred to Franklin. The
Company fracks these net operating loss deferred tax assets, if any, in a separate memorandum
account.

Consistent with the separate company method, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for temporary differences
between the tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities and the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reported amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or setled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date. For each tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax retum, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement.  Interest on tax matters is recognized in interest expense and
penalties in other operating expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the curment exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in
earnings.

11
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2024

3.

Revenues
Operating revenues by the customer's geographic area were as follows:

Service fees

Investment from
management affiliated

{in thousands) fees entities Total
Earned from Affiliated Funds

United States $ 1175083 § — % 1,175,083

Americas Excluding United States 3,875 — 3,875

Europe and Asia 861 — 861
Eamned from Affiliated Entities 385,838 88,606 474,444
Earned from Third Parties 23,696 — 23,696
Total $ 1,589,353 § 88,606 $ 1,677,959

A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from customers

domiciled in the United States.

Investments

Investments consisted of the following at September 30, 2024:

{in thousands)

Investments, at fair value

Sponsored funds and separate accounts $ 23,105
Other investments
Investments in equity method investees 12,049
Other investmenis 16,081
Total $ 51,235
Fair Value Measurements
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows at September 30, 2024:
{in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts . § 12441 § 10,289 § 375 $ 23,105
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value $ 12,441 $ 10,289 $ 375 $ 23,105
12
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

6.

Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:

Fair Value Carrying Estimated
{in thousands} Level Value Fair Value
Equity securities 3% 16,081 § 16,081

Taxes on Income

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

(in thousands)
Current expense

Federal $ 99,670
State 14,489
Deferred benefit
Federal (4,698)
State {642)
Total $ 108.819
The significant components of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2024 were as follows:
(in thousands)
Deferred compensation and benefits 3 31,545
Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 5531
Foreign tax credit 5,950
Interest on uncertain tax positions 1,299
Other 731
Total deferred tax assets 45,056
Valuation allowance (5,950)
Deferred Tax Assets $ 39,106

At September 30, 2024 there were $6.0 million of foreign tax credit carry-forwards that expire
between 2027 and 2034. A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax asset
for foreign tax credit carry-forwards due to the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in fulure years.

The income tax expense varies from the federal statutory rate primarily due to state income taxes
and permanent differences related to equity.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

13
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

(in thousands)

Balance at beginning of year % 26,406
Additions for tax positions of prior years 121
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 3,613
Expiration of statute of limitations (3,802)
Balance at End of Year $ 26,338

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in future periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefits is
included in income taxes payable to parent in the consolidated balance sheet.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2024 was approximately $5.5 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized fax benefits table above.

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and muliple combined state income tax
returns for Franklin. The Company is subject to examination by the taxing authorifies in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any settlements are subject to significant
uncertainty. The Company's major tax jurisdictions and the 1ax years for which the statutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the States of Califomia, Massachusetts, New Jersey,
and New York, City of New York and US federal 2020 to 2024.

It is reasonably possible that the total unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2024 could
decrease by an estimated $3.0 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of
statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and potential settlements
with stale tax authorities.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from fime to time involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of any such claims
will not materially affect the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or liguidity.

8. Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401{k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meet certain employment requirements. Parlicipants may
contribute 1o the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up 1o 100% of the cash portion
of the participant's year-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution rate equal to 85%
of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company's expense related to the plan
for the fiscal was $6.4 million.

14
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

9. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company paricipates in Franklin's Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan (the *"AlIP"), the 2002 Universal Siock Incentive Plan, as amended and restaled (the "USIP”)
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Investment Plan
{the “ESIP") and the Amended and Restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
{the "EIP", and collectively the "Plans"). The Compensation Committee of Franklin's Board of
Directors determines the terms and conditions of awards under the Plans.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $32.6 million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.5 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year.

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unit awards generally based on the performance of the Company and/or its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP and EIP provide for the issuance of shares of Franklin's common
stock for various stock-related awards to officers, directors, and employees. There are 165.0
million shares and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. At September 30,
2024, 25.6 million shares and 13.2 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the
EIP.

Stock awards enfitle holders to the right to sell the underying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards vest. Stock unit awards enfile holders to receive the underlying shares of
common stock once the awards vest Awards vest based on the passage of tme or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin financial performance goals.

Stock and stock unit award activity consisted of time-based awards and was as follows during the

fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Non-vested balance at September 30, 2023 1,3869842 §% 24.37
Granted 1,322,896 2411
Vested {1,425 564) 29.55
Forfeited/canceled (7,836) 24.87
Transferred in, net 1,226,845 23.95
Non-vested Balance at September 30, 2024 2,503,283 $ 26.49

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $41.9
million at September 30, 2024. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.9 years. The total fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards
vested during the fiscal year was $30.6 million.

15
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

10. Related Party Transactions

The amounts related 1o fransactions with affiliates included in the Company's consclidated
staterment of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated Affiliated
(in thousands}) Funds Entities
Investment management fees $ 1179819 §% 385,838
Service fees from affiliates — 88,606
Investment Income — 5,062
Total Revenues from Affiliates $ 1,179,819 $§ 479,506
Fund-related expenses 3 — % 221,732
Advertising and promotion — 254,591
Compensation and benefits — 6,767
Sales, distribution and marketing — 89,475
Information systems and technology — 26,423
General, administrative and other — 132,520
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates $ — % 741,508
Receivables $ 117,256 % —
Income taxes payable to parent — 54,925
Due 1o affiliated entifies, net is comprised of the following:
Due from affiliated entities — 18,992
Due 1o affiliated entities — 130,936
Due 1o affiliated entities, net 111,944

FAl may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of $500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement. Amounts loaned under this agreement earn interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.228% per annum. The agreement expires on June 30, 2025 unless
terminated by mutual written consent of FAl and Franklin. There is currently $0.6 million receivable
under this agreement as of September 30, 2024.

16
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2023

(in thousands, except share data)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Investments (including $28,846 at fair value)
Deferred taxes

Other

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to affiliated entities, net
Compensation and benefits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Income taxes

Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)

Stockholder’s Equity

239,809
102,677
55,634
33,766
11,274

443,160

70,802
93,909
12,171
121,125

298,007

Common stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding

Additional paid in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

78,009
66,908

Total Franklin Advisers, Inc. stockholder's equity

Nonredeemable noncontrolling interests
Total stockholder's equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity

144,917

236
145,153

443,160

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

(in thousands)

Operating Revenues

Investment management fees
Service fees from affiliated entities

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Fund-related expenses

Advertising and promotion
Compensation and benefits

Sales, distribution and marketing
Information systems and technology
General, administrative and other

Total operating expenses
Operating Income
Investment and other income, net

Income before taxes
Taxes on income

Net Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Other Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

1,488,143
27,993

1,516,136

239,222
234,594
240,746
197,781

43,074
124,044

1,079,461

436,675

16,762

453,437
103,308

$

350,129
82

$

350,211
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

(in thousands)

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Deferred income taxes
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables and other

Decrease in investments, net

Decrease in due to affiliated entities, net

Decrease in accrued compensation and benefits
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in income taxes payable to parent

Net cash provided by operating activities

Purchase of investments
Liguidation of investments
Disposals of property and equipment, net

Net cash provided by investing activities

Dividends to parent
Noncontrolling interests

Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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350,129

(1,553)
(161)

(336)
2,884
(48,022)
(5,014)
(2,000)
92,413

388,340

(3,522)
8,033
96

4,607

(450,000)
7

(449,993)

(57,046)
296,855

239,809

12,089



Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

Business

Nature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. (“Franklin® or the "parent’). FAl is a registered
investment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company
provides investment management and related services to investment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin ("affiliated funds"), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Services, LLC ("FAS"), Random Forest
Capital, LLC, Franklin SystematiQ Advisers, LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC, Franklin
Venture Partners, LLC, Franklin Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP,
LLC, Franklin Holdings, LLC and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investment
advisers or general partners of affiliated funds.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual amounts may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 21,
2023, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available to be issued.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FAI and its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling financial interest. The Company has a controlling financial interest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voting interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity (*VIE”). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

A VIE is an entity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activities or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
investment. The Company's VIEs are all investment products, and its variable interests consist of its
investment management fees earned from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Investment
management fees earned from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed to be at market and commensurate with service. The key estimates and assumptions
used in the analyses include the amount of assets under management (*AUM”").

VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of investment products in which
the Company has an equity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure to loss from
these VIEs consists of equity ownership interests of $3.7 million and investment management fee
receivables of $0.2 million.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

While the Company has no contractual obligation to do so, it routinely makes cash investments
when Franklin launches investment products. The Company also may voluntarily elect to provide
investment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on its business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or other support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year.

Related Parties

Related parties include affiliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entities"). Amounts
due to and from affiliated entities, and substantially all of the Company's operating revenues,
operating expenses and receivables are from related parties.

The Company has a master netting agreement with Franklin and affiliated entities. As amounts due
to and from Franklin and affiliated entities are a determinable amount and the right of offset is
enforceable by law, receivables from and payables to affiliated entities are offset and the net
amount is presented as due to affiliates, net.

The Company earns investment management fees from affiliated funds and affiliated entities. The
Company also earns service fee revenues from its affiliated entities for corporate services, which
are determined based on the costs incurred by the Company in performing these services. These
revenues are recognized when earned.

The Company incurs expenses from its affiliated entities for fund administration, sub-advisory,
sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services. Sub-advisory and fund
administration expenses are determined based on a percentage of AUM. Sales, distribution and
marketing expenses are determined based on the expenses incurred by the affiliated entities in
providing the services to the Company. All other expenses are allocated in accordance with relevant
agreements based on estimates and assumptions that are periodically evaluated and adjusted by
management.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques
are observable or unobservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which may
include published net asset values (“NAV”) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. These inputs
require significant management judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events occur, such as significant price changes in proxies
traded in relevant markets after the close of corresponding markets, trade halts or suspensions, or

8
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

unscheduled market closures. These proxies consist of correlated country-specific exchange-traded
securities, such as futures, American Depositary Receipts indices or exchange-traded funds. The
price adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation technigues for which the significant assumptions are observable in the market.

A majority of the Company's investments is recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis. Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial institutions and nonconsolidated
money market funds sponsored by Franklin and are carried at cost. Due to the short-term nature
and liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions in various countries,
limits the amount of credit exposure with any given financial institution and conducts ongoing
evaluations of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which it does business.
Deposits with financial institutions exceeded Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits
by $21.2 million at September 30, 2023, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from affiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amounts. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value.

Investments
Investments consist of investments in sponsored funds and separate accounts, investments in
equity method investees and other equity and debt investments.

Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of nonconsolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separate accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in earnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAV or estimated using NAV as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounts are determined using quoted
market prices, or independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes if quoted market prices are
not available.

Investments in Equity Method Investees

Investments in equity method investees consist of equity investments in entities, including
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able to exercise significant influence, but not control.
Significant influence is generally considered to exist when the Company’s ownership interest in the
investee is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee's
board of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, also are considered in determining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the equity method when the Company’s
investment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially carried at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company'’s proportionate share of the entities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

Other Investments

Other investments consist of equity investments in entities over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value, and time deposits
with maturities greater than three months from the date of purchase. The equity investments are
measured at cost adjusted for observable price changes and impairment, if any, which are
recognized in earnings. The fair value of the entities is generally estimated using significant
unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach. The time deposits are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature and liquidity.

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. The evaluation of equity
investments considers qualitative factors, including the financial condition and specific events
related to an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying
value. Impairment of equity securities is recognized in earnings.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests are third-party investor equity in consolidated subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling interest holders to request settlement. Nonredeemable noncontrolling
interest are classified as a component of equity. Net income (loss) attributable to third-party
investors is reflected as net income (loss) attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests in
the statement of income.

Revenues

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally investment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related to the services are satisfied and
it is probable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not occur in future periods.
The obligations are satisfied over time as the services are rendered. Multiple services included in
customer contracts are accounted for separately when the obligations are determined to be distinct.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based investment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over time.
Performance-based investment management fees are generally generated when investment
products' performance exceeds targets established in customer contracts. These fees are
recognized when the amount is no longer probable of significant reversal and may relate to
investment management services that were provided in prior periods.

AUM is generally based on the fair value of the underlying securities held by investment products
and is calculated using fair value methods derived primarily from unadjusted quoted market prices,
unadjusted independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes in active markets, or market prices
or price quotes adjusted for observable price movements after the close of the primary market in
accordance with the Company’s global valuation and pricing policy. The fair values of securities for
which market prices are not readily available are valued internally using various methodologies
which incorporate significant unobservable inputs as appropriate for each security type and
represent an insignificant percentage of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company’s role
as principal as it controls the delegated services provided to customers.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

Service fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the services are performed over time.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of Franklin's stock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on
the market price of the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock and is amortized to
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesting period, which is generally
three years. Expense relating to awards subject to performance conditions is recognized if it is
probable that the conditions will be achieved. The probability of achievement is assessed on a
quarterly basis. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur.

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and several combined state income tax
returns for Franklin.

Under an intercompany tax sharing agreement (the “Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes to the Company using the separate return method except for tax benefits arising from its
federal and combined state net operating losses, which are utilized by Franklin under the
Agreement. As a result of this exception to the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred tax assets related to federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheet. Instead, these deferred tax assets are treated as transferred to Franklin. The
Company tracks these net operating loss deferred tax assets, if any, in a separate memorandum
account.

Consistent with the separate company method, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for temporary differences
between the tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities and the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reported amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date. For each tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement. Interest on tax matters is recognized in interest expense and
penalties in other operating expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the current exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in
earnings.

1
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

3.

Revenues
Operating revenues by the customer's geographic area were as follows:

Service fees

Investment from
management affiliated

(in thousands) fees entities Total
Earned from Affiliated Funds

United States 1,122,188 — 1,122,188

Americas Excluding United States 5,016 — 5,016

Europe and Asia 661 — 661
Earned from Affiliated Entities 339,109 27,993 367,102
Earned from Third Parties 21,169 — 21,169
Total 1,488,143 27,993 1,516,136

A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from customers

domiciled in the United States.

Investments

Investments consisted of the following at September 30, 2023:

(in thousands)

Investments, at fair value

Sponsored funds and separate accounts $ 28,846
Other investments

Investments in equity method investees 10,707
Other investments 16,081
Total $ 55,634
Fair Value Measurements
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows at September 30, 2023:

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments, at fair value

Sponsored funds and separate accounts . $ 10,204 $ 18,642 $ — $ 28,846
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value $ 10,204 $ 18,642 $ — $ 28,846
12
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

6.

Equity securities

Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:

Fair Value Carrying Estimated
(in thousands) Level Value Fair Value
3 9% 16,081 § 16,081

Taxes on Income

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

(in thousands)
Current expense

Federal $ 93,882

State 11,000

Deferred benefit

Federal (1,152)
State (422)
Total $ 103,308

The significant components of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2023 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Deferred compensation and benefits $ 24,290
Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 5,545
Foreign tax credit 5,705
Interest on uncertain tax positions 1,191
Other 2,740
Total deferred tax assets 39,471
Valuation allowance (5,705)
Deferred Tax Assets $ 33,766

At September 30, 2023 there were $5.7 million of foreign tax credit carry-forwards that expire
between 2027 and 2033. A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax asset
for foreign tax credit carry-forwards due to the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in future years.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

The tax expense differs from the federal statutory rate of 21% due to state taxes and other
permanent differences.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

(in thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $ 28,936
Additions for tax positions of prior years 161
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (559)
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 3,452
Expiration of statute of limitations (5,584)
Balance at End of Year $ 26,406

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in future periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefits is
included in income taxes payable to parent in the consolidated balance sheet.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2023 was approximately $5.0 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized tax benefits table above.

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and multiple combined state income tax
returns for Franklin. The Company is subject to examination by the taxing authorities in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any settlements are subject to significant
uncertainty. The Company's major tax jurisdictions and the tax years for which the statutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the State of New York 2018 to 2023, the States of
California and Massachusetts 2020 to 2023, and the States of Minnesota and New Jersey and U.S.
federal 2019 to 2023.

It is reasonably possible that the total unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2023 could
decrease by an estimated $3.2 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of

statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and potential settlements
with state tax authorities.

14
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of any such claims
will not materially affect the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meet certain employment requirements. Participants may
contribute to the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up to 100% of the cash portion
of the participant's year-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution rate equal to 85%
of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company's expense related to the plan
for the fiscal was $5.3 million.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company participates in Franklin's Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “AIP”), the 2002 Universal Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “USIP”)
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Investment Plan
(the “ESIP”) and the Amended and Restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "EIP", and collectively the "Plans"). The Compensation Committee of Franklin's Board of
Directors determines the terms and conditions of awards under the Plans.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $31.7million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.8 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year.

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unit awards generally based on the performance of the Company and/or its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP provides for the issuance of shares of Franklin's common stock for
various stock-related awards to officers, directors, and employees. There are 140.0 million shares
and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. At September 30, 2023, 12.2
million shares and 14.7 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the EIP

Stock awards entitle holders to the right to sell the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards vest. Stock unit awards entitle holders to receive the underlying shares of

common stock once the awards vest. Awards vest based on the passage of time or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin financial performance goals.

15
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

Stock and stock unit award activity consisted of time-based awards and was as follows during the

fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Non-vested balance at September 30, 2022 1,518,988 $ 26.06
Granted 1,274,819 22.56
Vested (1,385,551) 24.61
Forfeited/canceled (24,100) 23.01
Transferred in, net 2,786 27.50
Non-vested Balance at September 30, 2023 1,386,942 $ 24.37

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $23.7
million at September 30, 2023. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.5 years. The total fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards
vested during the fiscal year was $37.3 million.

16
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

10. Related Party Transactions

The amounts related to transactions with affiliates included in the Company's consolidated
statement of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated Affiliated
(in thousands) Funds Entities
Investment management fees $ 1,127,865 $ 339,109
Service fees from affiliates — 27,993
Investment Income — 12,469
Total Revenues from Affiliates $ 1,127,865 $ 379,571
Fund-related expenses — 231,766
Advertising and promotion — 233,715
Compensation and benefits — 5,744
Sales, distribution and marketing $ — 3 85,468
Information systems and technology — 27,105
General, administrative and other — 106,032
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates $ — $ 689,830
Receivables $ 96,852 $ —
Income taxes payable to parent — 121,125
Due to affiliated entities, net is comprised of the following:
Due from affiliated entities — 36,372
Due to affiliated entities — 107,174
70,802

FAI may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of $500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement. Amounts loaned under this agreement earn interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.113% per annum. The agreement expires on June 30, 2024 unless
terminated by mutual written consent of FAI and Franklin. There are no amounts receivable under
this agreement as of September 30, 2023.

11. Subsequent Events

On November 17, 2023, the Company declared a dividend of $37.0 million.
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